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October 18, 2010

Keith McConnell, Deputy Director
Decommissioning & Uranium Recovery Licensing Directorate
U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Office of Federal and State Materials &
Environmental Management Programs
MS T-8F5, 11545 Rockville Pike
Rockville, MD 20852

Re: RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Notice of Change of Control and Ownership Information (ARMZ)
Irigaray / Christensen Ranch - Materials License SUA-1341
Moore Ranch - Materials License SUA-1596
Jab & Antelope - Materials License Application (Docket No. 40-9079)
Ludeman - Materials License Application (Docket No. 40-9095)

Dear Mr. McConnell:

By letter dated October 6, 2010, the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) provided Uranium One
Inc., Uranium One USA, Inc. and Uranium One Americas, Inc. (collectively "Uranium One") with a Request for
Additional Information (RAI) concerning the above referenced Notice of Change of Control and Ownership
Information. Please find enclosed Uranium One's first set of responses to the RAI. As noted in the enclosure,
portions of Uranium One's response to question 4 will be provided to the NRC under separate cover letters from
Uranium One and JSC Atomredmetzoloto (ARMZ) due to the fact that the information is confidential commercial
and financial information submitted under 10 C.F.R. 2.390, and should be withheld from public disclosure.

If you have any questions about the enclosed responses, please contact me at (307) 234-8235, ext. 333 or
donna.wichers@uranium 1.com.

Do a Wichers
Senior Vice President, ISR Operations
Uranium One Inc.
Uranium One USA, Inc.
Uranium One Americas, Inc.

Enclosure: Responses to RAI with Attachments

cc: Ron Linton (NRC)
Glenn Mooney (WDEQ)
Don McKenzie (WDEQ)

Uranium One USA, Inc.
A Member of the Uranium One Inc. Group of Companies

907 N. Poplar • Suite 260
Casper ° WY 82601
www.uranium 1 .com

4839-9664-3591\13
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Uranium One Responses to Request for Additional Information
October 18, 2010

RAI 1: (a) Provide a corporate organizational chart before and after the transaction is completed,
listing all corporate entities. (10 CFR 40.46)

An organization chart showing Uranium One Inc.'s current corporate structure is attached as
Exhibit 1. An organization chart showing Uranium One Inc.'s corporate structure after the
closing of the Purchase and Subscription Agreement ("Proposed Transaction") with JSC
Atomredmetzoloto ("ARMZ") and its wholly owned subsidiaries Effective Energy N.V., a
Dutch company ("Effective Energy") and Uranium Mining Company, a Russian open joint
stock company ("UMC"), including all ARMZ and Uranium One Inc. subsidiaries is attached as
Exhibit 2.

(b) Revise the corporate organizational charts to list all corporate entities and to clearly

describe the relationship of Rosatom to Uranium One Inc.

See response to RAI l(a) above.

RAI 2: Discuss and provide evidence that the letter of credit will remain valid and enforceable if
the transaction is approved.

Uranium One USA, Inc.'s current surety arrangement for Materials License SUA- 1341 is a fully
cash-backed Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit issued by the Bank of Montreal on behalf of
Uranium One Inc. and Uranium One USA, Inc. in the amount of $9,714,299.001 in favor of the
State of Wyoming, Department of Environmental Quality and the U.S. Department of the
Interior. There will be no changes to the Letter of Credit for Materials License SUA-1341 under
the Proposed Transaction. Attached as Exhibit 3 is confirmation from the Bank of Montreal that
(i) it has been notified of the Proposed Transaction, (ii) it will continue to back the Letter of
Credit after the closing of the Proposed Transaction, and (iii) the Proposed Transaction will not
constitute a default under any agreement between the Bank of Montreal and Uranium One Inc.
or its subsidiaries affecting the validity of the Letter of Credit.

RAI 3: Describe the relationship between Rosatom, ARMZ and Uranium One USA, Inc. with
regard to Uranium One USA, Inc.'s decommissioning liabilities. (10 CFR 40.46)

As outlined in Response to RAI 2 above, the full cost of decommissioning under Materials
License SUA-1341 is currently funded by a fully cash-backed Irrevocable Standby Letter of
Credit which will remain in full force and effect after the consummation of the Proposed
Transaction.

Uranium One USA, Inc. and Uranium One Americas, Inc. (the licensees under Materials
License SUA- 1341 and Materials License SUA- 1596, respectively) have no formal relationship
directly with Rosatom or ARMZ, and do not anticipate any such relationship following the
clbsing of the Proposed Transaction. Furthermore, neither ARMZ nor Rosatom will hold any
unique powers by agreement or otherwise with regard to Uranium One USA, Inc. and Uranium
One Americas, Inc.'s U.S. business or any of the assets, facilities or properties located in the
United States ultimately owned by Uranium One Inc. ("Uranium One U.S. Facilities"),
including the Irigaray, Christensen Ranch and Moore Ranch projects.

By letter dated August 18, 2010, Uranium One USA, Inc. submitted its annual reclamation performance bond estimate and

surety update for the Irigaray and Christensen Ranch Project under Materials License SUA-1341, which the NRC is currently
reviewing.
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Both before and after the closing of the Proposed Transaction, all decisions with regard to the
Irigaray, Christensen Ranch and Moore Ranch projects and Materials License SUA-1341 and
Materials License SUA- 1596 ("Licenses"), including all decommissioning decisions, will be
made by the Board of Directors and officers of Uranium One USA, Inc., Uranium One
Americas, Inc. and Uranium One Inc. A list of the current officers of Uranium One Inc.,
Uranium One Americas, Inc. and Uranium One USA, Inc. are attached to the July 20, 2010
Notice of Change of Control and Ownership Information ("Notice") as Exhibit 7. Day to day
decisions with regard to the project development, operations and any decommissioning activities
at the Irigaray, Christensen Ranch and Moore Ranch projects will be made by the management
of Uranium One USA, Inc. and Uranium One Americas, Inc., principally Donna Wichers as the
Senior Vice President of ISR Operations in coordination and consultation with the Radiation
Safety Officer as appropriate. Strategic decisions with regard to forward investment and growth
of Uranium One U.S. Facilities, including the Irigaray, Christensen Ranch and Moore Ranch
projects, will be made by Uranium One Inc.

Rosatom and ARMZ will not directly participate in decision-making with regard to
decommissioning liabilities at the Irigaray, Christensen Ranch and Moore Ranch projects under
the Licenses and are not liable for any decommissioning liabilities under the Licenses.

RAI 4: Provide two years of audited financial statements and five years of pro-forma financial
statements, or equivalent information, for ARMZ, prepared in accordance with United
States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (10 CFR 40.46).

ARMZ's Combined and Consolidated Financial Statements ("ARMZ Financial Statements")
together with an independent auditor's report for the year ended December 31, 2009 are attached
hereto as Exhibit 4. The ARMZ Financial Statements provide financial information for both
2009 and 2008. The ARMZ Financial Statements were prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), a set of accounting standards that are
widely used and accepted around the world. All listed European Union companies have been
required to use IFRS since 2005. The United States began allowing foreign issuers to use IFRS
in 2007. The use of IFRS will be required for all Canadian listed companies beginning January
1, 2011. In addition to the attached ARMZ Financial Statements, ARMZ is submitting under a
separate cover letter the requested five years ofpro-forma financial statements prepared in
accordance with IFRS with a request for confidential treatment by the NRC as confidential
commercial and financial information submitted under 10 C.F.R. § 2.390.

Although ARMZ is providing under separate cover the information requested in RAI 4,
Uranium One Inc. again emphasizes that it will remain a separate and independently managed
corporation, separate and apart from ARMZ. ARMZ's financial standing will have no bearing
on the development and operation of the Uranium One U.S. Facilities or the ability of Uranium
One Inc. and its subsidiaries (collectively "Uranium One") to complete the required
decommissioning under the Licenses. For the purpose of the NRC's analysis of the financial
viability of the licensees under the Licenses, the more relevant financial statements to review
would be those of Uranium One Inc., which are consolidated for all of Uranium One Inc.'s
subsidiaries, including the licensees (Uranium One USA, Inc and Uranium One Americas, Inc.).
Attached as Exhibit 5 is Uranium One Inc.'s Annual Consolidated Financial Statements
("Uranium One Financial Statements") for the year ended December 31, 2009 prepared in
accordance with Canadian GAAP. The Uranium One Financial Statements include an auditor's
report and provides financial information for both 2009 and 2008. In addition to the attached
Uranium One Financial Statements, Uranium One Inc. is submitting under a separate cover
letter the requested five years ofpro-forma financial statements prepared in accordance with
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IFRS with a request for confidential treatment by the NRC as confidential commercial and
financial information submitted under 10 C.F.R. § 2.390.

RAI 5: (a) Discuss whether Uranium One intends to apply for an export license. If so, please
indicate that Uranium One understands that a separate export license is required subject
to 10 CFR Part 110.

Uranium One does not intend today (and does not envision in the foreseeable future) any export
of U30 8 from the United States derived from the Uranium One U.S. Facilities and, accordingly,
does not foresee any need to apply to the NRC for an export license under 10 C.F.R. Part 110
("Part 110"). Because the Uranium One U.S. Facilities, including the Irigaray, Christensen
Ranch and Moore Ranch Projects, are being developed expressly for the purpose of providing
additional domestic supply of U30 8 to United States customers, Uranium One has not viewed or
planned the Uranium One U.S. Facilities as a source of U 30 8 to serve customers in other
countries.

To be clear, Uranium One is fully aware that any U30 8 produced from the Uranium One U.S.
Facilities is subject to U.S. export control regulations administered by the NRC under Part 110.
Uranium One takes seriously its obligations under U.S. law, including the import and export
restrictions contained in Part 110. Uranium One has engaged for several years U.S. legal
counsel familiar with U.S. export control laws, including Part 110, and regularly relies upon
such counsel for guidance in this area. In consultation with such counsel, Uranium One is
already developing and will shortly adopt a formal written export control compliance policy and
procedure to ensure that all Uranium One personnel have appropriate guidance with respect to
the U.S. export control laws generally and Part 110 in particular. If any such circumstances
were to change and Uranium One were to face any commercial export opportunity in the future,
Uranium One would then comply with all applicable requirements of Part 110 and seek the
appropriate NRC export license prior to any such export transaction.

(b) Clarify the membership of the Korean Consortium.

ARMZ's Annual Report refers to a confidential Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") with
a Korean Consortium. The Korean Consortium consists of three well-established South Korean
companies, and the MOU simply provides a framework for cooperation in evaluating a potential
joint mining project. Neither the parties nor the project has any connection to North Korea.

RAI 6: Based on the citations below, discuss how an approval of an indirect change of control
would be consistent with the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as Amended (AEA), and would
not be inimical to safety and security. (Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended, Section
69; 10 CFR 40.32(d)).

To effectuate the policies set forth by Congress, the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended
("AEA") includes among its purposes the establishment of--

"(d) a program to encourage widespread participation in the development and utilization
of atomic energy for peaceful purposes to the maximum extent consistent with the
common defense and security and with the health and safety of the public...."

Atomic Energy Act of 1954, 42 U.S.C. 2013 (d).

Consistent with this and other purposes of the AEA, the NRC, with respect to "change of
control" applications involving indirect foreign control, must determine that the issuance of a
license would not be "inimical to the common defense and security, and would not constitute
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unreasonable risk to the health and safety of the public." The NRC has explained that in making
this determination,

"...NRC will consider foreign ownership, control, and domination. Although NRC has
never adopted any explicit criteria for determining whether a particular transaction will be
'inimical to the common defense and security,' the NRC has historically focused on a
relationship between a potential licensee and other entities involved in the transaction that
could lead to the ultimate power of a foreign entity to direct the actions of the licensees with
regard to licensed activities....

NRC's focus is on the health and safety aspects, not on the financial intricacies, of the
proposed transaction.... NRC is required by law to ensure that public health and safety is
not compromised and to be confident that when a licensee's program is undergoing a change
of control, all efforts are made to ensure that the performance of the radiation safety aspects
of the program is not degraded."

NRC, Consolidated Guidance About Materials Licenses, NUREG-1556 Vol. 15, pages 5-2 - 5-3.

Considered in light of the facts of the transaction and the NRC's practice, the NRC's approval of
Uranium One's application for change of control would be fully consistent with the AEA and
would not be inimical to safety and security.

Upon closing of the Proposed Transaction, Uranium One Inc. will remain a publicly listed
company on the Toronto Stock Exchange ("TSX") and Johannesburg Stock Exchange ("JSE")
and will continue to be subject to extensive ongoing securities regulatory, corporate governance,
and financial reporting requirements under applicable Canadian laws and regulations and the
rules and regulations of the TSX and JSE. The equity and debt capital markets that Uranium
One Inc. has accessed in the past and intends to access in the future are subject to extensive
regulation and public disclosure requirements. Uranium One Inc. will also continue to be
governed by a Board of Directors with a majority of "independent directors," as defined in
"National Instrument 52-110" of the Canadian Securities Administrators.

As explained in the responses above to RAI numbers 2 - 4 above, 7 -9 below, and in prior
information submitted by Uranium One in connection with this application, nothing about the
investment of ARMZ in Uranium One will alter the current commitments of the licensees with
respect to their health, safety, and environmental obligations, including decommissioning
liabilities. Indeed, the Proposed Transaction will add financial strength to Uranium One's
proposed program of development of the mining operations that are the subject of the Licenses.
These operations are specifically intended to create a new U.S. source of natural uranium for
commercial customers in the United States, who currently rely overwhelmingly on imports to
supply their needs. Both by encouraging "widespread participation in the development and
utilization" of a critical domestic source of uranium supply for peaceful purposes, and by
ensuring that public health and safety concerns are not compromised, approval of the proposed
application would be consistent with the AEA.

The transaction does not in any way present a hostile threat to U.S. defense and security
interests. Rosatom, which indirectly owns 100% of the shares of ARMZ, was established in late
2007 by enactment of the Law on Rosatom. It is the successor to the former Federal Agency on
Atomic Energy, and it is the regulator of Russia's nuclear energy industry. Among its various
responsibilities, Rosatom represents the Russian Federation in various international fora and
carries out the Russian Government's policies with respect to international cooperation in non-
proliferation and nuclear safety. For instance, the Protocol to the U.S.-Russian Plutonium
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Management and Disposition Agreement, signed by the two governments on April 13, 2010,
envisions that such collaboration activities will be agreed upon and implemented by the U.S.
Department of Energy and Rosatom, respectively.

While it is indirectly owned by Rosatom, ARMZ operates as a commercial participant in the
global uranium industry, pursuing profit-making activities. Like Uranium One Inc., ARMZ is
solely a mining company, and its investment in Uranium One Inc. is solely taken for commercial
reasons. ARMZ is a joint stock company organized under the laws of the Russian Federation.
Headquartered in Moscow, ARMZ, through its subsidiaries, is engaged in the exploration,
mining, production and sale of uranium ore in Russia and abroad. To date, almost all of
ARMZ's mining operations have been in Russia (and more recently, Kazakhstan), and the
principal customers of ARMZ are the Russian companies Tenex JSC amd TVEL. Tenex
enriches, and sells internationally, low enriched uranium and other products and services within
the nuclear fuel cycle. TVEL processes uranium ore and produces nuclear fuel for use in
nuclear power plants. It is noteworthy that Tenex has a long and successful partnership with
United States Enrichment Corporation ("USEC") under the "Megatons-to-Megawatts"
agreement between the United States and Russia, dating to 1994. Under that agreement, Tenex
supplies a substantial quantity of low-enriched uranium to USEC for supply to U.S. utility
customers.

As noted above and as stated in ARMZ's charter, ARMZ was established to be a commercial
enterprise. As a joint stock company, ARMZ is similar to many other commercial enterprises in
Russia. ARMZ has a Board of Directors and a professional management team, and these bodies
are, by law, required to pursue the purposes described in the company's charter. ARMZ's
shareholders are not granted any special corporate or shareholders' rights and have only the
standard corporate rights afforded to shareholders by Russian law.

ARMZ and its shareholders are committed to maintaining the highest standards of corporate
governance. Under ARMZ's governance structure, strategic decisions are made at the board
level and implemented by its executive management team. ARMZ is subject to all Russian laws
relating to corporate governance, including the Federal Joint Stock Companies Law, and it
follows the Code of Corporate Conduct recommended by the Russian Federal Commission for
Securities Markets. ARMZ is governed by the same regulatory regime as joint stock companies
controlled by private shareholders and is subject to the same reporting and disclosure
requirements (as set out in the Russian Civil Code and the Federal Law on Joint Stock
Companies) as other privately owned companies.

In sum, the demonstrated commercial character of ARMZ; the long history of successful
cooperation by affiliates of Rosatom with United States agencies and commercial enterprises in
pursuit of various policy and commercial objectives; the continued establishment of Uranium
One Inc. as a Canadian public company and the clear commercial objectives of the transaction
between ARMZ and Uranium One Inc.; the absence of any possible motive or opportunity by
ARMZ to engage in hostile conduct with respect to the licensed activities; and the very nature of
the mining operations that are the subject of this application all support a determination that
grant of the application would be consistent with the AEA and present no inimical threat to U.S.
national security.
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RAI 7: (a) State which party or parties would ultimately have indirect control over NRC License
SUA-1341 (10 CFR 40.46) if the transaction is approved.

As discussed in the July 20, 2010 Notice, upon the closing of the Proposed Transaction, ARMZ
will hold a total of approximately 52.1% of the outstanding shares of Uranium One Inc. through
its wholly owned subsidiaries Effective Energy and UMC. In addition, upon the closing of the
Proposed Transaction, Uranium One Inc.'s Board of Directors will be reduced from its current
size of 13 directors to nine directors. Of those nine remaining directors, ARMZ will be entitled
to nominate five, two of which must be independent directors who are independent from and do
not have a "material relationship" as defined under National Instrument 52-110, with ARMZ. In
total, following the closing of the Proposed Transaction, Uranium One Inc.'s Board of Directors
will be comprised of a majority of independent directors. ARMZ will also have the authority to
second two individuals into Uranium One Inc. management positions; however, one such
ARMZ management secondee must be located in Kazakhstan and neither secondee may be
located in the United States or be given any management role with respect to any Uranium One
U.S. Facilities.

As discussed above in the response to RAI 3, both before and after the closing of the Proposed
Transaction, all decisions with regard to the Irigaray, Christensen Ranch and Moore Ranch
projects and Licenses will be made by the Board of Directors and officers of Uranium One
USA, Inc., Uranium One Americas, Inc. and Uranium One Inc. Uranium One USA, Inc. and
Uranium One Americas, Inc. will retain direct control over the day to day activities under the
Licenses as the licensees. Uranium One Inc. will only have indirect control over the Licenses
through its decision making with regard to investment in Uranium One U.S. Facilities, including
the Irigaray, Christensen Ranch and Moore Ranch projects.

ARMZ will not hold any unique rights or duties by agreement or otherwise with regard to
Uranium One U.S. Facilities, including the Irigaray, Christensen Ranch and Moore Ranch
projects. Uranium One Inc. will remain an independently managed company that is publicly
traded on the TSX and JSE. Furthermore, ARMZ will have no position on or direct authority
over any of the Boards of Directors of Uranium One USA Inc. and Uranium One Americas Inc.
or management positions with either of those corporate entities.

(b) State whether the party or parties who would have indirect control over the NRC
license could have the ability to exert direct control over the NRC license. If so, state the
process through which this could occur.

As outlined above in the response to RAI 7(a), Uranium One Inc. and ARMZ have specifically
structured the Proposed Transaction to preserve the independence of Uranium One Inc. and the
control of the Licenses by Uranium One USA Inc and Uranium One Americas Inc. following
the closing of the Proposed Transaction. ARMZ will have no ability to exert direct control over
the NRC Licenses.

RAI 8: Confirm that Uranium One Inc. understands that it is required to appropriately notify
NRC in advance of changes to corporate lineage. (10 CFR 40.36)

Uranium One Inc. is fully aware of and takes seriously its obligations to act in full compliance
with U.S. laws concerning Materials License transfers and changes of control, including changes
to corporate lineage, as contained in 10 C.F.R. § 40.36 and NUREG 1556, Vol. 15.
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RAI 9: Confirm that ARMZ and Rosatom commit to abide by Uranium One Inc.'s commitments.
(10 CFR 40.36)

Uranium One Inc. is authorized to confirm that (a) ARMZ and Rosatom commit to abide by
Uranium One Inc.'s commitments with respect to Materials License SUA-1341 and Materials
License SUA-1596, and (b) neither ARMZ nor Rosatom will cause Uranium One Inc., Uranium
One USA Inc., or Uranium One Americas Inc. to fail to abide by the terms of Materials License
SUA-1341 and Materials License SUA-1596, or otherwise fail to abide by U.S. law in any
respect.

RAI 10: State whether an accounting concern, resulting in the issuance of a qualified opinion on
ARMZ's financial statements, was resolved (10 CFR 40.36).

The accounting concern, resulting in the issuance of a qualified opinion on ARMZ's financial
statements for 2007, has been resolved. ARMZ is submitting under a separate cover letter a
copy of a statement from the auditor of the ARMZ 2007 Consolidated Financial Statements,
explaining the grounds for the initial concern and the auditor's satisfaction with its resolution.
As explained in its letter, ARMZ is requesting confidential treatment by the NRC of its
submission as confidential commercial and financial information submitted under 10 C.F.R. §
2.390.

RAI 11: State whether the ARMZ charter is duplicated in Exhibit 11.

Uranium One Inc. inadvertently included two duplicate copies of the current ARMZ charter as
Exhibit 11 to the Notice. The two copies of the ARMZ charter are identical.
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3MB Capital Markets 8MO Nesbitt Burns Iic.:
885 West Georgia St.
Suite 1700'
Vancouver,,BC V6C 3E8

Tel.: (604) 443-1431
Fax: (604),443-1408

,October 1i2, 2010

Uranium One, Inc.
Attn: Graham du-Preez, :Chief Financial Officer
1285 West Pender Street, Suite 9000
Vancouver, British Columbia, V6E 4B1

Re: IrreVocable Standby Letter of Credit No.

Dear Mr. du Preez,

,Reference is made for all purposes to that certain Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit No.
-("Letter of Credit.) issued by the Bank of Montrea!.("Bank) in fayor of the

.State of Wyoming,' Department of Environmental Quality and the U.S. Department of the
Interior as the-sufety for reclamation obligations of Uranium One USA, Inc. under that certain
Permit to Mine'No. 478 aand Materials License SUA-1341 aind attendan't mining and reclamation
plans. The Letter of Credit is cash-backed by funds held by .the Bank currently in the amount of
s$9,714,299.00.

The Bank has been informed by Uranium One Inc'. of the transaction entered, into by Uranium
One Inc. represented by a Purchase and Subscription Agreement with JSC Atomredmetzoloto
('ARMZ") and its wholly owned subsidianies Effective Energy N.V. ("Effective Energy")iand
Uranium Mining-Company ("UMCT)under which Uranium One Inc. will receive cash andinterests in two uranium mines in southern Kazakhstan from Effective Energy and UMC in
return for issuing new common shares of Uranium One Inc. to Effective Energy and UMC (the
"Transaction"). The Bank understands that upon consummation of the Transaction ARMZ
through its subsidiaries, will'own approximately 52.1% of the total outstanding common shares
of Uranium One Inc.

This letter confirms that the Letter of Credit will remain in full force dnd effect aiftei the
consummation of the Transaction and that the Transaction will not by its terms result in abreach
of any te .sor conditions governing the Letter of Credit.

Very truly YOuIr,

rry Kaye

Director

Loan Products Group



Exhibit 4
to

Uranium One Responses to Request for Additional Information

ARMZ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Exhibit 4



COMBINED AND CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

of open joint stock company
"Atomredmetzototo" together
with Independent Auditor's Report
for the year ended 31 December 2009
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Tel: +7 495 797 5665 ZAO BDO
Fax: +7 495 797 5660 Section 11, Build. 1,: B D . E-mail: eception@bdo.ru 125, Warshavskoe shosse,
www.bdo.ru Moscow 125 , Wa7sh7vRussia

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of open joint stock company
"Atomredmetzoloto"

We have audited theaccompanying combined and consolidated financial statements of open
joint stock company "Atomredmetzoloto" and its subsidiaries (hereinafter the "Group"),
which comprises the combined and consolidated, statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2009, the combined and consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the combined and consolidated statement of changes in equity and the combined
and consolidated cash flows statement for the year then-ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management's Responsibility for the Combined and Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these combined and
consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control system relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the combined and
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these combined and consolidated financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance whether the combined and consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the combined and consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the combined and consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control system
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the combined and consolidated
financial statements in order to design' audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the combined and consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffident and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

ZAO BDO, company registered under Russian Federation legislation, is a member of BDO Inter national Limited,
a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international BOo network of independent member firms.



Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying combined and consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at. 31 December 2009,
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
With Inter1national0 Fi or- Stanldar ds,

NIatakya'Kharla~
Audit Eggmnt I

3Jne201

ZAO.BDO

IBDO
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OJSC Atomredmetzoloto
Combined and Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2009
(in thousands of Russian Rubles unless noted otherwise)

Note 31 December 2009 3.1 December 2008

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 6 17,785,904 13,994,233
Intangible assets 7 873,270 1,011,586
Exploration and evaluation assets 8 2,408,137 1,091,501
Investments in associates and jointly controlled entities 9 14,141,031 155,395
Deferred income tax assets 25 353,711 146,258
Other non-current assets 10. 2;702,179 222,227

'Total non-current assets: 38',264,232 16,621,200

Current assets
Inventories 11 4,265,348 7,352,527
Income tax receivable 141 907 391,786
Accounts receivable and prepayments 12 8,924,684 3,151,201
Other current assets 13 3,170,362 515,668
Cash and cash equivatents 14 51,685,187 2,434,954

* Total current assets 68,187i488 13,846,136

TOTAL ASSETS 106,45.1,720 30,467,336

EQUITY

Share capital 15 20,127,325 3,956,040
Additional paid in capital 15 48,028,800 85
Merger reserve 15 6,692,886 6,726,305
Currency translation reserve (1,067,341) 19,825
Retained earnings, 6,404,666 556,074,
Total equity attributable to the shareholders of

OJSC Atomredmetzoloto 80,186,336 11,258,329
Non-controltingrinterest . 1,852,560 - 1,575,720"

'TOTAL EQUITY . 82,038,1896 12,834,049

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 16 9,413,165 3,0i2,902
Finance lease liability 17 39,023 154,797
Deferred tax liabilities 25 936,604 1,089,025
Other. non-current liabilities .20 1,052,313 844,376
Total non-current liabilities . 11,441,105 5,101,O0

Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings and current portion of Long-term
borrowings 16 7,468,899 10,455,303
Finance lease liability 17 98,532 236,487
Accounts payable and accruals 19 3,016,959 1,521,788
Income tax payable 1,892,029 28,804
.Other taxes payable 18 -495,300 289,805

TOTAL LIABILITIES 24,412,8124; . 17,'633,287

TOTAL EQUITY AN 'LIABILITESý .106,45 30,467,336

30 June 2010

Kh5acha/tu ' DirTeco r
First Deputyq•fof, t Director
.OjS<t 6rf~o1

/A
Chief Acc¢rntant
OJSC Ato -edmrhetzootot
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OJSC Atomredmetzoloto
Combined and Consolidated Statement of Comprehensivre Income for the year ended 31 December 2009

.(in thousands of Russian Rubies unless noted otherwise)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 Decem .ber

Note 2009 --.2008
.... . ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~~ .... . .... ........:... .. : .. :. .....

Revenue 21 29,233,932 15,i97,372
Cost of sates 22 (-:16,595,099)- (10,054,453).
Gross profit 12,638,833 5,142,919

Adm•inistrative. and selling expenses 23 '(3.898,666) (2,513,546)
Operating profit .8,740,167 2,629,3i31,,

Share of loss of associates and joinitly controlled entities 9 (89,950) (43,757)
Ec•ess of the acquirer's intefr st in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities andi contiingent iiabiLities
.acquired over cost 5 417,463Finance costs 24 (2,566,427) (926,500)

Gain from sale of financial Invyest.ment 5' 2,693,689
Other incomes / (expenses) 43,423 (76,983)
Foreign exchange gain i (Loss) ...... 1.... ............................... 1;411,486 (1,705,559)
Profit before income tax 1,23 2,388 294,037,

Income taxkeXpense 25 ,(3504,446) '(4,837)
, Profit for the y•ear 6,727,942 289,200.

.Profit I(loss) attributable to::
Sharehoilders of OJSC AtomredmetzoLoto 6,742,708 278,181
qon-controlling interest (14,766) 11,019

Profit for the year 0.6-727'942 289,200•,.: .: . .. ... ... .. . . ... ... : . .. ... ... . .... ..... . . .. . . . ... . . . . ... .. . . . . . . ... ... ..... . . .. . ... ...... . ..... . ...

.ther.comprehensive incomne afte rIncome tax .....................
Exchafige differences on translation of foreign operations (1,087,166) 22,498

. . ,. , .. . . . ... ... ... ... . . . . . .. . . . . . .. . . : •

Total comprehensive income for the period
attributable to: 5,640,776 311,698

Shareholders of OJSC Atomredmetz0oo[to 5,655,542 300,679
Non-controlling interest (1,766) 11,019

i:6



COJSCAtomredmetzoloto:
combined ahd Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended. 31 December'2009
(in thousands ,of.Russian Rubies unless noted :otherwise)

..... n y : ."... . . ... ......... .. . ...... .. . ....... . . .. . . . ...... ......... ..... ... . ..
Currency..........

Share: Additional:paid,. Merger: translation Retained Non-controlling: Total
Note- capital: ._... in capital._ reserve -...reserve ..... earnings. Total-, interest:ý Equity

Balance as at .
ianii208 454 85 800176 (2,673) .......... 343570 ...... 8343612 1,87748 9831;360

Total comprehensive,
income .. 22,498: 278,181 300,679 11 019 311,698

Issue of share capital 15: 3,955,586 - . 3,955,586 . 3,955,586,

Sateof ishares of su bsidiary 15: ..- .. 22,184 22,184 •(22.184)-
Contribution of shares of
entities, under common
controL. 5 (1,275,87I) - - (1,275,871) 99,137 (1, 76,734):
Dividends. 15. J....... (87,861) (87,861) (87,861)Y,

Balance. as. .at
31 December-2008: . 3,956040 85, 6,726,305' 19825 556,074 11i,258,329. 1,575,720.1 12,834,049

TotaL comprehensive.
income. - (1,087,166).. .6,1742,708 . ,655542 (14,766) 5,640,776

Issue of share capitat 15 16,171,285.: 48,028,.715 .. - 64,200,000 - 64,200,000
Acquisition of shares of
.subsidiaries i - - (33,419) m (894,116): (927,535) 291,606: (635,929)

i!B la n e a a t " ... ...... .. ... .. .. ..... .. . .. ... ... ........... .. ... ...... ... ..
.Balance as at1

:31 December 2009 201735 48,028,800: 6,692,886 (1,067,341,): 6,04,6661 80,186,336- 1,852,560,.... 82,P038,896:
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• OJSC Atomredmetzoloto
Combined and Cionsolida*ted Statement of Cash FloWs foi the yea ended 3l1 D ebýeý 2009
(in thousands of Russian Rubles unless noteda othderwise)..

Year ended Year ended
Note 31 December 2009 31 December 2008.... .. :...: : .. :..

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVTIES
Profit before income tax 10,232,388 294,037
Adjustments for non-cash Iterns:

Depreciation of property, plant I.and equipment 6 1,049,424 771,054
Amortisation of intangible-assets 7 12,212 13,432
Bad•debt provision .23 :200,794 865
Provision for obsolete stock 22 (6,284) 31.29
LOSso disposal of property,. plant and equipment. 24,586 3.1,772Interest income 24 (380i735) (46,1t82)
Iterest expense 24 2,4.90,765 848,437

Effect of discounting 24 81,735 77,506
Gain on disposal of ýother:assets .104,671 431
Foreign exchange differences (,331)1,705,559
Interest on finance Lease 24 90,505 46,739
Excess of the acquirer's interest in the net fair v.a[ue of the
identifiable assets, liabilities andý contingent, ILiabi~lities
acquired over cost ý5 - (417,463')
Share of toss of associates and jointly co6nktrold entities 9 89,950 43,757
Vacation accrual 66,6 63 25,376
Provision for bonus payments 258,805 (48,218)Loss on derivative financial instruments 24 396,096
Gain from sale of financial investment 5 ..(2,693i689)
Dividends, accrued .. 1.. ,939)
Oth. ter accruals (69,'535) !A8,194.
......Cash fr.6 opeati gactivities befdre~chahgesin. working-.

..capital and income tax .............. 11010103099 23418,525,,

Changes in working capital:
Change in accounts receivable and prepayments ý(5,:559,373) : (1,843,594)
Change in inventories .2,990.383 (3,173,234)
Change in accounts payable and accruals :1 , 892,982, 222,781
Change in other taxes payable 150,9099 110, 69.81
Change in other tong-term Liabilities (2.52) 146,4415
Interest paid-.. :(2,368,634) (805,593)
income tax .paid, ....... (1,,751,214)ý (727,531)
Net cash generated from operating activities 5,457,900 (1,845,910)

.:.CASH FLOWS. FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
'Interest income received 370,304 42,749
.Long-term loans itss.ued .(272,020)
.Short-term loans iss ,ued .(20,142) (531,175)
Repayment of long-termiloans issued 37,628
Repayment of short-term Loans issued 217,340 272,673
Purchase of. property, plant and equipment :(5,228,793) (3,200,898
Sale of property, plant and equipment 27,621
Purchase of intangible assets (1735)(545,30.2):
Purchase of promissory noteýs :(404,922) (6,200)
Sale of promissory notes 253,771
Dividends received .5 111,939 '19,766
Purchase of derivative financial instruments 13 (656,833)
Purchase of exploration and evaluation assets. (1,376,768) (678,720)
Acquisition of shares of subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities 1. 5 .(17,770,809) (1.82,892)

Net ,cash used In I nesting activiiesi. . . . . . (24, 819,041) . (4,809,999)
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OJSC Atomredme-tzbloto
:Combin.ed and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 3.1 December 2009
,.(in thuands f Russian Rubles•. unless noted other.vise) ..... .....

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from .short-term borrowings 21,433,061 14,626,556

Proceeds froamlong-term borrowings. 35,187,700 567,809
Rpayment of short-term, borrowings (25, 348,42M) (7,990,068)
Rpayment of long-term borrowings *(26,587,400)(21,9)

Proceeds from share iss ,ue 1, 15 64,200;,000 2,972,000
Dividends paid ý15 (87,861)

.,Finance lease payments (273,745), (188,837)
Net cash generated from financing activities 68,611,ý374 6,911,707
Increase ihncash and cash equivalents .i... .. ....... 49,250,233 :255798

Cash and cashvequivalents ath he beginning ofthe year 2,434,954 ...2,17 ....

Cash and cash equivalents at the endIof theIyear 51,685187 ,434 954.
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OJSC Atomredmetzoloto
Notes to the Combined and Consolidated Financial Staterments for the year ended 31 December 2009
(in thousands of Russia RUbte uLes noted, otherise

Note 1. Group and Group's activity

The •cormbined and consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial. Reporting Standards (IFRS) for the year ended 31 December 2009 for OJSC Atom redmetzoloto
(hereinafter referred to as the Company) and for. its .subsi diaries and ýas~soc'iates (togethe~r referred to as the Group

'or the Grou Atomnredmetzoioto).

The Cmpany i~s:an Open Joint-Stock Company and was established in accordance with the legislation of the
Russian Feder ation.

As at 31 December 2008 the Group was controlled by OJSC TVEL, which possessed 99.99 percent of the shares of
:the Company. OJSC TVEL is indirectly (through OJSC -Atomenergoprom"ý) controlled by the State Atomic EnergTy
Corporation Rosatom (hereinafter - "Rosatom'.). As at 31 December 2009 the Group is controlled by' Rosatomi

'wihpossesses 80.345 percent of the shares of the Company.

Rosatom is-a special form of legal entity according to Russian legistation, established by the Russian Federation
based on separated property principle owned .by Rosatom. Its governing bodies are appoin ted by the President of
the Russian Federation and the Government of the Russian Federation.' Rosatom executes the shareholder right in
respect of joint stock companies, which shares belong to Rosatom according-t the legislation on joint stock
companies..

Principalr ctiviy The. Groti's prinia activity is ura-nium exploration anfd mining on the territory of the Russian
Federation and the Republic of Kazakhstan.

The legal address and placemof activity. The:legaL address of the Company is 22, B. Drov•anoy per., Moscow,
190,the Russian Federation,.

Operating environment of the Group. The Russian: Federation displays certain characteristics of an emerging
ma rket, including relatively high inflation and high interest rates. The global financ ial crisis has had a severe• effect on the Russian economy since mid-2008:

(i) Lower commodityprices have resulted :in lower income from exports and thus loWer domestic demand.
.Russia'secon~my contracted in 2009.

(ii) The rise in. Rusjian and emerging market risk premium esuilted, in a steep i ncease in foreign financing
costs.

(iii) The depreciation of-the Russian R6uble against hard cur••ehncies ý(compared to RR 25.3718 for USD1.00. as
at 1 October 2008) i'ncr~eased the burIde of forign currency corporate, debt, which has risen considerablyv
In. recent years.

,(IV) As part of preventive steps to ease the efects, of the situation in financial markets on the economy, týh e
,Government incurred a Large fiscal deficit in 2009.

Borrowers and debtors of the Group were adversely affected by the financialand economic environment; which in
turn has had an impact on their ability to repay the amounts. owed. Deteriorating econom ic conditions for
borrowers and debtors were reflected in revised estimates of expected future cash, flows in impairment
assessments.

The tax, currency and customs legislation within the Russian Federation is subject to varying interpretations and
frequent changes, and other legal and fiscal impediments contribute to the challenges faced by entities currently
operating in the Russian Federation. The future economic direction of the Russian Federa~tion is largely dependent
upo "n .the effectiveness of economic,, f inancial and monetai mesue udraken1 by' t h G overnment, togethe r
with tax, Legal, regulatory, and political 1 develop ments.

Management is unable to predict all developments in the economic environment which could have an impact on
the Group's operations and consequently assess the potential effect, if any, they-could have on the future
financial[position of the Group.

Establishment of the Group. The state corporat ion Atomredmetzoloto was established in 1992 on the basis of the
former 1st Chief Division of the Ministry of med .ium mechanical engineering of th e US.51SR and operated within the
Ministry of an atomic energy of Russia. In 1995 the State Corporation Atom redmetz loto was reorganized into Open
joint Stock Company (AOOT), and in 1999 re-registered in the same legal form .OJSC (OAO) due to the changes in
,the registration of legal entitles.
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1OJSC AtomredmetzoIoto
Notes to the Combined and Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 .December 2009
(in thousandsof Ru'ssianRubles u Iess noted otherwise) ." .....................

Note 1. Group and Group's activity (continued)

.In 2007 in the process of formation of the State atomic holding OJSC Atomenergoprom, which consolidated all civil
:atomic enterprises, and Atomic Energy Corporation Rosatom, 100 percent of shares of the Company were
transferred to OJSC Atomenergoprom. Within the restructuring process the Federal . agency of atomic energy
,(subsequenty :Rosatom) assigned t•"o the C ompany the function of raw materials supply to Russian nuclear industr.
For this purpose.the uranium.expidration .and minin.g assets controbled by the Russia n Federation were consolidat e d
in one GroQup.
As a e•sult during 2007-2009 the Company acquired controt or significant influence in the following subsidiaries,

asso.ciates and jointly controlled entities:

:acquired through the common control transactions from OJSC TVEL'and OJSC Tehsnabexport, including:

-OJSC Priargunskoe proizvodstvennoe gorno-chimici~heskoe .ob'.edinenie (OJS.C PPGHO);
-(CSSC DaPur;
- OJSC Khiagda;
- OJSC Uranovaya gbrnorudnaya kompaniya (UGRK);
- C-ISC Rusburmash;
-:CiSC Lunnoe;
-:OJSC Korporatsiya Razvitiya Yuzhnoi Yakutii;
- JSC Joint Venture Zarechnoe;
- JSC Joint Venture AKbastau (25 percent+1 shiar~e);
- CJSC TV-Centr (subsidiary of OJSC PPGHO);
- LLC Joint Venture Rusburmash-Kazakhstan (subsidiary of:CJSC. Rusburmash.);
- LLC Dalur-Finance (subsidiary of ýCJSC.Datur);'

- LLC Schekotovo.

* established by OJSC Atomifredmetzi6lotb and its subsidiaries during 2007-2009, including:

- CJSC Elkonski Gorno-Mettalurgichesky Kombinat (GMK);
- CiSC Uranium mining company Gornoe;
- CJSC Olovskaya gorno-chimicheskaya kompanlya;
- LLC Karkhu Geologiya;
- LLC Control centre Urandobycha;
- LLC Edinaya servisnaya kompaniya (ESK) ARMZ;
_ Runex Uranium PTY Ltd.;

-Northern.Basins Uranium Ltd.;
-CJSC Armyano-rossiyskaya gornorudnaya~kompamiya;

- LL.CDa'Lur-Service (subsidiary of CJS IC Datur);
- LLiC Streltsovsky stroiteLno-semontnyi trest (subsidiary of OJSC PPGHO);
-LLC Upravlenie obshestvennogo pitania i roznichnoi torgovUi (subsidiary of OJSC PPGHO);
- LLC Avtotransportnie perevozki (subsidiary of OJSC PPGHO);
- LLC Avtokhoziaistvo Urtuiskoe (subsidiary of OJSC PPGHO);

-LLC Predpriati~e elektrosviasi (subsidiary of OJSC P.PGHO);
-LLC Remontno-mekhanicheskyi zavod (subsidiary of OJSC PPGHO);
_ Vostok Power'Resourses ...Ltd.

* acqUired from external counterpartes, inuding:

LLC Agrofirma Itmanovo;
LLC Geostar (subsidiary o I f f LLC Agrofirma itmano0v);

:-7 Effective Energy N.V.;
- JSC Joint Venture Axbastau (25 percent- 1 share);
, Uranium One Inc.

Description of business combination transactions isprovided in Notes. 1..and 5.

The list.of the* G IIroups. s.ubsidiaries,: associa.tes and joi.n.tly controed. ent.ities .is provid ed below.
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OJSC Atomredmetzoloto
Notes to the Combined and Consolidated Financial'Statements for the year ended 331 December 2009
(in th~ousands of Russian Rubles unless noted otherwise):(i i~o s~n •• ~usi~n•Rd~e•:un~s :•o a o he~ s•).... .. ..... .. -" .... ........ .......

Note 1. Group and Group's activity (continued).

Group's effective i nterest
- in voting shares as at

31 December 31 December Incorpo-
-Name Type of activity 2009 2008 ration

Subsidiaries:
•OJSC Prargunskoe proizvodstvennoe iUranium mining 79.33% 78.61% Russia
gorno•chimicheskoe ob'edinenie (OJSC
!PPGHO) (1)

.CJSC DaLur (2) Uranium mining 98.67% 97.97% Russia
OJSCKhiagda Uranium mining 100.00% 1.00.00% Russia
CJSC Eukonski Gorno-Mettalurgichesky Uranium. 100.00% 1001.00% Russia
Kombinat (GMK) -exploration
CJSC •Lunoe Uranium and gold 50.03% 50.03% Russia

explorationCJSC.Uranium miningcompany Gornoe Uranium: 100.00% 1000O% RusSia. . . . . . .. . . . ... g • . . . . . y ..:. . . .. .

exploration.
.:CjSC .)Oovskaya gorno-chimicheskaya Uranium: 100.00% 1D00.00% Russia
kompaniya exploration
LILC Geostar Zirconia ore 10.0.00% 100.00% Russia

exploration
LLC Agrofirma Itmanovo Other assets 100.00% 100.00% Russia
.LLC .Karkhu Ge[ooia.. Uranium 51 .00% 51.00% Russia

exploration
LLC Dalur-Finance "Financing activity 985.67% 97.97% Russia
CJSC T- CentrW(3) Other assets 460%45.60%. Russia
LIC Control centre Urandobycha Service6 coompanhy 1.,0.0.00% 1090.00%o Russia
OJSC Ura~novayja gornorudnaya 111Manii.A gem .ent 1.0 .0 .00% 100. :00% Itussia
kompaniya (UGRK) company
CJSC Rusburmash (4) Service• ompany 100.00% 51.ý00% Russia
LLC Joint Venture Rusburmash- Service :company 51.00% 26.01% Kazakhstan
Kazakhstan (3)
LLC Edinaya servisnaya kompaniya Service company 96.33% 87.94% Russia
(ESK) ARMZ (1), (2), (4)
-LLC Streltsovsky.stroitelnoremontnyi. Service company 79.33% Russia
trest (5)
LLC Upravlenie.obshestvennogo pitania Service.company 79.33% - Russia
iroznichnoi torgovli (5)
LLC Avtotransportnie perevozki (5) Service company 79.33% RAussiMa
LLC Avtohoziaistvo Urtuiskoe (5) Service company 79.33% -Russia

LLC Predpnatie elektrosviasi (5) .. Service company 79R33- Rssi a
LLC Remontno-mekhanichesky zavod. Service company: 79.33%, 7 Russia
(5)
LLC.Schekotovo (6) Service company 99.99% - Russia
Vostok: Power Resourses Ltd. (7) Service company 100.00% - UK
Effective Energy N.y. (8) Managemnent 100.00% Nethierlanids

...... company
LLC:bDaur.Service:(7) Service bompahy' 98.67% . Russia

135C J~~~~~int ...~ur Z r n ........................Associates and jointly controlled entities:
JSC Joint Venture Zarechnoe
JSC Joint Venture AKbastau (8l)

Runex.Uranium PW Ltd.

North~ern Bsins Uranium Ltd.

OJSC Korporatsiya Razvitiya Yuzhnoi
Yakuti
Joint Company Armyano-rossiyskaya
gornorudnaya kompaniya
Uranium One Inc. (9)

Uranium mining
Uranium

exploration and
mining

Uranium
exploration

Uranium
exploration

Service company
SUranium ,

exploration
Uranium mining

49.67%
50.00%

50.00%

49700%

50.00%

49. 67% Kazakhstaan
25-.00% Kazakhsan

50.00% N.amnibia

49.:00%

25. 10%

50.00%

Canada
Russia

Russia

Canada

..... ..... ..........
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,OJSC Atomredmetzoloto
Notes to the Combined"and Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
(in thousands of Russian Rubles unless noted otherwise),

Note 1. Group and Group's activity (continued)

(1) In 2009 the Company contributed RR 1,576,702 thousand in the:slhare# capital OJSC PPGHO,. As a result, the
Cormpany's share in O.JSC PPGHO increasIed, from 78.61 percent to 79.33 percent. The change in non-controtting
in .terest was refLected i n .the Statement of Changes in Equityb n the date of :he'transaction.

(2) In 2009 the Company contributed RR 1,126,478 thousand in the share capital of CJSC Dalur. As a result, the,Company's share in CJSC Dalur increased from 97.97 percent to 98.67 percent. The change in non-controlling
intere•t was reflected in the Statement of Changes in Equity on the date of the transaction.

(3) CJSC TV-Centr and LLC Joint Venture Rusburmash-Kazakhstan are considered as subsidiaries, as they are
controlled by OJSC PPGHO and CJSC Rusburmash respectively, which, in its turn, are controlled by
OJSC Atomredmetzol6ot.

(4) In 2009 the Company acquired 49 percent CJSC Rusburmash from Veselu Estates Limited. The acquisition cost.
was RR 600,237 thousand paid in cash. In addition, CJSC Rusburmash as of the date of actquisition owned1 percent of LLC Joint Venture Rusburmash -Kazakhstan. Th reflecein

the Statement of Changes in Equity on the date of the transaction.

(5) In'2009 OJSC PPGHO founded 100. percent controlled subsidiaries LLC-:Streltsovsky strpoitelno-remontnyi treSt,
LLC Upravlenie' obshestvennogo pitania •i roznichnoi torgovli, LLC AvtotransporLni• per•evozki, LLC Avtohoziaistvo
Urtyiskoe, LLC Predpriatie elektrosviasi,.LLC Remontno-mekhanicheskyi zavod.

(6).In 2009 LLC . Edinaya servisnaya kompaniya ARMZ acquired 98 peIrcnt in ILLC Schekotovo from
:OJSC Tehsnabexport. Acquisition cost was RR 126,061 thousand. The Group recorded a transaction in the
:Statement of Changes in Equity as acquisition of the entities under common control.: Besides, in 2009 LLC Edinaya
.servisnaya kompaniya ARMZ acquired 1 percent in LLC: Schekotovo from LLC Kraun. Acquisition cost was
RR 1,211 thousand. The Group recorded the transaction in the Statement of Changes in Equity. Aisoj in 2009

•:LLC Edinaya servisnaya kompaniya ARMZ maid contribution of RR 9,999.9 thousand into LLC Schekotovo. The Group
recorded the transaction in the, Statement of Changes in Equity..

(7)I n 2009 OJSC Atomredmetzoloto founded a subsidiary Vostok Power Resource Limited in the 1UK. The company
wa ..s founded to cairry-out international projects of OJSC Atomredmetzoloto, to implement assignments of
OJSC Atomredmetzot on prvso of -non-governmenit -finaincing of uranium-miningpoetooraiewk
witi potential investors and internation~al consultants.

.In 2009 CJSC Dalur.dunded 100 percent subsidiary LLC Dalur-Service.

(8) On.5 March 2009 the Group acquired 1 pc of Effective Energy N.V Netherlands). At the purchase date.
,Effective Energy N.V. :was a holding company and did not conduct any own activity. The major assets of Effective

;Eneirgy NiVý.. were investments into LLC Karatau (50 percent) and JSC Joint Venture Aibasstau :(25 percent less
1 share),.Which are engaged in exploration, mining and processing of uranium in K.aakh-stan.. See Note 5.

(9) ýOn 14 December 2009 Effective Energy N.V. sold 50 Percent of LLC (a6ratau to"Uranium One Inc. The payment:
included 117 million shares of Uranium One Inc., which made 19.95 percent of:share capital.
OJsC Atomredmetzoloto and Uranium One Inc. signed a off-take.agreement on purchase of uranium concentrates,

enntitling OJSC Atomrdmetzoloto to purchase frorm Uraniurm One Inc:.,the greater of:

,-r.5.0 percent of annual forecast production of uranium concentrates by LLC Karatau, ior
- 20 percent of total annual production of concentrates by Uniam One Inc.

OJSC Atomredmetzoloto and Uranium One Inc. entered into a framework: agreement, under which
Uraniumr One Inc. received a right of first offer on assets of OJSC Atomreametzoloto outside the Russian
,Federation, in case the OJSC AtomredmetzoLoto decides to sell them. :In addition;, OJSC ý:Atom:redmetzoLotoreceive -d a seat 'on th.e Board of Direct ors of -Uranium One." Inc.. as at 31 December 2009. Furthermore another
.representative of the Group joined the Board of Directors in MayV2010 after the shareholders of"Ur:nium One Inc.
,approved increase -of Its membership.

As a result of the transaction; the Group acquired a significant influence..n Uranium One :Inc. Investment in
Uranium One Inc. is accounted for under the equity method in the combined and consolidated financial
:statements.. See also Note 5.
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OJSC Atomredmetzoloto
Notes to the• Combined and Consolidated Financial Statemen ts for the year ended 31 December 2009
(in thousands of Russian Rubles unless noted otherwise). .... ......... .. .. ............... .. ..........

Note 2. Basis of preparation

Basis of preparation of the financial statements. These•ormbined and consolidated fihancial statements have
been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Repo ring::Sta~ndards (IFRS)S using the historical cost
convention...

These consolidated financial statements are combined as acquisitions of subsidiaries"from parties under common
cont .r .oI. a..r .e .a.c counted f or using po olI.IIng of interests m ethod. Unrder this method, :the busine ss combination in the
combined and consolidated financial sta .tements of the combined entity is presented as if the businesses had been
combined fromn the beginning of the earliest period presented (which is 1 January, 2008) o, iflter the date when
the combined entities were first brought under common control.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these combined and consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all th 6eriods presented; e!bept
for specifically disclosed circumstances (refer. to.Note 3).

Going concern basis. The finan•i. a statements have been prepared, o the basis that tthe G roup will contin , ue as a
going cnen

Presentation currency. Unless: stated otherwise, the financiial information in hb t cmbined .and consolidated
,financial statements is presented in thusands of Russian roub.es. (RR),

Reclassificat ions. The. Gr~oup. revi~s~ed i Jts approach to c~siiainof mineral extraction.. tax. As a result, the.
.amounti of taxes other than income tax in cost of sales increased by RR 284,790 thousand, in comparative period,
and the amount of taxes other than income tax in administrative and setting expenses decreased by the
ýc orrespondcing amount.

Moreover,.in 2008 consulting expenses in administrative and selling exxpenses increas6d by, RR 22,251 thousand.
Other administrative expenses were decreased correspondingly.

Adoption of New or Revised Standards and Interpretations
Certain new standards and interpretations becameeffective for the Group from 1 January9200:

.AdoptionoflAS 1 , Presentation of Financial Statements (ievised in September 2007 and effective for annual
periods beginning on or after I January 2009). The main change in lAS 1 is th~e replacement of the incomne
statement by a'staitement of comprehensive income which includes all non-ownedr changes in equity, such as ýthie
revaluation of avaiable-f or-sale financial assets. Alternative•y, entities are allowed to present two statements: a
separate income statement and a. statement of comprehesive i Tncome..he Group has. eleced to present A
statement of comprehensive income. The revised 1AS I also introduces a requirement to present a statement of
financial position (previously balance sheet) at the beginning of the earliest comparative period whenever the
entity restates comparatives due to recLassifi!cations, changes in accounting policies, or corrections of errors. The
revised lAS I had an impact on the presentation of the Group's Combined and Consolidated Financial Statements,
but had no impact on the recognition or measurement of specific transactions and baiances....

Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards (issued in May 2008). In 2008, the Intern atlinal
Accounting Standards Board decided to initiate an annual improvements project as a. method of making necessary,

.but non-urgent, amendments to IFRS. The amendments consist of a mixture of substantive changes, clarifications,
and changes in terminology in various standards. The substantive changes relate to the following areas: possibility
of presentation of financial instruments held for trading as non-current under lAS 1; accounting for sale of lAS 16
assets which were previously held for rental and classification of the related cash flows under lAS 7 as cash flows
from operating activities; clarification of definition of a curtailment under lAS 19; accounting for below market
interest rate government loans in accordance with dAS 20; making the definition of borrowing costs in lAS 23
consistent with the effective interest method; clarification of accounting for subsidiaries held for sale under lAS 27
and IFRS 5; reduction in the disclosure requirements relating to associates and joint ventures under lAS 28 and I.
31; enhancement of disclosures required by lAS 36; clarification of accounting for advertising costs under lAS .3 8;
amending the definition of the fair value through profit or loss category to be consistent with hedge accountin, g
Under lAS 39; introduction of accounting for investment properties under construction in accordance with lAS 40;
and reduction in restrictions over manner of determining fair value of biological assets under lAS 41. Further
amendments made to lAS 8, 10, 18, 20, 29, 34, 40, 41 and to IFRS 7 repiresent terminology or editorial changes
only, which the IASB believes have no or minimal effect on accounting. Improvement to IFRS 5 in respect of
classification as held for sale in case of a loss of control over a subsidiary (effective for annual periods,:starting
from 1 stJiuly 2009) was not early adopted by the Group.
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OJSC Atomredmetzoloto
Notes to the Combined and Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended .31 December 2009
.(in thousands of Russia~n-.Rubie&s unltess noted otherwise).

Note 2. Basis of preparaioan (iontinued)
Puttable Financial Instrumen 6 and Obligaitons Aisingon Liquidation - lAS 32 and lAS I Amenlment. The

amendment requires classification as equity of. some financial Instruments that meet the definition of financial
liabilities. The ameidmerit did not have an impact on the combinedland consolidated financial statements.

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations - Amendment to IFRS 2, Share-based Payment. The amendment clarified
that only service conditions and performance conditions are vesting conditions. Other features of a share-based
payment are not vesting conditions. The amendment specifies that all cancellations, whether by the entity or by
other parties, should receive&'the same. accounting treatment. The amendment did not'have. an impact on the
combined and consolidated, fin!ancial.tstatements.

IFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes. IFRIC 13 clarifies that where goods or services are sold together with a
customer Loyalty incentive (for example, loyalty points o r free products), the.arrangement is a u .tip ieelement
arrangement and the c6nsideration receivable from the customer is allocated between the components of the
arrangement using falir values. The amendment did not. have anI4 impact on the..combine ad consoidated financial
statements.

IFRIC 15, Agreementi for the Construction of Real Estate; The interpretation applies to the accounting for
revenue and associated expenses by entities.that undertake the construction of real estate, dirhectly or through
subcontractors, and provides guidance for determining whether agreementsfor the construction of real estate are,
within the scope of •AS 11 or lAS 18. It also provides criteria for determining when entities.should recognise
revenue on: such. transactions. The amendment did not have any material impact on the combined and
consotidated fina.cialt statements.

Cost of d.annrInvestment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate - IFRS I and lAS 27 Amendment,
issued in May 2008. The amendment allows first-time adopters of IFRS to measure investments in subsidiarieis,
Jointly controlled entities or associates at fair value or at previous GAAP carrying value as deemned.,cost in the
separate financial statements. The *amendment also requires distribiutions from pre-acquisition net assets of
investees to be recognised in prnofit-or loss rather than as a recovery of the investment. The amendment did not
have an impact on the combined and consolidated financial statements.

Improving Disclosures about Financial :Instruments :r Amendment to IFRS 7, Financial Instruments::
Disclosures, issued in March 2009. The amendment requires enhanced disclosures about fair value measurements
and liquidity risk. The entity is required to disclose an: a•n••alysis of financial instruments using a three-level fair
value measurement hierarchy. The amendment (i) clarifies that the maturity analysis of liabilities should include
issued financial guarantee contracts at the maximum amount of the guarantee in the earliest period in which the
Eguarantee couldbe called; and (ii) requires disclosure of remaining contractual maturities of financial derivatives
if the contractual maturities are essential for an understaning o he timing of the cash flows. An entity MR
further have to disclose a maturity analysis of financilal Assets it holds for managing liquidity risk, if that
Information is necessary to enable users of its financial'statemnents to evaluate the nature and extent of liquid ity':
risk. The enhanced disclosures are included in the combinedad c•• nsolid.ated financial statement . . :: :: .-... '

Embedded Derivatives - Amendments to IFRIC 9 and:lAS 39, issued in March 2009. The 'amendments clarify
that on reclassification of a financial asset out of the at fair value through profit or ýloss category, all embedded
~derivatives have to be assessed and, if necessary, .separately accounted for. The amendmhent did not have an
impact on the combined and consolidated financial statements.

IFRIC 16, Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation. The interpretation explains which currency risk
exposures are eligible for hedge accounting and states that translation from the functional currency to the
presentation currency does not create an exposure to which hedge accounting could be applied. The IFRIC allows
:the hedging instrument to be held by any entity or entities within a group except the foreign operation that itself
is being hedged. The interpretation also clarifies how the currency translation gain or loss reclassified from other

,comprehensive income to pr:ofit or toss is catculated on disposal of the hedged foreign operation. Reporting
entities apply lAS 39 to d:.iscorininue hedge accounting proýspectiv•y when their hedges do not meet the criteria for
hedge accounting in IFRIC 16'. IFRIC 16 did not hav an impct on the combined and consolidated financial
statements.

The International Financial Re'porting Standard for Sma I and Mediumi-sized Entities (issued in July 2009) Is :a
self-contained standard, tailored to the needs and capabilities of smalter businesses. Many of the prihnciples of full

iFRS for recognising and measuring assets, liabilities, income and expense have been simplified, and the number of
required disclosures have been simplified and significantly reduced. The IFRS for SMEs may be applied by entities
which publish general purpose filnancial :stateiments for external Users and do not have public accountability. The
IFRS for SMEs is not. applicable, to the.,Group.

.15



OJSC Atomredmetzoloto
Notes to the Combined and Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
(in.thousands of Russian Rubles unless n otedotherwise)

Note 2. Basis of preparation (continued)

lAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and consequential amendments to lAS 28,
Investments iný: -ssociates (revised in January 2008; effective fr annua periods beginning o. or after 1 July

2009). The revised IAS 27 will require an entity to attribute total 'comprehensive income to the owners of the
parent and to the non-controlling interests (previously minority interests) even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance (the current standard requires the excess losses to be allocated to the owners of
the parent in most cases). The revised standard specifies that changes in a parent's ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in the loss of control must be accounted for a's -equity transactions. Revised
.requirements aiso specify how an entity should measure any gain or loss arising "on the loss of control of a
:subsidiary or: l"': f significant influence over an associate. The,(Group early adopted..thei revised Standard.

IFRS 3, Business Combinations (revised in January 2008; effective for business combinations.-for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 July
2009). The revised IFRS 3 wit[ allow entities to choose to measure non-controlting interests using the existing IFRS
3 method (proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets) or at fair value. The revised IFRS 3 is more
detailed in providing guidance on the application of the purchase method to business combinations. The
requirement to measure, at fair value every asset and liability at each step in a step acquisition for the purposes.of
.calculating a portion of goodwill has ,been -removed. Instead, in a business combination achieved in stages, the
acquirer will have to remeasure its previously held equity interest in the acquiree at its acquisition0-date fair value
and recognise the resulting gain or 1ss, if any, in profit or loss. Acquisition-related costs wit( be accounted for
,separately from the business combiniatino an and therefore recognised as expenses rather than included in goodwill.
An acquirer will have to recognise at the acquisition date a liability for any contingent purchase consideration.
Changes in the value of that Liability after the acquisition date wilt be recognised in accordance with other
applicable IFRSs, as appropriate, rather than by adjusting goodwill. The revised IFRS 3 brings into its scope
business combinations involving only mutual entities and business combinations achieved by contract alone. The
.Group early adopted the revised Standard. As a result, accounting for business combinations, the Group 1)
expensed all consulting expenses related to the business combinations; 2) acquired minority interests were
:accounted in combined and consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Unl 1.nIess s I tated otherwise, am6,endments anid interpretations had no significant effect o; the combined and
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

New standards and interpretations that are imiandatory for acceptance to the integration of the Group :for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1i Januaryý2•20.1ý: after :that:date and have not been earlyvadopted by the
Group:

IFRIC 17, Distribution of Non-Cash Assets to Owners (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2009). The amendment clarifies when and how any distribution of non-cash assets as dividends to the
owners should be recognised. An entity should measure a liability to-distribute non-cash assets asa: dividend to its
owners at the fair value of the assets to, be distributed. A gain or loss on disposal of the distributed non-cash assets
will be recognised in profit or Loss when the entity -settles the dividend payable. IFRIC 17 is not relevant to the
Group's..operations because it does not distribute non-cash assets to owne rs.

IFRIC 18, Transfers of Assets from ,Customers (effective for annual periods beginning op.on or a ter
I July 2009). The interpretation c•arifies the accountinglfor transfers of assets from customers, niameLy, the
circumstances in which the definition of an asset is met; the recognition of the asset and the measurement of its
ýcost on initial recognition; the identification of the separately identifiable services (one or more services in
exchange for the transferred asset); the recognition of revenue, and the accounting for transfers of cash from
customers. IFRIC 18 is not expected to have any impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

IFRIC 19, Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1I July 2010). This IFRIC: clarifies the accounting when an entity settles its debt by issuing its own
equity insttruments. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or toss based on the fair value of the equity instruments
compared to the carrying amount of the debit. The. Group is currently assessing the impact of the interpretation on
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Eligible Hedged Items - Amendment to IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
.(effective with retrospective application for:annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009). The
amendment clarifies how the principles that determine whether a hedged risk or portion of cash flows is eligible
for designation should be applied in particular situations. The amendment is not expected to have any impact on
the Conso[idated Financial Statements as the Group does not appLyh•edge accounting.

IFRS 1, First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (following an amendment in
December 2009, effective for the first IFRS financial statements 'for a period beginning on or fter 1 July
:2009). The revised IFRS 1 retains the suibstance of its previous version . but within a changed structu6re in order to
make it easier for the reader to understand and better accommodate• fkure changes. The Group c 6oncluded that

hte revised st6a.dard does not h have any effe.ct0 on the combined and consolidated financial state men .
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OJSC Atomredmietzoloto
Notes to the Combined and.Consolidated Financial StOtemntsifor the •year eded 31 December 2009
,(in thousands of Russian Rubles unless noted otherwise)-- -----

Note 2. Basis of preparation (continued)

Grou iCash-settled Share-based Payment ýTransactions -Amendments to IFRS 2, Share-based Payment
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after I January 2010). The amendments provide a clear ba~sis to
determine the classification of share-based payment awards in both consolidated and separate financial
statements. The amendments incorporate into the standard the guidance in IFRIC 8 and IFRIC 11, which are
withdrawn. The amendments expand on the guidance given in IFRIC 11 to address plans that were previously not
considered in the interpre Itation. The amendments also clarify the defined terms in the Appendix to the standard.
The Group does not expect the amendmentsito have any material effect on the combined and consolidated
financial statements.

Classification of Rights Issues - Amendment to lAS 32 (issued 8 October.2009; effective for annual periods
beginning n or a.fter:1.February 2010).:The amendment exempts certain rights issues of shares with proceeds
denominated in foreign currencies .from c .lassification IAs financial derivatives. The Group does not expect the
amendment to haviekea•niy material effect'on. combined and consolidated financial statements.

Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards (issued in April 2009; amendments to IFRS 2,
lAS 38, IFRIC 9 and IFRIC 16 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009; amendments
to IFRS 5, IFRS 8, lAS 1, lAS 7, lAS 17, lAS 36 and lAS 39 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2010). The improvements consist of a mixture of substantive changes and clarifications in the following
standards and interpretations: clarification that contributions of businesses in common control transactions and
formation of joint ventures are not within the scope of IFRS 2; clarification of disclosure requirements set by IFRS
5 and other standards for non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale or discontinued

.operations; requiring to report a measure of total assets and liabilities far each reportable segment under IFRS 8
:only if such amounts are regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker; amending AS •I to allow
classification of certain liabilities settled by entity's own equity instruments as non-current; changing lAS 7 such
that only expenditures that result in a recognised asset are eligible for classification as investing activities;
.allowing classification of certain long-term land leases as finance leases under ]AS 17 even without transfer of
..ownership of the land at the end of the lease; providing additional guidance in 1AS 18 for determining whether an
entity acts as a principal or an agent; clarification in iAS 36 that a cash generating unit shall not be larger than an
operating segment before aggregation; supplementing lAS 38 regarding measurement of fair value of intangible
assets aqie in a business combination; amending lAS 39 (i) to include in its scope option contracts that could
result in business combinations, (ii) to clarify the period of reclassifying gains or losses on cash flow hedging
,instruments from equity to profit or loss and (iii) to state that a prepayment option is closely related to the host
contract if upon exercise the borrower reimburses economic loss of the lender; amending IFRIC 9 to state that
embedded derivatives in contracts acquired in common control transactions and formation of joint ventures are
not within its scope; and removing the restriction in IFRIC 16 that hedging instruments may not be held by the
foreign operation that itself is being hedged. The Group does not expect the amendments to have. any material
effect on its financ~ial statements.
Amendment ta lAS 24, Related Party Disclosures (issued in NoIVeb r 20 0 and effective for annual periods
beginning on or -after I January 2011). 'AS 24 was revised in 2069 b: (i)6 simptifying the definition of a related
party, clarifying its intended meaning and eliminating inconsistencies; and by (ii) providing :a partial exemption
from the disclosure requirements for govern ment- related ent ities.- T he: G r o.Up has early adopted the amendment to
lAS 24 regarding partial exemption for government related entities. The6 new requirement is to disclose for
'government related entities onLy individually significant transactions and transactions that ma e coective
s~igni ficant.

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments Part 1: Classification and Measurement. IFRS.9 was issued in :November 2009 and
replaces those parts of lAS 39 relating• o the classification and measurementtof financial assets. Key features are
,as follows:

" Financial assets are required to be classified into two measurement categories: those to be :measured
subsequenittl•y at fair value, and those to be measured subsequently at amortised cost. The decision is to be
made at initial recognition. The classification depends on the entity's business mode f.or .managing its
financial Instruments and the contractua••c•ash fltow characteristics of the instrument.

" An inst ument is subsequently measured at amortised cost only if it is a debt instrument and both (i) the
objective of the entity's business model is to hold the asset to collect the contractual cash flows, and (ii):the
asset's contractual cash flows represent. only payments of principal and interest.(that is, it has only basic Loan
features). Al( other debt instruments"are to. be measured at fair value through profit or Loss.

* All equity instruments are to be measured subsequently at fair value. Equity instruments thati:are held f ofr
trading witl be measured at fair value through profit or Loss. For all other equity investments,:an irrevocable
election can be made at initial recognition, to recognise unreatlised and realised fair va•lu• gains and losses
through other comprehensive income rather than profit or los .s. Thelre ýis to be no recycling o f fa~ir value gains
and losses to profit or loss. This election may be made on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Div•idenidcs are to
be presented in profit or loss, as long as they represent, a return on investment.
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OJSC Atomredmetzoloto
Notes to theýCombined and Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December .2009
(in thousands ofiRussian Rubles unless noted otherwise)

Note 2. Basis of preaparatOn (continued)

While adoptibn of IFRS 9is mandatory from 1f Januar 2013, earlier adoption is perm itteId.

The Group is considering.the implications of the Istandard, 'the impact on the Group and the timing of Its adoption
by the Group.

Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters - Amendments to IFRS 1, -First-time Adoption of IFRS
(effective for annual periods beginnin on or afteI January 2.0,10). The amendments exempt entities using
the full cost method from retrospecctive application of IFRSs for oil and gas assets and a(so exempt entities with
existing teasing contracts from reassessing the classification of those contracts in accordance with IFRIC 4,
De~termining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease when the application of their national accounting
requirements produced the same result. The amendments will not have any impact on the combined and
.c .o nsoLidated finiancial statemrents.

Unless otherwise described above, the new standards and interpretations are not.expected to significantly affect
the Group Combined and: Cdnsolidated Financial Statements.

In the :combined and consolidated financial statements, the Group haýs not ear,•yadop••ted new standards and
interpretations, listed in the note Adoption of New or Revised Standards and Interpretations which are effective
from 1 January 2010 or after this date, except for early adoption of lAS 24 regar~ding partial exemption from the
disclosure requirements for state -control[led entities.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts recognised in the combined and consolidated
financial statements and the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next. financia• year. Estimates
and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on management's experience and other factors, including

.expectations of future events that are believed to be reason able under the circumstances. Management also
makes certain judgments, apart from those involving estimations, in the process of applying the accounting
policies. Judgments that have *the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the combined and
consolidated financial statements and estimates that can cause a significant adjustment to the carrying amount of
.assets and Liabilitie~s within the next financial year include:

Provision for impairment of items of property, plant and equipment and construction in progress. At the end.
of each reporting period the Group's management assess whether there is any indication that the carrying value of
Group's property, plant and equipment and construction in progress may exceed their recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of fixed assets and construction in progress is the greater of two values: the fair value of the
:asset less costs to sell and its value in use. If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount,
,the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. The amount of impairment re~cognze i
the statement of comprehensive income in the period in Which the fact of impairment has been identified, .If
ýcircumstances change and the management of the Group com-es to the conclusion that the vlu~e of propert~y, plant
and equipment and capital construction in progress has increased the provision for impairment will be fully or
partiallyrrestored.

The estimated useful lives of the items of the property, plant and equiphient. Assessment of useful lives of
the certain item of property, plant and equipment is the subject of :judgment of:the Group's management, which
is formed on the basis of experience preparing judgments about other similar assets. In determining the useful Life
of an asset management takes into accolunt the initen.ded use, estimated technica'l obsolescence, physical
deterioration, as well as the actual conditions of use of the asset. Changing any of these conditions or estimates
may•lead to an adjustment of the depreciation rates, in future. periods.
Deferred income tax asset recognition. Deferred tax asset represents Income taxes recoverable through future

,deductions from taxable profits and is recorded in the statement of financial position. Deferred income tax asset is
recognised to the extent that utilization of the related tax benefit is probable. The futu ,re ta .xable pro .f i t ,s and -the
amount of tax benefits that are probable in the future are based on medium-term business plan prepared by
.management and extrapolated results thereafter. The business plan is based on management expectations that,.are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

.Provision for retirement obligations. In accordance with collective agreements of OJSC: PPGHO and CJSC :Dalur,
ithe employees are paid additional compensation at retirement. The retirement obligations Irecognized in financial
statements of the Group, are the discounted.value of these payments.

Present value of liabilities Is evaluated at the p0resent value of expected future cash outflows using real long-term
interest rates.
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Note: 2. Basis of preparation (continued)

'Environmental obligations..Environmentat obligations include decommissioning and Land restoratioin costs. Future
decommissioning and land restoration costs, discounted to net present value, are capitalised and
correspondingdecommissionin g obligations raised as soon as the constructive obligation to incur such costs arises
and the future decommissioning cost can be reliably estimated. Capitalised amounts are depreciated together,
with respective items of property, plant and equipment. The effect of discount on the decommissioning obligation
is inc'uded in interest expense. Decommissioning obligations are periodically reviewed considering current Laws
..and regulatidns, and adjustments made as necessary. Ongoing rehab .ilitation co ,s t s are expensed when incurred.

Note 3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The combined and consolidated financial statements. Subsidiaries are those ý:companies (Including special
purpose entities) in which the Group, directly or indirectly, has .an initerest of more thIan i0 percent of the voting
rights or otherwise has power to govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain economic benefits. The
'existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group has-the power to govern the financial and operatingt policies of another entity,
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group (date of acquisition) and
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The purchase mre~thod of accounting is used to account for the' acquisition of 'subsidiaries. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the fair value of the assets transferred, equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or taken on at the date of exchange, and costs directly attributable to the acquisition. The date of
i.exchange is the acquisition date where a business combination took place as a resul~t of a single transaction, and is
the date of each share, purchase, where a business combination is achieved in stages.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the acquirer's share of the fair value of the net assets of the acquiree.
at each transaction date is recorded as goodwill. The excess of the acquirer's interest in the net fair value of the.
identifiable :.a*sets, liabilities and contingent Liabilities acquired ýov ,er cost (negative goodwill) is recognised
:immediately in the statement of comprehensive income.... .

Identifiable :assets and liabilities acquired and contingent Liabilities assumed in a business combination are
.measured at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority•interest, except
for conditional obligations under the income tax which are estimated according to IAS 12 "Income taxes". The

,ýdifference, if any, between the fair vaLues of the net assets at the date of exchange and -at the date of acquisition
:is recorded directly in equity.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains o tfiatnsactions between the Group companies are
:eliminated; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the Cost cannot be recovered. The"Company and all its
subsidiarie~s apply unique accouniting policies consistent withthe Grou~p',s policies.

:Non-controlinIg interest is the part of the net results and the net assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests,:which are not owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company. Non-controlling interest forms4aseparate component.:
ýof the.Group's equity.

P.iurchase of minority interests. The difference (in the presence of that) between balance cost of:a minority
intere Ist and the *amount paid for its acquisition is recorde~d directly 'in equity.

Purchases of subsidiaries from the parties under common control. Purchases of subsidiaries from parties under
common control are accounted for using pooling of interest accounting method. Under this method the
consolidated financial statements of the combined entity are presented as if the businesses had been combined
from the beginning of the earliest period presented or, if later, the date when the combining entities were first
brought under common control. The assets and liabilities of the subsidiary transferred under common control are
.accounted at the predecessor entity's carrying amounts. The difference between net assets, including the goodwill
recorded at the predecessor statement of financial position, and the consideration paid:is recorded in the present
combined and. consolidated financial statements as merger reserve.

Investments in:associatesand..Jointly €ontrolled entities. Investments in associates and jointly controlled
entities are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, based upon the percentage of ownership held by
.the.,Group. Associates are entities over Which the Comp any has significant inf luence b5ut not control.

When the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or. exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise urther: losses, unless it has. incurred -obligations .or made
payments on behalf of the associate.
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Note 3i.Summary of significant accounting policies (continue~d)

J6intly controlled entIities are joint ventures that involve the estabLishment of a corporation, partnership or othler
entity in Which each Venturer has an interest.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity rmethod from the date on which it ceases to .have joint control over,
or have significant influence. on jointly controlled, e :ntities and asso ciates.

Uneaisd ais n ranscin with associates. and jitycontrolled entities are eLimiae toteetent of the

Group' s int eresit in the entitiy.

Financial instruments - key measurement terms, Depending on their classi•fication financial ihstruments :i:are&
ýcarried at fair value, cost or amortised cost as desre••bd below

Fair value is the amount for. hih an asset could be ecnedoralbitysettled, between knowledgeable,
willing parties in an arm's length transaction. Fair value is the current bid price:for financial assets and current
asking price for financial liabilities which %arequoted in an active market. For assets and liabilities with offsetting
market risks, the Group may use mid-market prices as a basis for establishing fair values for the offsetting risk
positions and apply the bid or asking price to the net open position as appropriate. A financial instrument is
regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange or
,other institution and those prices, represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm'.s Length
basis.

Valuation techniques such as discounted cash.flows models or models based on recent arm's Length transactions or
:consideration of financial data of the investees are used to determine the fair value of certain financial
instruments for which external market pricing information is not available. Valuation techniques may require.
assumptions. not supported by observable market data. Disclosures are made In the financial statements if

:ichangin g any such assumptions to a reasonably possible alternative would result: in significantly diffferent profit ,

inc1 r.ome, total *Assets or total Liabilities.

Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other consmideration given to.acquire anP,
asset at the time of its acquisition and includes transaction costs.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the. acquisit ion, issue or disposal of a
financial instrument. An incremental cost is one that would not have been i nc urre d i f tK&the t ransac q tion had not
taken place. Transaction costs include fees and commissions paid to agents (including employees acting as silling
agents), advisors, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes
and duties. Transaction costs do not incl~ude .de~bt premiums or discounts, financing-costs or internal administrative
,or holding costs.

Amnortised cost is the, amiount at which the financial instrument was recognised at initial recognition less any
.principal repayments, plus accrued interest, and for financial assets less any write-down for incurred impairment,
losses. Accrued interest includes amortisation of transaction costs deferred at initial recognition and of any
premium or discount to maturity amount using the effective interest method. Accrued interest income and
accrued interest expense, including bath accrued coupon and amortised discount or premium (including fees.:
deferred at origination• •f any), are not presented separately and are included in the carrying values of related:
items of the s~tatement of financial position.

The eff•ectie interest method is a method of iatlcating interest income or interest expense over the relevantý
period so as to achieve a constant periodic rate of interest (ef ,fective interest rate) on the carrying amount. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (excluding:
future credit Losses) through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, if appropriate, to%
the net carrying amount of the financial instrument. The effective interest rate discounts cash flows of variable
i nterest instruments to the next interest repricing date except 'for the premium or discount which reflects the
credit spread over the floating rate specified in the instrument, or other variables that are not reset to market

:rates. Such premiums or discounts are amortised over the whole expected life of the instrument. The present
Value calculation includes ALL fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the
:effective interest.

,C lassification of financial assets. The Group class .i fies i.ts finansial assets into the following categ'ories: a) loans
and receivables, b) availabLe-for sale financial assets and c) financial assets held-t-•maturity.

Loans.and receivabLes are non-derivarive financial assets with fixed or measureab[l payments, which are not::
activelly .traded on the market,.excluding those which the Group oin he nearest future.
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Held to maturity investments a-e nion-derivative financial assets with fixed or measureable payments, Which are
not traded on the , market and the Group. has intentio n a nd :abi(it to hold until :edeffption The Gr.oup
classifies,
Note3. ySummary of significant accounti n po•icies ý(conied)

investment securities as held-to-maturity at their initial recognition and evaluates the ýreasonableness of initial
classification at each reporting date.

ýDerivative financial instruments include caL options, acquired by the Group.

Classificationoffinancial liabilities. Aol other financiat iabikities are accounted at amorised cst.

Initial. recognition of financial instruments. All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised at
fair value p lus transaction co ts:•. Fair value •t initial recognition is best evidenced by the transaction price. A gain
or loss on initial recognition is only recorded if there is' a difference between fair value and transaction price
which can be evidenced by other observable current miaýket transactions with the same instrument oir by a
valuation technique whose variable inputs include only data from observab•e markets.

•ttp~cl~~e~a•d a .s of financialaets that
All purchases and sales.o...............thatrequire delivery within the time frame establshed by regulation or
market convention (regularway purchases and sales) are recorded at trade date, which is the date that the Group
commits to deliver a financial asset. All other purchases and sales transactions are recorded atdelivery. date, and
corresponding change in value for the period from initial recognition of liability till the date of delivneryo is not,
recognized with the respect to assets, accounted at acquisition cost or amortised cost; recognized through

statement of comprehensive income for investments available for trading; for financial assets available.for sale -
recorded through equity. accounts.

Derecovantien of6 finan cial assets. The Group derecognises financial assets when (a)sthe assets are redeemned o
the rights -to cash flows from ntheassets otherwise expired or (b) the Group has transferred the rights to..the cash
flows from the financi- al assets or entered into a qualifying pass-through arrangement while (i) also transferrin Ig
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets or (ii) neither transferring nor retaining
Substantially all risks and rewards of ownership but not retaining control. Control is retained if the counterparty
,does not have the practical ability tosl h sen ýits entirety to an unrelated third party without ne, eding to
impose additional restrictions on the sale.

Securities held to maturity. Securities held to maturity are recorded at amortised cost using effective interest
rate methodnlerss impairment losses.

Derivative financial instruments. Derivative financial insiruments.are initiall recogInnised at fair value on the
.date a derivative contract is e tered intoand are subsequently remeasured at their fair value.

The Group,'s policy is to measure these rinstruments at fair value, with resulted gains or'losses being reported
within the consolidated statement of comprehensive, income.t Dertivative financia i instruments are noti accounted
for as hedges.

Accounts rdeeivable. Trade and.other accounts receivable are recorded at amnrtised cost calculated using the
:effective interest rate methad Provision for. impairment of loans issued and account . .s receivable is established if
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect amounts when initially due. The provision
.amount is calculated as the difference between the carrying value of an asset and the present value of expected,
cash flows discounted at the initial effective interest rate corresponding to the initial financing terms. The
provision is recorded in the statement of comprehensive income. Main factors which ae considered by the'
-Management while assessing the possible impairment of accounts receivable, are used to be overdue status and
re .c overable. vaue of collateral if any. The following other principal criteria are also used to determine that there
is objective evidence that Ain impairment loss has occurred:

- delay in any regular payment that cannot be explained by operating delays;

-the debtor. experiences significant financial problemsri,! which ýis confirmed byfiinancial informnation on the.
debtorý availtable to the Group;

- the d~ebtor faces bankruptcy .1or other f inancialrtestr ucturing;

- a negative change of the debtor's payment:,status conditioned by, changes' in the national ,Or tocal
economic environment affecting the borrower;.

- collateral value (if ýavailable) Significantly decreased as a result of maiirket deterioration.
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Cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include cash In hand, demand deposits with banks and
other high-liquid sh•Ort-term investments with origoi nal maturities of less than three months. Cash•and cash
e.quiv~alents

Note 3. Summary fi significant accounting policies (continued)

.are accounted for at amortised cost calculated on the basis of the effective interest method. Restricted cash
balances are not considered as part of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the cash flow statement. Cash
balances with restrictions on exchange or use for repayment of obligations within at least 12 months after the
reporting date are included in other long-term assets..

Borrowings. Borrowings are recorded at amortised, cost Using the effective interest method, :Interest costs hon
loans receive .d fo .r financing the construction of the property, plant and equipment are capitalised. in the cost of
these assets during the period required to complete and prepare these assets for their :intended use. Other
expenses rela tingl toborrowings are recognised in the: statement of comprehensive income.

In cases, when thelqualified asset cannot be directly assigned to borrowed facility, for example, when the Group
attracts financing on a centralized basis; the amnt capitalized interest is calculated using capitalisation
multiplied by the amount of expenses attributable to qualified asset. CapitaLisation rate is weighted average
actual borrowin .g . r.ateý of the.G~roup, ex cluding borrowings which can be directl attributed to the qualified asset.

Trade payables. Trade payables are recorded based on the actually performed contractual obligations and
accounted at amortised cost u.sing...... the effective interest method.

Property, plant and equipment. Items of property, :plant and equipment are measured at the historical cost.
Initial cost includes interest on for purpose and non for purpose financing of cosrcinof corresponding ite~ms.

Repairs and maintenance costs are included in the current period's expenses. Cost of replacing of major' parts.0 orcoimpionent&s of prtemiSes an;d eqiiientites is capitalised and the rep Laced part Iis retired,

At each reporting date management assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication for impairment exists, management of the Group estimates the recoverabke amount, which is
ýdetermined as the higher of an asset's fair value Less costs to sell and its value in use. The carrying amount is
reduced to the recoverable amount; the impairment loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
An' impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior years is reversed if there:has been: a change in the estimAtes,
:us .ed to determine the asset's value, in use or fair value less costs to sell.
Gains.and losses on disposals determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount are recognised in the'

:statement of comprehensive income.

..Depreciation. Plots of Land owned by the Group are not depreciated. Depreciation of items of property iplant and
equipment which are used in the process of uraniu~m mining is recogni .sed using units of production method 'where
it most closely reflects the expected pattern of, c6nsumption of the :future economic benefits embodied 'in the
:asset. Depreciation of other property, plant and equipmnt is calculated using the straight-line method to write
down their cost to their residual values over their estimat useful lives at the following annual rates:

Useful life.(years)

Auxiliary fixed assets: -20 -7 50
Buildings and constructions .10,7 55
Machinery and equipment 5 - 20
Motor transport 4-.,8
Other 5 .-,10

Liquidation value of the asset represents net proceeds as a result of potential sales of tthee asset less selling costs
assumning that the remaining u seful. Life of the asset and its techni ,cal condition I s -close to the end of its estimated
useful life. Liquidation :value is deemed to be zero in• case the GrouP intends to use the asset. tifi: the.end of its
physical life. period. Liquidation .valu.Ye and useful livesW ofssets are ire-consiidered and ad.justed if required at each
:reporting date.

Exploration and.evaluation assets. Expenses for exploration and evaluation. of Uranium fields are capitalized
from the momenttlhebGroup receives permission or license for explorationand evaluation works.

Exploration and evaluation expenditures include feasibility studies, geophysics and seismology, land works,
exploratory drillinig, and activties in relation to evaltuating the technical feasibility and commercial. viability of
.extracting the uraniuma ore.

Exploration and evaluation assets aire transferred to p roper. ty, pla nt ,and equipment or, intanigible!assets when the
.technical feasibility anid comm~ercial viability of extracting the uranium -ore a~redemonstrabe.16
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Notel3. SUmmary of significant accounting poicies (_ontinPued)

Exploration costs incurred before the receipt of licenses (rights for exploration) are called preliminary exploration
costs and expensed in the period when incurred. Such costs include project operational works, technical feasibility
studies and overheads connected to preliminary exploration. Alltgeneral overiheads which cannot be directly
attributed toexploration and evaluation works, expensed when incurred..

Depreciation of e ,xploration and evaluation assets commences from the momenit When .cormmerc ial~ min6ing of
uranium ~starts. Exploration and evaluation assets are depreciated using units of production method.

In the combined and consolidated financial statements exploration and evaluation assets are not depreciated
because as at 31 December 2009 the commercial mining of uranium has not commenced at the e an
evaluation stage.

Operating leases. Where the Group is a lessee in a lease which does not transfer substantially all the risk a ' ndi
rewards incidental to ownershipfrom the lesr to the Company, the total tease payments, including those on
expected termination, are charged.. to the statement of comprehensive iincome on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease. The period ofdthe lease is the non-cancellablte tease periodi for which the Lease has concluded
lease contract with additional conditions, according to which the lease has the right for continuing of the Lease
with additional payment or without it, in cases, when as of thebeginning of the period there 'is a ,certainty
that the lease intends to use the right.

Finance .leases,. Where the Groupiisa lessee in a lease Which transferred substanti•lly a•a the risks and rewards
:incidental to ownership to the Group, the assets leased are capitalised in property, plant and equipment at the
commencement of the tease at the lower of the fair value of the (eased asset and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Each Lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to
achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of future
finance charges, are included in debts. The interest cost is charged to the statement of comprehensive income
over the lease period using the effective interest method. Assets acquired under finance lease are depreciated
.within lower of their economic useful life period and Lease maturity terms in case the Group has no evidence that
it will receive ownership rights for the asset after the moment the leas6e agreement is over.

Exploration and mining licenses., Exploration and mining iUcenses are measured at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment l Iosses. All licenses are included into the intangible assets All Licenses
ýare dIe 1p re ,cia.t ,ed starting f Iro m the momeht of comrial mining of the uranium usin unit ofpoutio mthod.

:Other intangible assets. All other intangible assets have definite useful life period and include' other licenses,
• ca pitalized:software and trademarks, .

Acquired licenses, software and trademarks :are capitalized in the amount of actual costs including costs for
.installati~o*n -ajnd apreparatýion for it use.

.Expenditure for development of unique and identifiable software which is controlled by tIhe Group is recorded as
intangible assets in case the potential economic benefit exceeds incurred expenses. Capitalised costs incLude
salary of personnel involved in the development process and corresponding overheads. All other casts including
technical support are expensed as inc~urred,

Intangible assets are amor•ised on a straight line basis with. n the period of their usefuH life:

.Useful life ý:(years)

Licen.es excluding explor ...ation an.d ..min. o lie.nses .2-3
Other intangible assets. 3 - 5.

In case of impairment the carrying amount of intangible asset"is being written'down to the lowerof sýelling value
Less costs to sell and value in use.
Income taxes. Income taxes are recorded in the combined and consolidated financial statements in accordance
with Russian legislation enacted or substantively enacte .d by the reporting date. The income tax charge comprises
current tax and deferred tax and is re Icognised in the combined and consolidated statement of comprehensive
income except if it is recognised directly in equity because it relates to transactions, that are also recognised, in
the same or a different period, directly in equity.
Current tax represents the amount to be paid or refunded from the taxation autIhorities in respect of taxabie profit
or loss for the current or previous- periods .Taxes .other Ithan on income are Inc•luad in other.a8dinistrative
expenses.

23,



OJSC Atomredmetzoloto
Notes to the C omb ined and Consolidated FinancI ial Statemnents for the year ended 31 December 2009
(in thousands of Russian Rubles unless noted otherwise)

Note 3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Deerdincome tax is provided using the balance ,sheet* Liability method for deferred tax losses and temporary
"differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes. In accordance with the initial recognition exemption, deferred taxes are not recorded for temporary
differences on initial recognition of an asset or a liability in a transaction other than a business combination if ýthe
transaction, when initially recorded, -affects neither accounting nor taxable profit. The carrying amount. of
deferred tax is calculated on the basis of tax rates that are expected to apply in the period, when temporary
'differences are reversed or deferred tax Losses are utilised, on the basis of tax rates enacted or substantively
.enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets are set off against deferred tax liabilities only within individual
companies of the Group. Deferred tax assets relating to deductible temporary differences and deferred tax losses
'are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
;deductions can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on post acquisition retained earnings of subsidiaries and also other changes in
:subsidiaries' post- acq ui sition reserves, except where the Group controls the subsidiary's dividend policy and i t is
probable that the difference will not reverse through dividen~ds or otherwise in the foreseeable future.
The management reviews the Group's uncertain tax positions at each reporting date. Liabilities are recognised for
those income tax positions, that, according to the management's estimates (based on interpretation ifs of.thie taax

legislation enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, or other available judicial or other. decision),
wi[l most probably lead to additional tax assessments if these positions are challenged by the tax bodies. Liabilities
for penalties, interest and taxes other than on income are recognised based. on ther management's best: estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the obligations at the reporting date.

Inventories. Inventories are accounted for at the lower of cost and net selling price. Cost of inventories is defined
using average weighted cost. Cost of finished goods and work in progress includes cost of raw materials, direct
labor and other direct costs and corresponding portion of overheads calculated based on budgeted absorption rates
and excludes finance costs. Net selling price is potendtialselling .price ,in the normal course of business less costs to
.complete production and, less selling costs.

Prepayments and advances. Prepayments and advances are recorded at initial costs less impairment provision.
Prepayments are classified as Long-term in case the expected terms of goods and services receipt exceeds 12
months or if the prepayment relates to the asset which is to be recorded as non current at initial recognition. The
amount of prepayment for acquisition of the asset is included in its cost in case the Group obtains control ove0r this
asset and existence of expectations to receive economic benefits in the future. Other prepayments are posted to
profit and loss at the moment when goods and services are received. In case there is an indicator that goods and
services will not be received by the Group, the prepayments are written to profit and loss.

Share capital. Ordinary shares and non-cumulative non-redeemable preference shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as deduction from income
received fr:m' share issue, excluding taxes. The excess of actual proceeds of the share issue over the nominal
amount of shares issued is recognized as additional paid in capital.

Dividends. Dividends are recognised as liabilities and deducted from equityýat the reporting date only if they were
,declared ..be Ifore the. reporting date, Info~rmati~o:n ,'o:'n ,d~ivi'de~n.ds is disclosed in the financial statements if they were
recommended before the reporting date, and also recommended or declared after the reporting date and before
:the combined and consolidated financial statements are authorised for issue.

Value added tax. Value added tax (VAT) arising on sales of products is subject to~paymente to Ithe budget on the
earlier of: (a) the date of receipt of receivables from clients; or (b) the date of delivery of goods or services to
clients. VAT included in the cost of acquired goods and services is generally subject to refunding through offsetting
with VAT on sales revenue after receipt of the invoice. The offset is carried out in accordance with the tax
legislation. VAT relating to sales and purchases is recognised in the combined and consolidated statement of
financial position on a gross basis and disclosed separately in assets a.nd Liabilities. In creating provisions, for
impairment of receivables, impairment losses are recognised in full, including VAT.

Provisions. Provisions are recognised in case the Group as a result of past event bears legal or other accepted
liabilities which probably will. lead to potential outflow of resources of the Group which can be reliabily estimated.
,In case the Group has the number of analogue potential obligations the possibility if resources outflow is estimated
for the whole class of obligations. Provision is recorded even in case. the possibility is, remote for one of such
potential obligations.

in cases where the Group, expects indemnity against the provision, foro fexampe as a res ut of ainsurance con tract0 :i h ; .. ... .. ..... ... .. .... ... .. ........ . ... . .. . .. ....... ..... . . .. .. . . ... .... . ... . .. .signed, the indemnity amrount should be recorded separately as an asset if the possibility o this co.mpensation or
.asset receipt-is high.

En Ivironmental obligations. Environmental obl~igations include decommissionin:Ig a -nd l tAn d re s ,to .ration c osts.
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Note 3. Summary bf significant accounting policies (continued)

Future decommissioning and Land restoration costs, discounted to net present value, are'capitalised and
corresponding decommissioning obligations raised as soon as the constructive obligation to incur such costs arises
and the future decommissioning cost can be reliably estimated. Capitalised amounts are depreciated together with
respective items of property, plant and equipment. The accrual of discount on t he decommissioning obligation
is included in interest expense. Decommissioning obligations are periodicaLLy reviewed considering current, laws
and regulations, and adjustments made as necessary.

Foreign currency. The furctional currency of the Group is the currencyof primary-economic en ironment of the
Group 'and where the Group performs its operating activity. Functional currency of :the Compaany and presentation
currency of the Group is national currency of Russian Federation R Russian Rouble' (RR).

Monetary assets and liabilities, held by the Company and denominated in foreign currencies at the r6porting
date, are translated into RR at the exchange rates set by the Central Bank of the Russian Federation at the
date. Gains and Losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of the
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income. The non-monetary balance sheet items including investments into equity instruments
are not recalculated at the year end exchange rates. The foreign exchange gains and losses incurred as a result
of changes in fair value of equity financial instruments are recorded through profit and Loss from change in fair
value.,

Recalculation off functional currency into the presentation currency. The. financial :results and financial
position of each Group company (which functional currency is not currency of hyperinflatlOnary economy) is
recalculated into the presentation currency in the following way:

(i) assets andliabilities are recalculated at closing (or reporting date) rate:.

(ii) revenues and expenses in the statement of comprehensive income are recalculated at the average rate for
corresponding period (if the average rat i s not an approximation of the average rates as of the dates of
transactions the revenues and expenses are recalculated at the rates valid as of the dates of transactions);

(iii) currency translation effect Is recorded as separate component of equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments incurred as a result of acquisition of foreign subsidiary are recorded as assets.
and alabilities Of foreign investment and recalculated at closing exchange rate. On disposal of subsidiary as a result
of sales, liquidation, distribution of equity, discontinuing operation of part or whole of the business currency
translation effects recorded as component of equity-are written off1t the statement of comprehensive income.

Revenue recognition. Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the moment of transfer of risks and rewards
connected with ownership rights for these goods, usually"at delivery moment. In case the Group takes
responsibility to deliver goods tIill specific location, revenue is recognised at the moment the goods reach this
location.

Revenue from sale of services is recognised in the reporting period when these services were performed taking into.
.consideration percentageof. completion of services atthe reporting date compared to contracted amount,.

Revenue is recognised net of VAT and rebates.

Re ve enue fromn the sale of goods is meas•red a t the fair valueof :the consideration receive d or "to be received. If it
is impossible to evaluate fair value of goods received under the barter transaction, the revenue is recognized at:
:fair value of the goods and services sold.

Interest income is accrued proportionally in accordance.with terms of financing using effective interest rate.

E•mpIyee compenistion. Accrual of payroll, contributions to the pension fund of the Russian Federation and the
socl In surance fund, paid annual leave and sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits is made in the period
when the services that define the named types of remuneration were provided by the employees of the Group.

In accordance with collective agreements of OJSC PPGHO .and. CSC Dalur, employees are paid additional
.compensation at retirement. In addition, OJSC PPGHO and CJSC. Dalur provides personal payments to ex-workers -

non-working pensioners, and also pays the cost of travel to the place of vacation. Commitments to the above
benefits recognized in the financial statements of the Group represent the discounted value of these payments.
Thus, when evaluating the commitments it was assumed that alL employees will work till retirement-.

Present value of liabilities is evaluated at the present value of expected future cash outflows.,

Actuariat gains and losses arising from changes in actuarial assumptions and past service cost are recognized in
profi.tand toss account im~imediately. Evaluation of. th6 e obligations is carried out by the Group..
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Note :3. Summary'of significant aCounting policies (continued):

Ke- assumptions, used inxcalculatingothe liabilities relate to:
: discount rate;

* the average life expectancy of recipients of benefits.

::teN4. Related pafty transactions,

The definition of related parties is provided in.IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures. Parties are generatly.:considered
to. be retated if the partie i are under com.mon control or one party has the abiityitoo ontrot the other party or can
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and economic decisions or exercise general
co•ntrot over its operations. In con sidedring a0ch possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relationship, not merely the legal form, Information on: the ultimate controlling party and ot er
principal shareholder of the Group is disclosed in Note 1.

State-controlled entities. In the normal course- of business the Group. enters into transactions with entities
controled by the State. Taxes are accrued and paid under the Russian tax ý:legislation. Tax balances and expenses
Pre. disclosed in Notes 12, 18, 22, 23 and 25.

The balances with the statee-controlledentities are discloseedýbe6ow.

31 December 2009 31 December 2008
:Trade accounts receivable 131,641 107:446
.Other accounts receivable 8,184 3,886
'S~ettl~ement accounts with bAnks 6,2 ,4.. .... 6872 7,846 "•• •• ...: •L: ...

Term deposits with maturity..of less than three
Months 13,000
Advances issued 24,940 27,601
Advances, received 3,080 4,015
Loans received 3,814,340 407,000
Trade accounts payable 153,841 :113,561
Other a counts payable ... . .. ......... .. 21,738 11,312
the information on the significant transactions with.the state-controlled entities is provided below.

Year. ended Year ended..... 31 D.cember 2009 31.December20

Other revenue 256,326--------- 300,887
Raw materiats and goods (4,516)
Utilities (72,802)
Rent(127(39
Contracting services (61,174) ( 2.8 %I.9,..9..7%8..)

Interest expense (217,199)
,O6thedrincom eI (expensies) _ _ .- ............ (498) .. ...... ......... 246..

Sbbsidiaries and affiliates.of RosatOrn and associates and jointly controlled entities of the Company. The
relationship with the parent company Rosatom (31 December 2008: OJSC TVEL), its subsidiaries and affiliates
(companies under com mon control), as well as associates and jointly controlled entities of the Company, which the
group has entered into, significant transactions. with or has significant balances. as of 31 December 2009 is
,presented below.
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OJS04C Atomedmetzoloto
Notes to the Combined and Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
(in thousands of Russian Rubles unless noted otherwise)

Note 4..Related party transactions (continued)

Companies under common
control

.Associates And jointly
controlled entities

Trade accounts receivable, 1.,544,84661,5
O::ther:accounts receivable 7,494
..Advances issued 23,229 1,959,591
Long-term accounts receivable . 991,891
Loans issued 256,555
Advances received 178,975
Loans received 61,155
Contribution from'sharehoiders
Trade accounts payable ...... 1,345,913 74 196

..Other accounts payable ... ..... .. ý2,649

The income and expense items with related parties for the year ended 31 December 2009 were as follows:

,,CoMp'anies under commo'n Associates ahd jointly
...... .. .. . . ................... ........ .. control c.: ontrolled entities,

Sales of uranium : 21,198,066
Other revenue 26,743 262,560

Total 121,224,809 262,560

Purchases
,Cost of raw materials goods (1,858,581): (1 ,230489)
Rent, (1,347)
Contracting services (66)
Total (1 859,994) (1,230,489)

Administrative and selling expenses
Representative expenses(90
Consulting and information services (466)
Contracting services (4,324).
Other expenses, net (1,932)
Total: (7,622)1)

Other incomes and.expenses

.....!h ~ s .. o m ....... .. ...... .. . .. : .. ..... !3 ,7 6
Result on disposal offýixked assets (2,995)
,Interest income '230,765
Interest cost - (402)
Other income and expenses (787) 12
Other financial incomes and expenses69(9)
Total (3085) 29,679.

At 31 December 2008 the outstanding balances with related parties were as follows:

Associates and
Companies undeir Jointly controlled

. .............. OJSC: TVEL common control entities,
Trade accounts receivable 818,721 115,231 . 25,810
Other accounts receivable 977 23,750 32
Advances issued .57,468
Loans issued - 114,5864
Advances received 178,190
Trade accounts pay ble 49,078 134,911 188,479
Other accounts payable. 30,528 23454 .....
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OJSC Atomredmetzoloto
Notes to the Combined and Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
(in thousands of Russian Rubies Unless noted otherwise)

MNote 4. Related party transactionps (continued)

he. incomeand expense ite with relatd parties for the.yearenI..ded 31 D.ecember2008 e a.s.follows:

Associates and
Companies under jointly controlled

OJSCTVEL common cOntrol . entities
..Sales of uranium .. 3..79 798 3.335,703
Sates of coal 816,032

.§Sales of services 6,473 31 296
Total 9386,0271 4,183,031

Purchases

'Cost of raw materiats and goods (201)' 4, 108,877 :666,835
Rent (2,775i.
Contracting-g servc ,s (174,623) (1,04),
Repair and maintenance (892)
Total (177,599) (4;110,833)-: 666,835

Administrative and selling expenses
Repair and maintenance 89
Utilities . 51
.Contracting services .1,151 5,362
.Total 1,151 5,502,

'Other incomes and expenses
Interest income 6,174
Gain on disposal of property, plant and 6,410:
equipment
previous periods expenses - (3,76!)
Other income ' 1,224 3,661
other finance costs (1 ,230)
.otal_ 1,••. ....... I•224 -11,524

Remuneration pa Pid to the key management personnel. The information on the remuneration to the key
;manag~ement. pe ,rsonnel is presented in tablq:6ebeow:,

Year ended Year ended
...31 December 2009 31 December: 2008

ArPaid . Acued -- 'Paid'- Accrued

Salaries 95,212 109,439 74,518 85,653

Short-term bonuses . 100,158 104,053....., 14,468 16,630
Total 121,276 139:398-7 8,986 i02,283

. . . . .... . . .. . .... ... .. . .. .. - = . ... .. ... . .. . . ... . ... . . . . .. . . .. ....... ........... ....,. ..... . ... .. . ... . .. .

Note 5. .Business combinations

Acquisition of Effective Energy N. V. On 5 March 2009 the Company acquired 100 percent shares of Effective
Energy N.V. (the Netherlands). Purchase consideration amounted to US DotlarA470 million (RR 17,027,348 thousand)
and was paid. The balance ofcash of Effective Energy N.V. on the date of acquisition was RR 426 thousand.

Effective Energy N.V. was founded In September 2006 in the Netherlands. At the date of the acquisition Effective.
Energy N.V. was a holding company without any own business activity. The main assets of Effective Energy N.y.
Were financial investments in LLC Karatau (50 percent share in equity):and JSC Joint Venture Akbastau (25 percent .

less one share), which are engaged in exploration, mining and processing of uranium in Kazakhstan.

This acquisition was recorded as an acquisition of a group of assets, ,which include investments into LLC Karatau
and JSC Joint Venture Akbastau. Proportional allocation of the acquisition price of Effective Energy N.V. betwe:en
the investments in JSC Joint Venture Akbastau and LLC Karatau based on their fair'values as per the independent
valuation reporteis as follows:
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Note 5. Business combinations (continued).

Investment in LLC Karatau (50 percent share) 11,817,559
Investments in .JSC Joint Venture Akbastau (25 •percent: Less one share) 4,969,884
-Other assets 239,905.
'Total consideration - - 17,0273,348

As the result of the transaction, the share of.the Group in JSC Joint Venture Akbastau increased to 50 percent. The
Group recorded the investment in JSC Joint Venture Akbasta I in the ccombined and consolidated 1 inI ...anIl
statements using equity method. Allocation of the purchase consideration of JSC JoinCtVenture Akbastau based on
the independent valuation report is as follows:

Fair value
Carrying value adjustmen Fai Iau

N -Curren t assets .0, 6 45, 75155 13
Non-current assets 1,063,695 23i,196,056 24,259,751
Short-term liabilities (1,065,918) 23,203 (1 ,042,715)
Long-term liabilities .(164,:907) (4,808,915) i(4,973,822)
Net identifiable assets ( 198 8... ... :(57,46,9) 1 , 5 p 1 18i398,:35 i

Acquired share 25%

-Acquired net assets 4,559,587
Purchase consideration 4,969,884

Goddwill 370,1297.1:

;The share in LLC::Karatau was sold in.2009.:

Sale of LLC Karatau shares. On 14 December 2009 Effective. Energy N*V. sold 50 percent share in equity-capital of
*'LLC Karatau to Uranium One Inc. The paymnent was made b y:

- 1i7 million shares of Uranium .One Inc., which made 19.95 percent of. equity;
- romissory note of US Dollar 90 million (RR 2,716,989 thousand) with"maturitY of 12-months (Note 13.J

The promissory note anId accrued interest were•s.ettled in 2010; -...

- additional compensation in the amount of US DoIllar 60miltion (Note 10 and 12). The c6mpensation is to
be paid in three equal installments of US DolLarI 20 miltion in 201*0, 2011 and 2012. Additional
compensation is due for payment if revenue of LLC Karatau will be exempt from excess profit tax in
Kazakhstan. The first part in the amount of US Dollar 20 million was paid in 2010. The Group recorded
accounts receivable for compensation for all three periods at amortized cost as the receipt of
compensationis virtually.certain.

In September 2009 Effective Energy N.V. received dividends,.from LLC Karatau in the :amount of
RR 111, 939 thousand. Dividends were accounted in the combined and.::consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
'Income (Note 24).

The gain from the sale of investmen ts in LLC Karatau was RR, 2,693,89 thousand:

Fair value
Market value:of "Uranium One Inc. shares 10,089,3.90.
Promissory note of Uranium One Inc. (including accrued interest) 2,779,548
Additional comipen.nsation at amortized cost 1,634,.784
Total 14,503,722
Cost of investment in LLC Karatau* (11,810,033)
Profit from sale of share in'LLECKaratau 2;693;6489
Cost :of Ifvestment Ircludes: RR 11,817,559 thousand, allocated as a result of purchase of Effective EnrgNV. .. lbhn

5 March 2009 and currency translation effect In the amount of RR ,i526 thousan .

Investmen•It in Uranium One Inc. is accounted in thetcombined and consolidated financial statements baied on
equity method. Preliminary atlocationof the purchase of Udranium one Inc. is as follows:
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Note 5. Business combinatiohs (continued)

Fair value
Ca ,rry ,in .g v Yalue ajsmn , Fair value.

Current assets '8,5960371 8,596,037

Non-current assets 46,944,684 15,181,147 62,125,831

Short-termi: liabilities (8,110,375) (8,110,375)

Long-term liabilities (11•961,944) - (11,961,944)

:Net identifiable assets 35,468,402 115,181,147 t50,649,549
.Acquired share 19.95%

Acquired net assets 10,089,390

..Purchase consideration. 10,089,'390
Goodwill....... G ~ d ~ i ll ..... ..... ....... ... .. ... .. ... . .. . ... . .................. :.... •

Acquisition of LLC Firma Geostar and LLC Agrofirma Itmanovo. In 2008 the Group acquired 99.99 percent and
ý2'.03 percent shares in LLC Agrofirma Itmanovo And LLC Firma Geostar respectively from individuals.
LLC Atrofirma Itmanovo at the date of acquisition owned 97.97 percent share in LLC Firma Geostar. Purchase

.consideration was RR 97,986 thousand for the share in :LLC Agrofirma Itmanovo and RR 2,000 thousand for the
*share in LLC Firma Geostar...

The main aisets of LLC Agrofirma Itmano ire 5 land plots with the square of 52,196 hectares :near Itmanovo
*village,*.Gagarinsky district', Nizhny Novgorod region, and 97.97 percent shares in LLC Firma Geostar.

The main zissetsof LLC Firma Geostar is the license, issued on 10 July 1993 ývatid for the period of 25 years for the.
right of subsoil use for completion of geological study and mining at Itmnanovskaya placer of Lukoyanovsky deposit
,of titanium-zirconium sands.:.

For determination of the :fair. value of the acquired shares an independent evaluation was made. The fair value 6of
the; acq ui red Assets a nd Liabi lities was dete rm in ed by in d epe nde nt app rais~er ona discounted cash f low methodd'.

The excess of fair. value of the acquired assets over the acquisition cost of. sh.ares .:in LLC Firma Geostar and
LLC Agrofirm a Itmanovo in the amount of RR 417,463 thousand was . accounted for :in the combined and
consolidated a ..St -catement of.Comprehensive Income for 2008. The main reason for the excess was that the.Grop...
made a bargain purchase.
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.•Notes to •the Combined and.Consolidated Financial Statements for the year.ended 31. December. 2009
(in. thousands of Russian Rubles: unless noted otherwise)y

N6te::6. property, plant. and equipm e-nt

Auxiliaryfixed. Buildingsand Machinery and Otherjfixed: Construction in
Land assets constuctions e6Uipment. Motor .transpor.. assets:. progress Total.

Cost
•Balance as at: 1 :January 2008 6,337,8•4 12,688,974: 8,029,546 :1.017,550 0202626 2,330,162 •30606,702
Additions 721137 335,794 179,394)1 .16,.902. 3035,412. 3,574639
Acquired on acquisition of

: subsidiai.es 149,309 11,082 462 83 38 1,725 163,009:
Transfer 59,778 382,327: ::873,296 86,581 .72i583 (1,474,565)
Disposals . .(19,034) -(374,830) (89,169) J(24,143):: (01120) (24,984) (543,280)
Exchange differences . -- 1,.732 --- 11432 1. 33Z 5909 .781 1080 . 18615

Balanceasat31December2008 149,1309 6V378,588 112,7,16,422. 9,161.,361 1,263,055 282,120 3,868,8301, 33,8.19,685.

Additions .7,871 363,1 35 8,527, 71,389: 7,781 4,61,09• 5 5,11••798':
Transfer 2,949 .499,178 2:,980,830 550,728 .121,952! 17,6631: (471731,300) -,
Disposals -(12,223) (137,186) (92,658)_ (5,810) (9,663): (41 247) (298,787)
Exkchange differences. -(1,921) (12,402)(,2)78)(4) (20,078)

Balance asat31 December 2009 160:29-: 6,865,543 15,921,280 .9,615,556 1,446,457 :29.7,017 4,314,636 38,620,618

Accumulated depreciation: Balance
as at:: IlJanuary 2008 (4,569,977) (7,375,239), (6,748,603) (702,639) :(149%,483): (19,545,941),

Additions -(100,865), (277,705) (257,001) (108i845) (26,638) :(771,054):
Acquired on acquisition.of
subsidiaries* (185) Z'(428) (83): (234)- (930).
Disposals, 16,537 374,366: -70,433 22,013 :10,972 ,* 494,321:.

Exchange differences - (120) (269) (379).. (80) (1,848)::
Balance. as at31:aDcembe200 - (4,654,305) (7.2789883), (6,936,868) :w(789,933) (165,463) - (1•9•825,452),31.1 December 10(08 .. . ..

.:Additions ' (1002,973) -(409,678) (30,4964) (190,036): (41773). (1,ý049,424)
Disposals: 529 12,770 14,719 2,842: &6,287 - 37,147
Exchage differences 185 :2,082 625: 123 3,015Balance as at:
31 Dece ber 2009 (4,756,749) (7,675,606) (7,225,031) :(976 502). (200,826): :(20,834,714)'

Net book value as at 1
January 2008_. 1,...... . 767,867 5,313,735: 120933491 5,4 ,3,6 11,060,762'

...Met book ivalue. as :at E31NetD book:20u8 as at. 31. i149,309: 1,i724, 283: .5,437,539.! 2,.224:,493:: •474, 122: :116,657:: 3,868,:830 13,994,233:•

Net: bookvalue:as at31 160,129 2,1081794ý 8,245,1674.: 2,390,525 -469,955. 96,191 4,314,636 17,785,904
December 2009 .........
*The Group (Auxiliary fixed assets•) includes:high-voltage :transmission lines, pipelines, :heating systems and other facilities.
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Note 6. Property, plant and equ::ipmnt (continued)

Machilnery,: eup nt and trnsot grou Ips include assets received under the finance teae areents with the

carrying value ofRR.351,495 thousand as of 31: December 2009,(31 December 2008: RR 512,355 thousand).

Operating lease. The .Group teases a number of Land areas owned by locaL[ governments under, non-cancellable
operating tease agreements. Land lease payments are determined by (ease agreements. The future aggregate'
minimum Lease ýpayments undef non-cancellable operating Leases are as, follows:

31 December 2009 31 December :2008

Less than oinepyear 42,501 21,185

Between one year:and five years 211Y735 34,933

After five years. 1.12,86712,9
Total 17,10 3 18 1,01 1

The land areas leased by the Group are the territories on Whiich the Giroupp's electric power stations and other
assets are Located. The Leases typically run for an initial period of 5 - 49 years with an option to renew the Lease
after that date. Lease payments are reviewed regularly to reflect Market rentals.

Note 7. Intangible asseIt .s

Software in Other
Licences, development- assets o....tal.

].cost

iBalance as'at T'.January 2008' .136,299 1,088 137,387

Additions 493,936 ý42,095, 7,872 543,903
Addi~tions on acquisition of subsidiaries 347,673 . 4 347,.677
Exchangee differencels 8t
Balance as at 31 December 2008 977,908 42,095 8,972:.- 1028,975:

Additions 24,296 .90,352 781 115,429
DPisposals :(233,465) (8,464) (241,929l)

'.,Exchange ,diferen'ces ......... (3)ý .......-3
ý:Balaniceas atI 31.Dcemfbier. 2009 768,739! 132M44 ., 1292 902,475

Accumulated depreciation

Balance asat.:1 -January 2008 (3,667) .. (301) (3,968)

Amortisatio .n charge .(13,120). - 312) (13,432)
Additions on acquisition of subsidiaries (3) (3) (6)
.Amortisation on disposais_,.,, 17 17
'Balance' as at 31 December 2008. (16,790) - (599) (17,389)

Amortisation charge (9,639) (2,550) (23) (12,212)
Amortisation on dispopsaLs - 396- .396.
Balance as•at 31December2009 ... (26429) .. (2550)'- (226) '(29,205)

.. :..: .::.::.:. .:: ~ ~.:... . : - . ... .. ...... .. ..

Net book value.as at I January,.2008 132,632: 787 133,419
ýNet book alue as at 31 Deceember 2008 961,118' 42,095. 8,373 1,011,586
Net...book. vlue.as at 31.Decemer 2009,742,30 129,9894 1,066 873,270'•
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Note 7. Intangible assets (cointinUed)

Included under Licenses caption is the cost of licenses for exploration0 ad mining.

Remaining useful life of licenses is: Number of years

At existing deposits 5
At deposits under exptoratiinnd.devewlopment 1.. ..... 8.......... .. 8

Software in progress includes capitalized expenses ron implementation of Microsoft D namics (Axa.pta)software at
OJSC PPGHOin the amount of RR.92,888 thousand.

Note 8. Exploration and evaluation assets

Geology and Land and Feasibility
exploration - construction. works analysis Total-

Balance as at I January 2008 158,922 94,927 340573:: 594;422:

Additionns 365,1i128 307 1i31.,;644 497,079

.Balance as at 31 DOcemfber
2008 524,050 i.95,234 4.72,217 1, 091, j501

Rec lass to'construction in
progress (153,084) :(153,084)
Additions 1, 328,822 112,695 2.8203 1,469,720

0BAlancea• s at. 31,Decem...ber -f"'ý,.ý"........."........ -,. ... .
,2009. 1,852..872 .. 207.929 3'47:336 2,013
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Note 9. Investmehti s in a ssociates. an'd jointly coIn t•elled.tities

As t3..t31 Decembe r 2009 the Group's interests in associates and jointly controlled entities Were asfolttows:

'hare of profit (loss) Charged to
of associates and other. Acquired

.31. De~cem~berO Jointly controlled comprehensive. (Note5)/6 cont .ri .buted 31 Dece~mber.
:2008 entities incomme . to share capital 2009

"A ssociates ................ . .....

Uranium One Inc. 834 (250,130), 10,089,3-90 9,840,094
,AC Joint Venture
Zarechnoye 133,921 (123,8l06) (1 0,1.15)
PJSc Korporatsiya
Razvitiya Yuzhnoi Yakutili 17,738 10,739 925477NortI hern Basinsburanium
Ltd. 1,174: .. 17.. 236142T o tal~~ ~ inv stm n t .. .............. ... ... 7 . ... .. ........ . .. : " ... .......... . -, ,4 7
Total investments in
Associates 152,833 (112.216)• (260,009) 10,089•390 . 9,590969
.J!ointly controlled
entities

isc Joint Venture
Akbastau .3%0,,341 (747,37,0) 4,969,884 .4,252,855
Joint company Armyano-
rossiyskaya go .rn Iorudnaya
kompanltya. 2,332ý (8,112) 1, 16, 22,553 17,889
Runex Uranium PTY Ltd. 203 2- ~-8
,Total Investments n--
jointly .controlled entities . - 2,562 . . 22,266 .. (746,232) -4,992,437 . 4,27i,033..

Total. Investments in
associates and jointly
Controlled entities ..... 155,395,. :(89,50) 61 (1006241) 15,081,827: 14,141,031.

As at 31 December 2008 the Group's interests in associates and joint ly.controtted entities were as follows:

Share of profit (loss) Charged to,
of associates and other

31 December jointly controlled icomprehensive Dividends Contributed to 31 December
:2007: entities i income. received :share capital, 2008

:Associates ... .. ..

JSC Joint Venture
Zarechnoye 145,426 (14,03) 22,364 713,321
OJSC Korporatsiya
Razvitiya Yuzhnoi

:Yakutii :31,i.514 (13,776) : ' " 17,738
Northern BaSins
Uranium Ltd. . 9 (73) - 1,238 1,174
JSC: Joint Venture
Akbastau 1.............. 1,747 (14,232) 12,485
Total investments in
associates 178,687 (42,102) 34,776 :(19,766) 1,238 152,833
Jointly controlled entitles
Joint Company
Armyano- r.siyskaya..
gornorudnaya
kompaniya .(1,655) 396 -3,591 2,332
Runex Uranium PTY
Ltd. - :(3). - 233 230
Total Investments In
jointly controlled
eritities (1,655) . 393 3,824 _, 2j562
Total investments in
associates and,
jointly controlled
...ntities.178,687 .(43,757)______ 35169. 19,766). 50062 .. .. 155,395
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9. Investments into associates and jointly controlled entities (continued)

The following is the summarized financial information,:In agrregate, related to significant associates and jointly
€controlLed entities as of 31 December 2009:

Total Equity The country
.Name ............. ... ........ assets Total iiabilities Revenue I lncomel (loss) . share (%)_(Iofreistratio _

Associates
Uranium One Inc. 55, 540,721 20,07 3019 1,230,539 1-07,31090 .195.95% Canada
JSC Joint Venture
:Zarechnoye 3,072,025 3,081,:368 1,658,432 (249,2•1) 49.67% :.Kazakhstan
OJSC.Korporatsiya
Razvitiya Yuzhnoi Yakutii 122,055 8,603 80,068 42,783 25.10% Russia
Northern Basins Uranium
Ltd. 2 912 ... _ .. .. 17 .49.00% .. .. .Canada,

Jointly controlled entities
,JSC Joint Venture
Akbastau* 23,274,314, 6,455f,113 369,609 (24,892) 50.00% Kazakhstan
Joint Company Armyano-
.rossiyskaya gornorudnaya
kompani'ya 35,919 142 (183,478) . 50.00% Armenia

.RuneiuexUaniudmhPTY.Ltd ..... . 410-_ .go . .00%, Namnibia
*The amounti include fair value adjustmentr made upon iacpquisition f dadditional 25.percent share •IJf SC Joint VentureAkbastau.
:on 5 March,20019.

The following isý the summarized financial information, in agrregate, related to significant associates aiid jointly
controlled entities as of 31 December 2008:

Tota! Equity The country
Name ............... assets .. TotaI Iiabi ties.. Revenue, .. Ircom (loss) share (%)-ofiregistration

Associates
.SC Joint Venture
Zarech.n.oye 3i155,693 2,886,067 661,826 (28,380) 49.67% Kazakhstan

JSC Joint Venture Akbastau 900,839 959,501 3,582 (56,932) 25.00% KazakhstanrI

OJSC Korporatsiya
Razvitiya Yuzhnot Yakutiil 78,742 8,074 - (54,883) 25.10% Russia
Northern Basins Uranium
ltd.,. . .... ........ ...... 2,i395 -:.. ..... .. .... . . 7 49.00% ... Canada .
Jo.intly contraoled entitles ..-. ... .. . . . . . . . . ............... ................... ..........

Joint Company Armyano.
rossiyskaya gornorudnaya
kompaniya 7,214: 2,298 (3,3"10) 50.00% :Armenia
Runex Uranium PTY Ltd. 231 . . 50.00% Namibia,

Note:10. Other non-current assets

3.1 December 2009 .. 31 December. 2008,,
Long-term accounts receivable 1,021,927 23,348
Cash deposit 400,000,PromissOry notes 280,296

L:o. terr. . bor.roi.gs .granteid to.a related p.rt 2 5 5... .. 5.5..............5..... . .
Total financial. assets 1,95,8,778 . 23$,3489

'Long-term advances receivable 602,360
iLong-teirn VAT recoverable: .141,041 198,8791.
'.Total oh non-current assets 2702,179 :222,227

Long-term accounts receivable include receivable in 2011-2012 from Uranium One Inc. for the sale of LLC.Karatau
in the6 amount ofRR 991,891f thousand stated after deduction of a discountfin the amount of RR'212,837:thousand,
calculated atithe rate of 14 percent (Note 5).

Deposit in the amount of RR 400,000 thousandis paced in the OJSC National Reserve Bank. Term of the deposit is
'till: 17 February 201. Annual interest rate is 10 percient.
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The Group acqquired interest-free promissory notes of OJSC National Reserve Bank with nominal value of
RR 357,933 thous;nd with mtryon 17 February 2012 oua.wtmtrt0in exýchange for promnissýory notes. OJSC.AKB' Eletronika in
the amun of 255,67 thousand, which'the Group had a's at 31 December 2008.ý

Note •0. Other• :n-cu.rrent assets (continued)

The term of the long-term loans granted in US Dollars to. ASC Joint Venture Zarechnoye is 1 April 2012. the
effective interest rate is 14 percent.

In :21009 the Group.provided advances to JSC Joint Venture Zarechnoye a:n*d ,JSC Joint Venture Akbastau for the
:su ,pply of uranium. The value of advances as at 31 Decemrbe'r 2,009 is RR 2,286,964 thousand, including short-term.
porftion of RR 1,684,604 thousand (Note 12) and ton Ig-teArm prtio'n of RR 602,360 thousand.

Note 11. Inventories

.31 December 2009 :31. December:2008
Raw materials:"` 1,917,;087 1,459,873
Wiork in progress 580,822 :640,665
Finished goods 1,00423 5,291,257
Provision for.obsolete stock .(32,984): . "(39,268)
Tjotal inventories 4,265,348, ý...7,352, , 527

Movement in provisio~n for obsolete stock is provided b1Eýlow.

'Provision for obsolete.:stock:as at 1.January 2008. 36,139
,Charge for the period 3,129

P:rovision for obsolete stock as at 31 December 2009 39,268
Reversal(624

.Provision for obsoletestock as at 31 December.2009 324. .......... 322984 /

Note 12,. Accounts receivable and prepayments

31. December 31 December
2009 2008

Trade accounts receivable 4,991,778 1,207,106
Other accounts receivable.s 951,579 284,989
.Totalfinancialdaccouintsreceivable... _:_-5943'3,357 1A492,095

"VaUe added taix recoefable .851,106 165,909
Adv ances to suppiiers andi prepayments i, 684,604 521,222
Value added tax prepaid 235,052 755,040
Other prepaid taxes 202,762 18,366.
Other receivables .... 7,803, 98,569
Total accounts receivable and prepayments 18,9 8924,684 3,151,201

As of 31 December 2009 tr.ade accounts receivable include receivable fromn-two0 customers for uranium exports in
the amount of RR 3,121,413 thousand.aThendelivery was made in Late 2009. During 2010 the receivable has been
paid.

*As of 31 December 2009 other accounts receivable include receivable from Uranium One Inc. :fo, r the salevof
LLC Karatau to, Uranium One Inc. in the amount of RR 602.,364 thousand (Note 5).

The: provision for 'impairment of accounts receivable has been determined based on specific customer
identification, customer payment trends, subsequent receipts and settlements and the analyses of expected future
cash flows. Management believes that the Group entities will e able to realise the net receivable amount throu ,gh
.direct collections and other non-cash settlements, and the recorded value approximates their fair value.

Movements in the. impairment provision for trade and other'accounts receivable areas follows:
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Note 12. Accounts receivable and prepayments (coIntinued)

Financial accounts
receivable

Advances
1....... ... Issued

Provision for impairment as at I January 2008 404,961,8
(Release)/accrua I of bad debt provision, net (2,396) 1,531
Bad debt provision acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries 2,i 685

Provision for impairment as at:31 December 2008 42,550 ý23,997
.Charge for the period 27i,364 55,528

Provision for im•airment as at 31 December 2009 69,914+ ........ 79,525

Analysis by credit quaLity of accounts receivable is as follows'

31 Decerfiber 2009 31 December 2008
Trade :Other Trade Other

accounts :accounts accounts accounts
receivable : receivable receivable receivable

Current and -not Impaired accounts receivable -the

risk is associated with :
-Russian government 1 1,210 5,728 4,760
* Other Russian municipal authorities 28278 7,196 777,306 1,064
- Major Russian corporations 1,562ý,155L 186,343 1105.A,1,096 174,905

-Small companies 43,129 21,069 27,288 51,955
-Majo r foreign companies 3,1138,373 664,817 ý2.5,812 5.0,188

- Other .1,133 3,314 1 895 2.33

.Total: cLurrent and not impalred acc6unts..
.receivable .. :4,773,068 883,949 1,189,125 283,105

Due but not impaired
-Less 30 days :7,218 4,134 :528 235
30 to 90 days overdue 207,011 61,457 .7,2:44 200

-90 to 180,days overdlue 4,481 2,039 10,210: 1,4481

Total~~~4 debtntimard18710 6,630. 17,982 1,883

Individuatly defined as do6btfliL (total amount)
-90to 180 days overdue 4,812,3 10,28 1,448

- 180 to 360 days overdue 38Y465 24,929 7,094
- beyond 360days overdue - 21.706 2,094

Total of indiidually defined as:d:ubtful .2-946 26 968 .39,008 ,542

Less provision for doubtful ac cut is eceivable :(42,946) (26•68) (39,008) (3,542)

Total 4,.991,7 951,579, 1,207,106 184,9899
,:.. > :x :. :::.> :::: ;-: ';-:. : :< .:.; , • ..... .... . .: ; .:: . ... ... ....... ........:

Note 13. Other.icu rrent assets

31 Decembe-r 20931ecme 008
SBank promissory notes at amortised cost ... 2;,716,989 255,670.
Derivative financial instruments 260,737
Loans at amortised cost.
'(effective interest rate - 8%) ....... 192,636 259,998,
Total'other current assets 3,170,362 515,668

Within the terms of the selling transaction of LLC Karatau (Note 5) the Group has received a bank promissory note
Uranium One Inc. at the amount of RR 2,716,989 thousand (US Dollar 90 million). The annual interest rate was
4.75 percent. A promissory note with the accrued interest was settled in January 2010.
In August 2009 Effective Energy N.V. entered into two option agreements on purchasing of 18,936,600 shares of
Uranium One Inc.: (3.23 percent of the share capital) wih exercise dates in February March 2010. The Loss f rom
revaluation of the option agreements at fair value as'o~f ý31 Decemiber 2009 was RR 96,09.6.thousan ,d (Not~e 24).
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Note 14. Cash and cash equivalents

31 December 2009 31 December 2008
Settlement accounts with banks 18,666,521 2,373,389
Term deposits with maturity of less than three months 33,002,222 14,043
Restricted cash 1.6,0044 47,097

hCas.h 'nhand ..... . .. 400 425
Total cash and..cash equivalents 51,685,1 87 .2434,954,:

Restricted cash include cash placed on letter of credit accounts and cash in transit.

The main reason for the significant:increase in cash and cash equivalents.was receipt of fuinds.tO additional issue
of shares of •the Company (Note 15).

Balances on settlement accounts, term bank deposits are neither. overdue nor impaired. Analysis of lthe credit
quality of the balances in banks and short-termr bank deposits is shown in theablie below:

.... 31 Dcember:2009.
SettLement

accounts with Term del
banks ,with.I

.....k . . .... ... . .
posits
banks

-.. .--- 31 December-2008.
-Settlement -.

accounts with Term de
banks with'

... .... ..... ..

bosints
banks.

R .tngStandardand Por
BBB W68721 1 24,285 13,000

2,021,734 2,159 2,165,544
BBB- 13.1-2
B 16;545,920 ý33,000,063 182,968 10
BB- 6,709 -26;

B- 9,833 . 260..,
CCC 1 " 1
.No ratings h~32. 303_ ~ ~ 93
Total 181666,521 ..33,002,222 2373389 . 4i043-.

Note 1.5. Share capital
Number of ordinar Additional paid in

shares issued sharecapital ... Tot
-As.at 1 January 2008 .453,722 .454 85 539.

.is s..u .e o -f .,share` 1capital 3,..9 55, 58 .6,175 . 3,..955,.58 .6 24,841,084 2 18,7.96,1 670
Credited 'against merger reserve ..- (24,841,084) (24,841,084)

As at 31 December 2008 3,956,039,897 3,956,040 85 3'956,125".

Issue of share capital 16071,284,635 16,171,285 48,028,715 64,200,000

As at 31 Decemnber:2009 20,127,324,532 2017325:- 48.,028,800 68,1156,1125.

Issue. of share capital in .2008. The. Company issued additional 3,955,586,175.. .shares With
1R.R,28,796,670 thousad in favor of.OJSC TVEL. Additional shares were paid for in the following way:

the value of

-by shares of subsidiaries..of OJSC TVEL, including OJSC PPGHO,.OJSC Khiagda and CJSCDatur in the amountof RR 25,824,667 1thoand, a n•
-cash in the amount of RR12,972,000 thousand.

Additional paid in :capital represents the amount.'by Which contributions-to capital exceed ihe-nominal value of
shares issued; In the combined and consolidated Statement of Changes.in Equity: additional paid in 1 :pital was
credited against the merger reserve.

Issue .of.shadre capital in .2009..In accordance with the d cision of , the Extraordi nary General Meeting of
Shareholders on increase of the share capital of the Company (Minutes Ni1 dated 20 January 2009) the share,
capital of the Company was increased to 20,127,324,532 shares with a nominal value of RR 1 each.

Payiment of additional share issue of the Company was fully made in 2009. According to the Government. Resolutio.
N2 909-R dated 11 July 2009 Rosatom received a grant from the federal budget in the amount of RR 50 billion for
tthe purchase of shares of the Company. According the Government Resolution No 1998-R dated 19 December 2009
Rosatom received a grant from the federal: budget of RR 14.2 billion for the purchase of shares of the Company.
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Note , 15.. Share capital (continued)

The additional share issue was registered in the shareholders' register to the account of Rosatom, which 'share in
the share capital of the Company amounIted to 80.345 percent. Report on the results of the additional. share issue
:was registered by the Federal Service for Financial Markets of Russia in,,Marc~h 2010.

The funds obtained under the additionat share issue are to be used for the investment program of the::Group to
inceae efiiecy ndcopetitive-ness of Russian nuclear industry.on global market.6

:Sale of shares of the subsidiary. In March 2008, an additional share issue of CJSC Lunnoe, which was acquired by
:the Company and OJSC Zoloto Seligda ra, was made. As a result the share of the Company, in CJSC Lunnoe
,decreased to 50.03 percent. In these combined and consolidated financial statements the transaction is accounted
for in the Statement of Changes in Equity.

Merger reserve. The difference in the amount of RR 7,575,733 thousand between the acquisition cost, equity of
the companies, aquired by the Grobup in the transactions under common ,control in accordance with IFRS on 1

January 2007; and minority interest Was reflected in the merger reserve within equity attributable to the
shareholders of the Company.

The difference between the acquisition cost, equity of the companies, acquired by the Group in teansactions under
cIommon control in accordance with IFRS in :2007 and 2008 and minority interests of RR 426,44ý3 thousand and
RR 1,2 75,8 71 thousand was reflected in the merger reserve within equity attribUtable to the majori:y shareholders .

of: t.he Company..

.Currency translation reserve. Currency.translation differences arise as a result of recaltcuLation of the functional
,reporting currency of foreign operations of the Grouprinto the presentation currency (the Russian ruble).The main
reason for.the Loss of RR'11087,166 thousand from currency translation differences, as, reflected in the other
cormprehensive income of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009, is a revaluation of Russian rubie
.,against, Kazakhstan tenge ,:and Euro.

Dividends. Distribution of prýofits is made on the basis if the financiat statements prepared in accordance with the
Russian accounting rules. During the year ended 31 "December 2009 there were no dividends declared (for the year
ended 31 December 2008 the amount of dividends d clared and paid was RR 87,861 thousand).

Note 16.ABorrowing~s

The structure of non-c urrent borrowings is as foltows:l

.. . . .. ............ 3:1 December 2009 31 December.2008,.
Borrowings from companies 6,307,316 •.94,501
Bank floans 3153,030 4,093,617.
,Bonds 510,835
'Less: current portion of Long-term borrowings (47,181) (1,686,051)

,,Total non-current borrowings 9...4.. ...... 13,165 3,012,902

In March 2008 the Group has made a public offering of ordinary documentary:interest-bearing non-convertible
bonds. Number of bonds Issued amounted to 520 thiousand w'ith a nominal value of RR 1,000 maturing in 20,13.t nd

-Total value of the offering was RR .520,000 thousand. Interest on the V.1 and V2n coupons was set at 12.95 percent
per annum, 3rd 6th coupons - 14 percent, pa., 7th 10th coupons - coupon rate is to be: setby the issuer. In 2009 t -he
bonds, were re~dee~med early.

In August 2009 the Company signed a loan agreement with OJSC Atomenergoprom for RR 3,300,000 thousand with
:a maturity date on 10 February 2014. This loan was repaid in the first half of 2010.

In FDecember 2009 the Company signed a loan agreement with OJSC Atomenergoprom for RR 2j790,000 thousand
with a maturity date on 10February 214. This loan was repaid in the first half of 2010,.:

The GroupWs hnoncurrent borrowing~smiaiture as follows:
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Note 16. Borr owings. :(continue'd)

31 December 2009 .3....1..... 3,December 2008 .
From one to two years 236,667 !2,730,864:
From two to. three y 3,000,000 ye§132,266
From three to four years 86,498 -
From four to five years. . ..-, 6,090,000 149,772-
WToro long-term borrowings 9,4113,11653,190

The structure of current borrowings is as... follows:

Bank loans 5,090,362 8,471,844
Borrowings fromh 'third parties 2,331,356 297,408
Current portion 6f long-term borrowings 47,181 1,686,0516

'Total. c.u.rrentt. borrowi.ngs . 7,468,899 .10,455,303

The Group's boerrowings :are denbminated in the fol.lowng currencies:

-..13 December 2009._ 31 December 2008..

Borrowings denominated 'in:
-Russian RoubLes 13,798,784 1,886,346

. US Dollars 3,083,280.,1,581,859

:,Total borrow igs 16,882,064 :13,468,205

As at 31 December 2009 the effective interest rate ranged from 9. 67 percent to 18.5 percent per annum on
borrowings denominated in RR, from 10 percent to 14 percent per :annum on borrowings denominated in US Dollars
.(31 December 2008: effective interest rate ranged from 9.5 piercent to 18 percent per annumn on borr'owings
.denominated in:RR, f romn 11 percent to 13 pecn e nnumon borrowings denominate iUSDlars).

:As at 31 December 12009 the interest capitalized. in prolperty, patand equipment and exploration and evaluation
assets amounted to RR 555,1073 thousand. (2008: RR .,11.9,823 thousand)

Borrowings haivethe following carrying valuei and fair value:.

Carrying yalue Fair value

2009 2008 2009 2008
Bank loans 8,243,392 12,565,460 ý8,032,438 1,1266,932
Bonded loah -- 510,835 510,835
Borrowings forom third parties 8,638,672 391,909 79210391,909
Total borrowings, 16,8.82,064 -13,468,205- 1,8,9 1-2,169,676

Note 17. Finance lease obligations

Below is information of the minimum lease payments under finance leases and their present value:

.31 Decemb•r•2009 31. December 2008
Minimum lease The amount o6f Minimum lease The amount of-

- --payments Interest: obligatioinsi payments. Interest obligations
Upto one year. 177980 79,448 ....... 98,532 .290,329 53,:842 236,87
Frorm one yeari to Ifive
years 39,905. 882 39,023 172,397 24,307 148,090
More thanh,:5 years - .- .9,.758 3,051 6,707
Total. :217,885 80,330 137,555 472,484 81,200 391,284
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Note 18. Other taxes payable
.31 December

..... .... .............. . ................ . ... .3 i D i c e m b f 12 0 9 .. ........ ... ............... .. ý. IF8 ...
. - .-- . .................... ............. ,Decem ber 2009 2008

Value added tax 256,102 161,833

• Unified social tax 128,028 44,557
Property tax .33,395 20,738
Land tax 21,806 21,120
Personal income tax 18,636 13,830
Transportation tax 1,14. 5 155

* Other taxes 36,188.. 24,572:.:: i: . ........................... .. .... :: :... .... .... .. .. ... ... ..... .... ... .... • +. .0 ... .........: .... 8 0
Total other taxes payable 453,00 -289,805.

Nte :1 9. Accounts payable and accruals

.31 December.2009 31 December 2008

Trade accounts payable 2,181,915 885,599

Other accounts payabe :119,254, 223,765
Total financial accounts payable 2,301,16.9 1109,364

Settlements with. personnel: 525,466 220,540
Advances received 1. 89,375 188,356
Other accounts payable 949 3,528
Totalaccounts pa Oa li. accrUals ... ... ..................a.n. .. .......... .. 3. ................. ,95 ... 788..............9.... 3 ' 1 5

Note 20. Other lnon-current liabilities

Retirermet Environnmental
obli.ations ro.ision Other Total

Net book value as at:
-31 December 2007- 322,703 32.;24,909 9,400 657,012

Charged for.the period 141,332 40,919 5,113 187,364

Net book value as at
.:31 December 2008 464,035_35,2 14,513 ,844,376

Charged for the period (129,842) 338,031 (252) 207,937
'Net book value as at Ha

31, December 2009 334,191 703,859 14,261 1P,052,31 3

The management of the Group has evaluated the expenditures for envir6honm tal protection (environmental
restoration) until 2025 based on the interpretation of the existing licen•se:agreements and environmental
legislati on and in accordance with lA47 .Provisions, contingent Liabilities and coningent assets. Discount rate"used to caLcuate iabilities, which asat 31 December 2009 amounteid to 8.43 "percent t(31 December 2008: 1 i3.87

percent), is an actual pre-tax rate, the application of which the Group 'condsiders., reasonable in the curren t
,economic situation in Russian Federation at the reporting date. The relevant asset h as been included in the group
"Bu6iLdings and constructions". as part, of the, property, plant and equipment. The growth of the provision, for

evronmental protection during yaear 2009, Which was due to a decrease in the discount rate, used for evaluation
:of the obligation, also, increased the carrying .value of. group 'ýBuiLdings and constructions",as part of the prpry
plant and equipment.

Decrease in the provision for retirement obligations during 2009 is mostty due to the re-structuring• o If the
personnel of OJSC PPGHO and its transfer -to the newly created subsidiaries,. (Note 1), which do not have retirement
conditions similar to those in the ,collective agreement of OJSC PPGHO.

The following tables contain data on the retirement obligation and the actuariat assumptions at. 31 December
ý2009, 31 December 2008 and .31 December 200 .

The amounts reflected in the combined and consolidated Statement.of Financial Position at at 31 Decemb.er:
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Note 20. Other n on-current iiabilities (continued)

31 December 2009 31 December 2008 :31 December 2007
Retirement obligations with defined 334,193 464,035 322,703
benefits
Fair value of the assets
Financial position of retirement' '3413464,03 5 ' 322,703,
obligations
Unrecognized net actuarial gain I
(loss)
Unrecognized past service cost
N e t l ia b i lit i e s - I.. . . . . . . .-.... ..... ....... ................ . . . ...........

reflected in the Statement of
Financial Position . ..... 334 193 464,035 ,322,703

The'amounts reflected in t he .c..om.hbined and consol.i dated .S..tatem Ient of C Iomprehens .iv .e In1core:

:31 December 2009 31 December.2008
tCurrent. service cost (100,483) 166,567
Interes ,t expense -'12,3549,3

.Total (88,129) 175,603-

Changes in the net liability are recognized in the comibined and con.soidated Statement of Financial Position at
31 December as follows:

----------------.. .... 31 December 2009 31 December.2008
:Pension liability
Pension liability as at 1 January' 464,035 .322,703
Net loss aslreftectied in the combined and consolidated
Statement ofCormpreh. ensive, Income (88,129) .175,603
Pensions paid. (41,713) (34,271)
Pension fiability asvat 31 December . 334,193 464,035'

The group estimates the total payment under the pension .programs with the defined benefits in the amount
.RR 11,481 thousand in 2010..

Actuarial as sumption:s in calculating th e liabilities:

31bDecember 1209 3 l 1.:December .i200 8

Disc-unting rate (actual) .. 2.7% - .2.8%
The expected average Length of service of
employees, remaining to their retirement (years), 18.3 18.5

Note 21. Revenue

Year ended Year end MdedM

31 December 2009 31 December 2008
Sales of uranium Ei 26,926,282 12,715,501
Sales of electricity a Mnd heat 953,478 950,349
Sales of coal 647,266 918,005
Otherisales 7706906 613,517
Total revenue ,29233,932 .15,197,3 72
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Note 22. Cost of sales

Raw.materials and goods
Changein work in progress and finished.ogoods
Personnel. costs
Depreciation of prbperty, plant and equipment
Taxes other than on income
Transportation expenses
UtiLities
Insurance
Repairs and maintenance
,Security.
Provision for obsolete stock
Other expenses.
Total cost of sales

IYear ended
311 December 2009

7,361,452,
3,954,712X.
3,034,958

964,921
350,728
245,500
175,567

78,675
72,302
64,217
(6,284):

298,351
16,595,'099

Year ended
31 December 2008

8,484,605
(3,409,254)

3,008,253
742,663
356,365
.212,112
109,41.9
.58,590

ý.221 017
36,611

3,179
237,141

:10,054,453

Personnel costs include obligatory social and .pension payments in the amount:of RR 655,228 thousand (2008:

RR 620,355 thousand)j,

Note 23. Administrative and seliin& expenses

Personnel costs
Consulting and information expenses
Bad debt provision
Taxes other than on income
Repairs and maintenance
Rent
insurance
Transportation expenses
Materials
Business trip expenses
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Bank services
,other administrative expenses:
'Total administrative and selling expenses.

Year ended
31 December 2009

1,525,957.
729,645200,7294:
220,414
195,509
178,998
144,162
112,644
115,942
104,341
84,503r
47,608

238,149
3,898,666

Year ended
31 December 2008

972,107
332,967

865
167,485
105,01M
1.73,740
175,855
134,701
52,347
85,429
28,391
33,405

251,180
27513,546

Personnel costs include obligatory social and pension payments in, the amount .,of RR 201,568 thousand (2008:

RR 89,387 thousand).

Note 24. Financelincome and costs

Year ended
31 December 2009

Year ended
31 December 2008

Interest income 380.. 735. 46,182
Dividends income (Note 5) 111,939
Interest expense (2,490,765) (848,437)
Loss on derivative financial instruments
(Note 13) (396(096)
Effect of discounting (81,735) (77,506)
Interest on finance lease liabilities . (90,505) (46:,739)

-'Total finance.income /,..(..sts) .(2,566,427) (926.500).

The Group capitalized borrowing costs from the financing directly related to exploration and evaluation of new
uranium deposits in the amount of RR 285,483 thousand (2008: RR 48,603 thousand). The capitalization rate was
20 percent (2008; 10,percent).
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Note 25. Income taxt

income tax expense i (benefit) ref Lected in the combined and ctonsolidated Statrement oif Comprehe Insive Income
comprises the followinig:ý

Ccurrentincome tax expense .......
:Deferred income tax••6nefit

Year ended
31 December 2009

.3,864,320
........ (359,874)_

"Year ended
31 1December 2008

307,088
................ (302,251 ).

jncome tax expense for the year 3,504,446, 4,837T

A reconciliation between the expected and the actual taxation cIharge is provided below:

Year ended Year ede•d
31 December 2009.. ;31 December:2008.

Profit before tax 1:0,232,388 294_037

Theoretical tax charge at: statutory rI ate 20%
(20:24 %) (2,046,478) (70,569)

Tax effect of income items which are not assessable for taxation
Purposes 101,609 78,040.:
Tax effect of expense items which are not deductible for taxation
purposes (1,021,443) (169,436)
Effect of different tax rate (538,134)
Ef etota .cincgi~ e iax .e axpe ns e , f:t e y e ................................................................. ..... ... . . ... :( i 0 I•.............------. .............. 157, :: , :: : 1 1•83 .:,
-Total incom e tax expense= =for.: the . year.................... .........................................(3 M 4,446)(4,

In November 2008 a law was enacted on the reduction of the profit tax rate in Russian Federation from 24 percent,
to 20 percent starting 1 January 2009. The above effectof"the income:tax rate changerepresents the effect :of
•applying a reduced tax rate of 20 percent to the deferred tax balances as at:31 December 2009 and 31bDecember .
2008.

Deferred income tax assets

31 December%
.2007

Charged: to
profit and

toss
31 December

2008

Charged to
profit and

loss
31 December

2009
Accounts receivable 27,179 9,068--- 36ý,247 9709133,276
Retirement obligations 77,008 1.5799 92,807 (40,948) 51,859
Long-term financial
investments J - 15,817 :115,817
Property, plant and
equipment 19,856 34,239 54,095 34,336 88,431.

Inventories 24,902 32,802 57,704 (18,414) 39,290
ý.Environmental provision 77,873 (4,7•0) 73,166 ý87,:1.79. 160,345
Short-term borrowings 9,478 37P373 46,851 (28,260) 18,591
.Non-current Liabiltiies 6,472 22,452 28,924 (21,332) 7,592
Accounts payable 31,173: .(734) 30,439 83,087 113,526,
Other assets 10,023 2,365 12,388 53,850. 66,238.

Tax losses carried forward 863 265 1,128 151,600 1.....152728,
Gross deferred income
t asset . . 284,827 148'922 433,749 513944 .947,693

In the context of the Group's current structure, tax.losses and current tax assets of -different Group companies
may not be offset against currentIt tax liabilities and tab x pb.e Orofits of other Gro(up companies and, accordingly,
taxes may accrue -even where' there is a consolidated tax loss."Therefore,. deferred tax assets and Liabilities are
offset only when they:relate to the same taxable entity.

The movements in the Group's deferred tax liabitities f or the-year endied 31 December 20.09 is provided below:
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:Note 25. Income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities

Charged Charged 31
31 December toprofit Business 31 December to profit December

2007 and loss combination 2008 and loss 2009

Property, plant and
equipmen-t (1,323,250) 146,818 (30,962) (1, 207,394) (24,101) (1,231,495)

Intangible assets (63) . (2,730) •(68,721) (71,514) 112- (71,402)
Inventories (681) (1,;641) - (15,322) 15,322
Other non-curreht Liabilities (41,068) 6,845 (34,223) (34,223)
Exploration and evaltuation
assets. .(2,016) (1.1,911) (13,927) (46,650) (60,5771)

'Other. liabilities (63,084) 28,948 . . . (34,136) (98,753) (132,889)
':Gross deferred income
tax:liability.,..- (1, 430,162) 153,329 (9.,683) .(1,376,516) (154,070) . . (1,530,586).. .. .. ... .. . .. .. .. . .. .. . .. .. . .. .. .. ... ... .. .. .. . . . . . . .. . . . .... .... .. ... ........ . .. . 0 0 ..... .3 0. ....

Net recognised deferred
income tax asssets andi
=liability . j(1145,335) 302;251 (919683) (942,767) 359,874 (582,893).:

The amount of the unrecognised deferred tax asset on toss. carried-forward as at 31 December 2009 amounts:to
RR 2,285 thousand (.31 December.2008: RR 59,026 thousand), asdthere)is:no certainty that the. amount of tax losses
carried forward will be offset in the future.

The amount of the unrecognized deferred tax Liability on taxable temporary differences as at 31 December 2009
amounts to RR 211,519 thousand (2008: RR 176,365 thousand), related to investments into subsidiaries, as the
Group is able to control the timing of these temporary differences and does not intend to realize them in the
foreseeable future.

In the combined and consolidated Statement of Financial Position deferred income tax differences as at 31
December 2009 and 31 December 2008 are netted ofiib•y , teconsolidated entities, whereas in the present note the
,deferred income tax differences are detailed per its types; Applying this approach to the disclosure of deferred
ýincome taxes resulted in a discrepancy, between the balances .'of. deferred income tax presented in the combined
:and the consolidated Statement of Financial Position and disclosed in this note, however the effect on the.
combined and consolidated statement of Comprehensive Income and the net position in the Statement of Financial
Position are same.

Note 26. Contingencies and commitments

Political environment. The operations and earnings of, the Group entities is, from time to time and in varying
degrees, affected by political, legislative, fiscal and regulatory developments, iqncluding those related to
environmental protection, in the Russian Federation.

I..nsurance. The Group has limited insurance policies with respect to assets, operations, third party liabilities and
other insured risks. Therefore, the Group may be exposed to the risks that were not insured.

Legal proceedings. The Group entities are party.to certain legat proceedings arising in the ordinary course of
business. In the opinion .of management, there are no current legal proceedings or other claims outstandingj
which,.upon final dispsition, will have a material adverse effecton the position of the Group.

Tax contingencies. Russian tax, currency and customs legislation is subject to varying interpretation and changes,
which can occur frequently. Management's interpretation of such legisltation as applied to the transactions a.an.d
activities of the Group may be challenged by the relevant regional and federal authorities, in particular the way of
accounting for tax purposes of some income and expenses of the Group as weRl as deductibility of input VAT from
suppliers and contractors. Tax authorities may be taking a more assertive position in their interpretation of the
legislation and assessments. As a result, additional taxes, penalties and interest may be assessed. Fiscal periods.
remain open to review by the authorities in respect of taxes for three calendar years preceding the year of review.
Under certain circumstances review may cover longer periods.
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Note 26. Contingencies and commitments.(continued)

Management ibelieves that as at 31 December 2009.its linterpretation of the relevant legislation is appropriate and
the Gro.up's tax, currency and customs positions wilt be sustained. Where management believes it .is probable ýthat
a position cannot be sustained, an appropriate amount has been accrued for: .inthe comPbined and,.corsoidated
financial statements.

Capitol commitments.. As of 31, December:2009 the Group has capital expenditures under agreements retated to
.purchase of property, plant and equipmenit for a total, consideration of RR 1,614,860 thousand (31 December 2008:
RR 1,115,452 thousand).

TheGrop'smangemnt lredy asthe necessary, f undin Ito cover the commitments. The Grdu' mng ent
:believes that future net income and funding will be'sufficient to-cover th ila commitments.

:Assets pledged and restricted. At 3,1 December 2009 and 31 December 2008 the Group has the following amssts
pledged as collateral:

.31 December 2009 -31 December 2008

Property, plant and equipment 1,161251. 465,448
Securities 431,560 75,560
Property rights (revenue under sales, , cn .tr Iact) 1,.1090,000 .5,321,218

:Total assets pledged and restricted 2,682,811 5,8 162,226_

6uarantees. Guarantees are irrevocable assuran ces tha It t .he G Iroup will mak Le payments in thIe ev..e.nt that an. other:
party cannot meet its obligations. The Group has, guaranteed the following -borrowings received by the Group'.s
related parties:

Nature of
relationsihip-

31 December
.....2009

31 December
2008Na-me of counterparty Debtor

OJSC. EVraziyskiy bank.
Razvitiya

AAmsterdam Trade
Bank N.i.

OJSC Alpha.-ba•nk

oJiSC Nornos-Bank

oJSC Gazprombank

CiSC. Na.rodniy Ibank

JSC Joint Venture
Zarechnoe

JSC Joint Venture
Zarechnoe

Associate

Associate

:1,300,923

338,.253

181P55.4

1 ,44 41, 222

JSC Joint Venture
Zarechnoe

Individuals

Individuals

JSC Joint Venture rAKbastau

Associate
Employees of the
Group
Emhployees of the
Group
Jointly controlled

tIy ...

35,000

2,937:

35,000

4,708

63,033

Total 11,858,667 .1,543:963
Total 1.858.667 1.543.963
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Note:26. Contingencies and commitments (continued)

In 2008 the Group iss~ued a guarantee for the loan provided to JSC Joint Venture Zarechrne byVoJSC Evraziyskiy
bank razvitiya in the amount of US Dollar 63,000 thousand. As of 31:December 2009 the outstanding loan amounted
to US Dollar 43,000 thousand. Loan is repayable on 13 March 201.

In 2009 the Group provided a guarantee fI.r the .loans raised by JSC Joint VentureZarechnoe from Armsterdam
Trade Banik Ni.-in the amou nt .. of US DoLiar 11,168 thousand. As of 31 December 2009 the outstanding amount of

,the loans totaled US Dollar 11,168.thousaind. The. Loans are repjayable in, 2010.

In 2009 the Group provided a guarantee for the loans raised by J% Joint Venture Zarechnoe fm OJSC Alpha-baank
in the amount of US Dollar 6,006 thousand. As of 31 December. 2009 the outstanding amount of the Loans totaled to

:US Dollar 6,000 thousand. The loan was repaid on 2h1 February 20 .10.

The remaining guarantees were issued by the Group in respect of loans received by employees of the Group.
The Company received guarantees in the amount.of RR 85,000 thousand.

Note 27.. Fin ancial risk management

The risk managemen.t function withi n the Group is carried out i n respect of financial risks (credit, market,
currency, liquidity and .i nterest rat .e), operational risks and legal risks. The primary objectiv~es of the financial risk
management function are to establish risk limits, and then ensure that exposure to risks stays within these limits.
The operational and legal risk management functions are intended to ensure proper functioning of internal policies
,and procedures of the Group to minimise these risks.
ICredit risk. The Group takes on exposure to, credit risk, wh ich is the risk that one party to a financial Instrument
will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to disic harge Ian obligation. Exposure to credit risk ari Ises,. as
a result of the Group's sales on credit terms and other transactions with counterparties giving rise to financial
assets. The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk by class of assets includes the following:

... .................. Note 31 December 2009_31-December;2008

Other non-current assets
-!Long-term accounts.rec.eivable 1 1,021,927 23,348

Deposits 10 400,000.
- Promissory notes, 1b0 280,296
-.LonIg-term borrowings to a related party 10 256,555
Other.ciurrent assets
- Bank promissory note at amortised cost 13 2,716,989 :255,670
- Derivative financial instruments 13 260,737
- Loans accounted for at amortised cost 13 192,636. .259,998
Accounts receivable
- Trade accounts receivable 12 4,991,778 1Y,207,106
- Other financial accounts receivable 112, 951,5.79 284,989
.Cash and cash equivalents
- Settlement accounts with banks 114 18,666,521 2,373,389
.Term deposits with maturity.of Less than three months 14 33,002,222 14,043
-Cash on hand '14 400 425
-Restricted cash 14 1 6,044 47,09 17

Total maximum "credit risk 62,757,684 . 4,466,065

Although settlement of accounts receivable is expose~d to econobmic factors the mhanazgemen~t believes that there is

no significant risk of losses exceeding the provision for impairment of accounts receivables already provided for.

The Group follows the policy of doring business 0ony with solvent clients and continually monitors transactions
exposed to credit risk. The Group's management conducts ageing analysis of trade accounts receivable and"follows
up past due balances.

Cash is deposited with financial institutions which at'time of account opening had .minimfurnm default risk. Credit
quality of cash and cash equivalents is disclosed in Note 14. As of:31 December 2009 94 percent of cash
equivalents is deposited in OJSC Gazprombank (31 December 2008: OJSSC Gazprombank - 7 percent, OJSC Nomos-
,Bank - 90. percent), wthiic~h .causes the con9centration. of credit ris~k within the Group.
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Note 27. Financilal11arisk management (continued)

Th Group .does not have significant risk.arising from issu ed loans and promisso ry notes since majority of loans is

issued to associates and jointty controlled entities: or companies with good credit history.

No colatrl is proided to the benefit of the GroPup.

Market risk. Market risk represents the possible changes in market prices for uranium and its I•nfluence onfuture
.ooperational performance indicators of the Group. The Ifal in prices may result in decrease in net profit margin and
cash flows. Low long-term price levels may result in decrease in Volumes of production and sales of uranium and as
:a result may affect the Group's ability to meet its contractual obligations.. The Group assesses on a regular basis

:1the possible scenarios of future uranIium price fluctuations and their effect on operational and investment
ýdecisions.

The Group's general strategy related to mining and sales of uranium is carried out in: a cent ralized way by

= signing long-term agreements;
.- asearching for new customers;
* ..applying up-to-date technologies of uranium mining and processing.

Currency risk. In respect of curriencyrisk, management sets Limits on the Level of risk exposure by currency and in
total, which are monitored on monthly basis. The table below••~resents general analysis for currency exchange rate
risk for the Group as of reporting date:

31 December 2009 31 December 2008
Monetary Monetary Monetary Monetary
financial financ .ial Net financial assets financial Net

assets liabilities .position liabilities, position

,Russian 54,383,614 16,140,308 38,243,3 06 3,168,253 3,:39 0,104 (221,851)
RoublesUS 8,159,578 5,029,87 4 3,129,704 13,271,931. 11,777,882 (10,'505, 951)

Euro 133,955 161 133,794 -
Others .80,537 9,112 71,425 25,881 21,153 .4728

Total . 62.,i757,684 '21,179,455 411 578,§229 4,466,0650 .15189,139 (10723074'

As at 31 December 2,009, if US-Dollar had changed, 10,percent against Russian Roubles the effect on financial result
.for the year and equity;:would have been RR 415,782 tho~usand

To manage currency risk the Group applies the following methods::

raising financing In Russian Roubles;
*.creating of asets a•nd Liabilities:in foreign currency;
Slocalization of foreign exchange risk in the parent company of theGroup.

Interest rate riský. The .Group is exposed to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing Levels of market:interest
rates on its financial position and cash flows.

The.Gro.Up's loans issued and borrowings obtained are under fixed intierest.,rates. The.Group does not havea policy
of hedgi•g. interest rate-risk.

Liquidity risk. Reasonable..lquidity risk mana ,gement includes maintaining certainlevel of adequacy of cash and
Liquid, securities. :Most of financial liabilities of the Group are short-term. The outstanding amount in the table
represents contractual unidiscounted. cash flows..
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Note IT. Financial risk management (continued)

Due between 2
.Due.in 1iyear From I tb,2 years ........ and 3.years: Beyond 3 year

At31I December 2009 10,505,792 276,572 4,300,P92_ 6,176,49.8

Borrowings
:(Note 16) 7,468,899 236,667 3,000,000 .6176,498
Finance lease
(Nate 17) 177,980. 139,9051-
Guarantees
(Note 26) 557,74.4 - 1,300,923
Accounts payable
(Note 19), 2,301,169

Total as at 31 December 2009 12,474,052 3,0661,290 218,146 1,620,038

Borrowings
(Note 16): 10,790,786 2,906,651 .160,680 169,058
Finance [ease
,(Note 17) 290,329 114,931 57,466 9,758
Guarantees

(Note 26) 63,033 39,7018 1 ,441,22 2
Accounts payable
_(Note 19) 1,109,364 - -

The Group did notbhave Unused. credit lines as at 31 December 2009 and 31" December 2008.

To'manage liquidity risk the Group applies the policy of retaining financial assets, for which there is an active
market and which can be readily converted in case of necessity to •aintain liquidity by means of:

*planning and control over expenditures and cashflfows;
*fixing termis of payments in agreements.

Note 28M.Management of capital

The Group's. objectives wh en managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continueas a going concern
in order to provide returns to the shareholders, to protect, theinte.rests of other stakeholders and tomaintain
optimal capital structure to reduce its cost. In order to maintain and adjusti capital structure, the Group mayadjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell
Assets to red•ce debt.

Total capitalof the Group is calculated as equity plus debt (short-term and long-term borrowings), as shown in the
.combined and consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at .3.1. December 2009, and amounts to
RR 99,058,515 thousand (31 December .2008:RR 26,693,538 thousand). The optimal capital structure is achieved
thro .ugh a mhix of debt and equity financing with the view of reducing the risks.

Russiarn la sets the following capital. requirements:
: Share capital shall not be Less than 1,600, minimurn monthly Wage as at the date of entity

registration;

] If share capital exceeds the entity's net assets then theentity shall decrease its share capital down
to the amount that does not exceed its net assets;

- !fithe minimal. autho.ised share capital exceeds the Lentity'ss net assets, such entity shatl:.lbe

liquidated.

.As atf31 December 2009 and :31 December 2008.the Company met the above mentioned capital requirements.

!Note 29. Fair value of financial Instruments

Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
,willing parties, other than in a forced sale or liquidation, an d is b elst e~videnced by an active quoted market price.

The estimated fair values of financial Instruments: have been determined by the Group using available Market
informiation, 'where it exists, and appropriate valuation metho6dologies. However, judgement is necessarity
required to interpret marketdata to determine the estimated fair value. The Russian Federation continues to
display some
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Note 29.; Fair value of financial instrumentI .(continued)

characteristics of an emerging iarket and economic conditions continue:tO Limit the volume of activity in the
financial markets. Market quotations may be outdated or reflect distress sale transactions and therefore not:
represent fair values of financial instruments. Management has used all available .market information in estimating
the fair value of financial instruments.

Financial instruiments carried at fair value. Financial derivatives are carried in the Statement of Financial
Position at their fair value,.The estimation of financial derivatives is carried out according to the market data.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost. The fair value of ftoatin.g rate instruments placement is normally
their carrying amount. The estimated fair value of fixed interest rate instruments is based on estimated future:
cash inflows discounted at current interest rates for new instruments with similar credit risk.and remaining
maturity. Discount rates used depend on currencyC maturity of the instrument and credit risk of the counterparty

Carrying value of financial accounts receivable approximatety equals to their fair value (Note 1.A2).

Liabilities carried :at amortised cost. The estimated fair value of fixed interest rate instrumernts with stated
maturity dateis based on expected cash flows discounted at. current interest rates for new instrumernts with similar
credit risk and remaining maturity. The fair value of Liabilities repayable on demand or after a notice period
(demandable liabilities) is estimated as the amount payable on demand, discounted from the first date that the
amount could be required to be paid (Note 16). Carrying value of.accounts payable approximately equalsto their
fair: value.

Not. .30. Subsequent evenits

Founddtion:of ARM.Z Namibia (Proprietary) Limited. in. February 2010 the Company es tabl. is.hed 1I00 percent
subsidiary in Namibia - AR.MZ :Namibia (Proprietary) Limited.

Exercise of call, option on shares of Uranium One Inc. In February - March 2010 Effective Energy N.V. exercised
.call option on 18,936,600 shares of Uranium One Inc. As a result, the' share of the Group In"Uranium One Inc.
increased up to 23.1 percent.

Share issue completion. In March.2010 the amendments on the increase of the share capital Were introduced to
.the Charfe of the Company (Note. 15).

Acquisition of OJSC VNIlPpromtechnology. In April 2010 the Company purchased from OJSC Atomenergoprom 100
percent shares of OJSC Veduschiiy proektno-iziskatetsky and naychno-issledovatelskiy institute of primish•ennoy
technology (OJSC VNIPIpromtechnology), which is a research institute for complex design of uranium mining and
processing industry objects. The acquisition cost amounts to RR 184,800 thousand..

Long-term finance lease agreement with OJ$C MRSK-Sibir-Buryatenergo. In 2010 OJSC Hiagda (lessor) entered
into a long-term real estate -rent agreement with t he :righ t of subsequent redemption with OJSC MRSK-Sibir-
Buryatenergo (lessee). T',h'e Lease d assets include high-Voltage air lines and transformer substation. The value of
property under the contraci.is.": RR 15,0,921 thousand. The term of the contractis tilt 31 March 2028.

Loan ag reements of OJSC PPGHO. In 2010 OJSC PPGHO entered into short-term loan agreements with the total
amount of RR 800,000 thousand and long-term loan agreements in the total amount of RR 1,080,000 thousand.

Loan agreements of OJSC ARMZ. In 2010 OJSC ARMZ entered into short-term loan agreements intihe total amount
of RR 120,000 thousand and tong-term loan agreements in the total:amount-of RR.7,500,000 thousand and US
Dollar 84,000 thousand.
Loan agreements of OJSC Hiagda. In 2010 OJSC Hiagda entered in loan agree wth the total

amount of RR 4,983,939 thousand.

Loan agreements of CJSC Rusburmash. In 2010 CJSC Rusburmash entered into short-term loan agreements in the
total amount of RR 500,00 0thousand.

Loan agreements of LLC ESK ARMZ. In 2010 LLC ESK ARMZ entered into short-term loan agreements with the
total amount of RR 1,900,000 thousand.

Loan agreements of Effective Energy N.V. In 2010 Effective Energy N.y. entered into long-term Loan agreements
withthe 6total amount of US Dollar 90,000 thousand.
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Note 30. Subsqkuwt events (continued)

Acquisitioh Of Uranium One Inc. In .June 2010 the Group entered into an agreement with Uranium One Inc.
according t•o•hich the Group increases-its.:.ishare in equity capita[ of Uranium One Inc. by acquisition of additionalI
share issue of Uranium One Inc. (356 million ordinaryshares). The payment includes 50 percent of JSC Joint
Venture Akbastau shares, 49.7 percent of JSC Joint Venture Zarechnoe share .s and US Dollar 610. million. Upon the
closure of the deal the share of the Group in the share capital of Uranium. Qne Inc. ýwill amount to not less than 51
:percent,.

Acquisitionh of LLC Karchu ,Geologiya. In, June 2010 the. Company's Board of Directors approved the acquisition of
,49 percent share in LLC Karchu Geologiya from Cameco Global Exptoration Ltd. Thle value of the transaction is
US Dollar 45,700.

Sale of Northern Basins Uranium Ltd. In June 2010 the Board of Directors of the Company approved sale of
49 percent share of Northern Basins Uranium Ltd. The value of the transaction is 49,000 Canadian Dollars.

:Additional share issue.of the Company. In June 2010 Federal Service for Financial Markets of Russia registered
additional share issue oftthe Company in the amount of 129,915,429 shares with nominal value of AlR 1.:Shar-es.a:r.e
issued to OJSC TVEL and OJSC Atomenergoprom. The value of the share issue is RR 805,476 thousand. As a result of
the additionaL share issue, the share of Rosatom in the share capital of the Company will be 79.8 percent, the
share of OJSC TVEL -.20.0.211 percent, the share of OJSC Atomenergopromn - 0.149 percent.
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Man amnt R ibt or Fort

Management's Responsibility for Financial Reporting

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management, in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles, who, when necessary, have mad e informed judgments and estimates of the outcome of
events and transactions. Management acknowledges its responsibility for the fairness, integrity and objectivity of all
information in the consolidated financial statements.

As a means of fulfilling its responsibility, management relies on the company's system of internal ,control. This system has
been established to ensure, within reasonable limits, that the assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly recorded
and are executed in accordance with management's authorization and that the accounting records provide a solid foundation
from which to prepare the consolidated financial statements.

Any system of internal control has inherent limitations, therefore even those systems determined to be effective can provide
only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation.

The Board of Directors carries out its responsibility for the consolidated financial statements principally through its Audit
Committee, consisting solely of non-management independent directors. This committee meets periodically, reviews the
scope of the external audit, the adequacy of the system of internal control and the appropriateness of the financial reporting
and then makes its recommendations to the Board of Directors. Based on those recommendations, the Board of Directors
approves the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by the Company's independent auditors, Deloitte & Touche LLP.
The Auditors' Report to the Shareholders of Uranium One Inc., outlines the scope of their examination and opinion on the
consolidated financial statements.

"Jean Nortier"
Jean Nortier
President & Chief Executive Officer

"Robin Merrifield"
Robin Merrifield
Executive Vice President & Chief Financial Officer

March 9, 2010
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Auditors' Report

To the Shareholders of Uranium One Inc.

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Uranium One Inc. (the "Company") as at December 31, 2009 and 2008
and the consolidated statements of operations, changes in equity, comprehensive (loss) income, accumulated other
comprehensive (loss) income and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at December 31, 2009 and 2008 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Chartered Accountants
March 9, 2010
Vancouver, B.C, Canada
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Uranium One Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
As at December 31, 2009 and 2008
(in United States dollars)

Dec 31, 2009
e'mnRNotes

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4
Accounts and other receivables 5
Current portion of loans to joint ventures 6.2
Inventories 7
Other assets 9

Non-current assets
Mineral interests, plant and equipment 8
Loans to joint ventures 6.2
Other assets 9
Assets held for sale 3.3

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 10
Income taxes payable 14
Current portion of long term debt 11
Other liabilities 15

Non-current liabilities
Long term debt 11
Convertible debentures 12
Asset retirement obligations 13
Future income tax liabilities 14
Other liabilities 15
Assets held for sale 3.3

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital 16
Contributed surplus 17
Equity component of convertible debentures
Accumulated other comprehensive income / (loss)
Deficit

Total shareholders' equity and liabilities

Dec 31, 2008
$'000

176,225
39,926
19,158
17,390
12,043

264,742

1,285,415
14,000
62,976

1,362,391

07] 1,627,133

08 ~ 47,423
33 12,639
79.
p43, -

631 60,062

-61,275

'62-. .118,042
00 12,999
;87 375,293
.51 48,924
144~
1)44j 616,533

.97 3,522,824

.781 131,602
80 46,480
G92 (247,708)
'47) (2,502,660)
100 1 950,538

07 1,627,133

Basis of presentation and principles of consolidation (note 2.1), contingencies (note 26) & subsequent events (note 27)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements

Approved on behaff of the board of directors

"Ian Telfer"
Ian Telfer
Chairman of the board

"Andrew Adams"
Andrew Adams
Chairman of the audit committee

ANNUAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 3



Uranium One Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations
For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008
(in United States dollars)

Yearended

Notes
Revenues
Operating expenses
Depreciation and depletion

Earnings from mine operations
General and administrative (I)
Exploration expense
Impairment of mineral interests, plant and equipment and closure costs
Care and maintenance

8.1 i

Operating loss

Interest and other 18
Gain on available for sale securities
Foreign exchange gain / (loss) 19
Other
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes

Current income tax expense 14
Future income tax recovery 14

Loss from continuing operations

Profit / (loss) from discontinued operations

Net loss

Dec 31, 2008
$'000

149,776
(30,490)
(22,566)

96,720
(48,689)
(14,881)

(3,322,222)
(1,868)

(3,290,940)

(7,376)
4,345

(11,709)
2,650

(3,303,030)
(44,191)

1,013,634
(2,333,587)

(122,260)

(2,465,847)

(1) Stock option and restricted share expense (non-cash) included in 17
general and administrative

Loss per share from continuing operations

Basic and diluted

Profit I (loss) per share from discontinued operations
Basic and diluted

Net loss per share
Basic and diluted

Weighted average number of shares (in thousands)

Basic and diluted 21

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Annual Consolidated Financial Statements

15,423

$(4.98)

$(0.26)

$(5.24)

468,424
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Uranium One Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008
(in United States dollars)

Balance as at January 1, 2008
Net loss for the year
Stock options and restricted shares
vested
Exercise of warrants
Exercise of stock options and
restricted shares
Unrealized loss recognized on
translation of self-sustaining foreign
operations
Unrealized loss recognized on
translation of self-sustaining foreign
discontinued operations

Realized loss on sale of Gold One€1 )

Fair value adjustments on available
for sale securities, net of tax

Balance as at December 31, 2008

Net loss for the year
Stock options and restricted shares
vested
Exercise of stock options and
restricted shares

Issuance of contingent shares

Unrealized gain recognized on
translation of self-sustaining foreign
operations

Realized loss on sale of Gold One(1 )

Realized loss on sale of Uranium
One Africa (note 3.3) ,

Acquisition of Karatau (note 3.1)

Fair value adjustments on available
for sale securities

Balance as at December 31, 2009

Share capital
$'000

3,496,884

15,791

10,149

Contributed
surplus

$'000

134,387

Equity Accumulated
component other

of comprehen-
convertible sive Income I
debentures (loss)

$o000 $'000
46,480 51,967

Defic
$'00

(46,81
(2,455,84

15,423

(11,460)

(6,748)

It Total
0 $'000
3) 3,682,905
7) (2,455,847)

- 15,423

- 4,331

- 3,401

- (282,170)

- (27,480)

(282,170)

(27,480)

10,163

(188)

46,480 (247,708)

10,163

(188)

(2,502,660) 950,5383,522,824 131,602

J 3,823,297 133,478 46,450

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Annual Consolidated Financial Statements

(1) Gold One International Limited (formerly Aflease Gold)
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Uranium One Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income / (Loss)
For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008
(in United States dollars)

Dec 31, 2009 Dec 31, 2008
$,000 $'000

Unrealized gain / (loss) recognized on translation of self-sustaining foreign 1 9 2210
operations
Unrealized loss recognized on translation of self-sustaining foreign (740
discontinued operations (740
Realized loss on sale of Gold One 13,074 10,163

Realized loss on sale of Uranium One Africa 234,533 -

Fair value adjustments on available for sale securities [102 (188)

Other comprehensive income I (loss) for the year 264,100 (299,675)

Net loss ~ (36,087) (2,455,847)

Comprehensive Income i (loss) 228,0131 (2,755,522)

Consolidated Statements of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss)
As at December 31, 2009 and 2008
(in United States dollars)

Dec 31, 2009 Dec 31, 2008
$,000 $'000

Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) / income at January 1* (247,708) 51,967

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 26,0 (299,675)

> 16,2392 (247,708)
Deficit (2,538,7471), (2,502,660)

Accumulated other comprehensive loss and deficit (2,522,355)1 (2,750,368)

Components of accumulated other comprehensive income / (loss) at the end
of the year:

Unrealized foreign exchange adjustment - continuing operations 16,290 (234,634)

Unrealized foreign exchange adjustment - discontinued operations (13,074)

Available for sale marketable securities and investments 10

I16,392 (247,708)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Annual Consolidated Financial Statements
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Uranium One Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008
(in United States dollars)

Year ended

Dec 31, 2009 Dec 31, 2008

Notes $'000 $'000
Net profit / (loss) from continuing operations (38.07P) (2,333,587)

Items not affecting cash:
- Fair value adjustment included in revenue 15
- Depreciation and depletion 46,383 22,566
- Impairment of mineral interest plant and equipment 8.1 265,56 3,306,001
- Gain / (loss) on available for sale securities (193) (4,345)
- Stock option and restricted share expense 17 7502 15,423
- Interest accrued on loans and debentures 3,728 10,195
- Unrealized foreign exchange loss 19 (55,950) 1,339
- Future income tax recovery 14 (206,379) (1,013,634)
- Other 497 (562)
Movement in non-cash working capital 20 32,730
Cash flows (used in) / from operating activities 6,0811 36,126

Acquisition of mineral interests, plant and equipment (68208) (216,757)
Pre-production revenue capitalized 2587
Advance cash payments for other assets (3629) (1,036)
Acquisition of Karatau, net of acquisition costs (8,228)-
Acquisition of SKZ-U, net of acquisition costs 1290 -

Proceeds on sale of Honeymoon, net of costs 34,098
Cash advance for sulphuric acid plant investment (5,385) (5,959)
Advance cash receipts for sale of portion of Gold One 3,100
Proceeds on sale of Gold One 20972 44,542
Proceeds on sale of available for sale securities 487 24,927
Cash proceeds from joint ventures 8167 23,767
Proceeds on sale of mineral interests, plant and equipment 7304 -

Deposit for purchase of Christensen Ranch 3.2 i (8,750) 1
Short term loan repaid 1,093
Cash flows used In Investing activities i (52,300)] (93,318)

Common shares issued, net of issue costs 1,230 7,732
Loans received by Kyzylkum 12000 18,000
Draw-down on credit facility 60,467
Cash flows from financing activities 13,2301 86,199

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 5229 (12,374)
Net (decrease) I Increase In cash and cash 'equivalents from continuing (27, (27,760) 16,633
operations
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 176225 159,592

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 148,46511 176,225

Supplemental cash flow information (note 20)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Annual Consolidated Financial Statements
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Uranium One Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at December 31, 2009 and 2008
(in United States dollars)

I NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Uranium One Inc. ("Uranium One"), its subsidiaries and joint ventures (collectively, the "Corporation") is a Canadian
Corporation engaged through subsidiaries and joint ventures in the mining and production of uranium, and in the
acquisition, exploration and development of properties for the production of uranium in Kazakhstan, the United States,
Australia and South Africa.

Through the Betpak Dala joint venture, Uranium One owns a 70% interest in the Akdala and South Inkai uranium mines in
Kazakhstan. The Corporation holds a 50% interest in the Karatau joint venture, which owns the Karatau uranium mine in
Kazakhstan, and a 30% interest in the Kyzylkum joint venture, which owns the Kharasan Project in Kazakhstan. In the United
States, the Corporation owns projects in the Powder River and Great Divide basins in Wyoming. The Corporation owns a 51%
interest in the Honeymoon Uranium Project in Australia. The Corporation owns, either directly or through joint ventures, a
large portfolio of uranium exploration properties in the western United States, South Australia, South Africa, and Canada.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of presentation and principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Corporation have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles ("Canadian GAAP").

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Uranium One, its subsidiaries and the proportionate
share of its interests in joint ventures. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

The consolidated balance sheet, statement of operations, cash flow and certain comparative figures have been

restated for discontinued operations.

The following are the Corporation's principal mineral properties as at December 31, 2009:

Operating mine:
Entity Mineral property/Operation Location Ownership Status

Betpak Dala LLP Akdala Uranium Mine Kazakhstan 70% Proportionately
consolidatedMinet t  Kzakstan 70%Proportionately

Betpak Dala LLP South Inka[ Uranium Mine(c) Kazakhstan 70% consolidated

Karatau LLP Karatau Uranium Mine(2) Kazakhstan 50% Proportionately
consolidated

Advanced development projects:
Entity Mineral property/Operation Location Ownership Status
Kyzylkum LLP Kharasan Uranium Project Kazakhstan 30% Proportionately

Kyzylkumconsolidated

The Corporation is also developing the following mineral properties:

Entity Mineral property/Operation Location Ownership Status
Uranium One Americas, United States development
Inc.(3) projects United States 100% Consolidated

Honeymoon Uranium Honeymoon Project Australia 51% Proportionately
Project Joint Venture consolidated

The Corporation owns a 19% interest in the SKZ-U joint venture, which is constructing a sulphuric acid plant in
Kazakhstan (note 6.1).

(1) The South Inkal Project commenced commercial operations on January 1, 2009

(2) The Karatau Uranium Mine was acquired on December 21, 2009. Refer to note 3.1

(3) Previously Energy Metals Corp (US)
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Uranium One Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at December 31, 2009 and 2008
(in United States dollars)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Adoption of new standards

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

On January 1, 2009, the Corporation adopted the new Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants ("CICA")
Handbook Section 3064 - "Goodwill and Intangible Assets", which replaces CICA Handbook Sections 3062 -
"Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets" and 3450 - "Research and Development Costs". The revised standard aligns
Canadian GAAP for goodwill and intangible assets with IFRS. The new standard provides more comprehensive
guidance on intangible assets, in particular for internally developed intangible assets. Standards concerning goodwill
are unchanged from the standards included in Section 3062. On adoption of CICA Section 3064, Emerging Issues
Committee Abstract 27 - "Revenues and expenditures during the pre-operating period' no longer applies to the
Corporation. The adoption of this standard did not result in a material impact on the Corporation's consolidated
financial statements

Credit risk and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

In January 2009, the CICA issued EIC Abstract 173 - "Credit Risk and the Fair Value of Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities" ("EIC-173"). EIC-173 provides guidance on how to take into account credit risk of an entity and
counterparty when determining the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, including derivative
instruments. EIC-173 is applicable for the Corporation's consolidated financial statements for its fiscal year ended
December 31, 2009, with retrospective application. The adoption of EIC-173 did not result in a material impact on the
Corporation's consolidated financial statements.

Mining exploration costs

In March 2009, the CICA issued EIC Abstract 174 - "Mining Exploration Costs" ("EIC-174') which supersedes EIC
Abstract 126 - Accounting by Mining Enterprises for Exploration Costs, to provide additional guidance for mining
exploration enterprises on the accounting for capitalization of exploration costs, when an assessment of impairment of
these costs is required and conditions indicate impairment. EIC-174 is applicable for the Corporation's interim and
annual consolidated financial statements for its fiscal year ended December 31, 2009, with retrospective application.
The adoption of EIC-1 74 did not result in a material impact on the Corporation's consolidated financial statements.

Financial Instruments - disclosures

In June 2009, the CICA amended Handbook Section 3862 - "Financial Instruments - Disclosures" to include
additional disclosure requirements about fair value measurements of financial instruments and to enhance liquidity risk
disclosure requirements for publicly accountable enterprises. The amendments have been incorporated into the
Corporation's annual consolidated financial statements for its fiscal year ended December 31, 2009.

Financial Instruments - recognition and measurement

During 2009, the Corporation adopted the amendments made by the CICA to Handbook Section 3855 - "Financial
Instruments - Recognition and Measurement" ("Section 3855"). Section 3855 was amended to provide additional
guidance concerning the assessment of embedded derivatives upon reclassification of a financial asset out of the
held-for-trading category, amend the definition of loans and receivables, amend the categories of financial assets into
which debt instruments are required or permitted to be classified, amend the impairment guidance for held-to-maturity
debt instruments and require reversal of impairment losses on available-for-sale debt instruments when conditions
have changed. The additional guidance on assessment of embedded derivatives is applicable for reclassifications
made on or after July 1, 2009. All other amendments are applicable as of January 1, 2009. The adoption of these
amendments did not result in a material impact on the Corporation's consolidated financial statements.

2.3 Measurement and reporting currency

Items included in the financial statements of each entity in the Corporation are measured using the currency that best
reflects the economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to that entity (the "functional
currency").

The Corporation's reporting currency is the United States dollar. Uranium One, its subsidiaries and joint ventures
operate in Kazakhstan, the United States, Australia, South Africa and Canada.

The financial statements of the entities that are determined to be integrated foreign operations have been translated
into United States dollars by translating foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities, which includes
future income tax, at rates of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items are translated at
historical exchange rates and revenues and expenses at average rates of exchange during the period. Exchange
gains and losses arising on translation are included in the consolidated statements of operations.
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Uranium One Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at December 31, 2009 and 2008
(in United States dollars)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The financial statements of the entities that are determined to be self-sustaining foreign operations have been
translated into United States dollars by translating all assets and liabilities, which includes future income tax, at rates
of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date. Revenues and expenses are translated at average exchange rates
for the period. All resulting exchange differences are included in accumulated other comprehensive income / (loss) on
the balance sheet.

2.4 Inventories

Inventories of solutions and uranium concentrates are valued at the lower of average production cost or net realizable
value. Production costs include the cost of raw materials, direct labour, mine-site related overhead expenses and
depreciation and depletion of mineral interests.

Materials and supplies are valued on the weighted average basis and recorded at the lower of average cost or

replacement cost.

2.5 Mineral Interests, plant and equipment

Mineral interests, plant and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and depletion.

Mineral interests, plant and equipment includes capitalized expenditures related to the development of mineral
properties and related plant and equipment. Capitalized costs and plant and equipment are depreciated and depleted
using either a unit-of-production method, over the estimated economic life of the mine to which they relate, or using
the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.

The costs associated with mineral interests are separately allocated to reserves, resources and exploration potential,
and include acquired interests in production, development and exploration stage properties representing the fair value
at the time they were acquired. The value allocated to reserves is depreciated on a unit-of-production method over
the estimated recoverable proven and probable reserves at the mine. The reserve value is noted as depletable
mineral properties for operations in commercial production. The resource value represents the property interests that
are believed to potentially contain economic mineralized material such as inferred material; measured, indicated, and
inferred resources with insufficient drill spacing to qualify as proven and probable reserves; and inferred resources in
close proximity to proven and probable reserves.

Resource value and exploration potential value are classified as non-depletable mineral interests. At least annually or
when otherwise appropriate, value from the non-depletable category for operating mines will be transferred to the
depletable category as a result of an analysis of the conversion of resources or exploration potential into reserves.
Costs related to property acquisitions are capitalized until the viability of the mineral property is determined. When it is
determined that a property is not economically viable the capitalized costs are written down. Exploration expenditures
on properties not advanced enough to identify their development potential are charged to operations as incurred.

Mining expenditures incurred either to develop new ore bodies or to develop mine areas in advance of current
production are capitalized. Commercial production is deemed to have commenced when management determines
that the completion of operational commissioning of major mine and plant components is completed, operating results
are being achieved consistently for a period of time and that there are indicators that these operating results will be
continued. Mine development costs incurred to sustain current production are capitalized.

Upon sale or abandonment of any mineral interest, plant and equipment, the cost and related accumulated
depreciation or accumulated depletion, are written off and any gains or losses thereon are included in the statement of
operations.

2.6 Impairment of long-lived assets

The Corporation reviews the carrying values of its mineral interests, plant and equipment when changes in
circumstances indicate that those carrying values may not be recoverable. Estimated future net cash flows are
calculated using estimated recoverable reserves, estimated future commodity prices and the expected future
operating and capital costs. An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying value of an asset held for use
exceeds the sum of undiscounted future net cash flows. An impairment loss is measured as the amount by which the
asset's carrying amount exceeds its fair value.
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Uranium One Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at December 31, 2009 and 2008
(in United States dollars)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Asset retirement obligations

The Corporation recognizes liabilities for statutory, contractual or legal obligations associated with the retirement of
mineral property, plant and equipment, when those obligations result from the acquisition, construction, development
or normal operation of the assets. Initially, the net present value of the liability for an asset retirement obligation is
recognized in the period incurred. The net present value of the liability is added to the carrying amount of the
associated asset and amortized over the asset's useful life. The liability is accreted over time through periodic
charges to earnings and is reduced by actual costs of reclamation. Subsequent to the initial measurement, the asset
retirement obligation is adjusted at the end of each year to reflect changes in the estimated future cash flows
underlying the obligation.

2.8 Revenue recognition

Revenue from uranium sales Is recognized when: (i) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; (ii) the risks and
rewards of ownership pass to the purchaser, including delivery of the product; (iii) the selling price is fixed or
determinable, and (iv) collectability is reasonably assured.

In a uranium supply arrangement, the Corporation is contractually obligated to provide uranium concentrates to its
customers. Uranium that was produced by the Corporation is delivered to conversion facilities ("Converters") where
the Converter will credit the Corporation's account for the volume of accepted uranium. Based on delivery terms in a
sales contract with its customer, the Corporation instructs the Converter to transfer title of a contractually specified
quantity of uranium to the customer's account at the Converter. At this point, the Corporation invoices the customer
and recognizes revenue for the uranium supply. The Corporation does not recognize revenue in circumstances where
it delivers borrowed material into contracts.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis, taking account of the principal outstanding and the effective

interest rate over the period to maturity, when it is determined that such income will accrue to the Corporation.

2.9 Future Income and mining taxes

The Corporation uses the liability method of accounting for income and mining taxes. Under the liability method,
future tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and for tax losses
and other deductions carried forward. For business acquisitions, the liability method results in a gross up of mining
interests to reflect the recognition of the future tax liabilities for the tax effect of such differences.

Future tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted or substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply
when the asset is realized or the liability settled. A reduction in respect of the benefit of a future tax asset (a valuation
allowance) is recorded against any future tax asset if it is not more likely than not to be realized. The effect on future
tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in the statement of operations in the period in which the
change is substantively enacted.

2.10 Stock based compensation

The Corporation uses the fair value method of accounting for all stock based compensation awards ("Awards"). Under
this method, the Corporation determines the fair value of the compensation expense for all Awards on the date of
grant using an option pricing model. The fair value of the Awards is expensed over the vesting period of the Awards.

Upon exercise of the Awards, the related amount of stock based compensation previously expensed is transferred

from contributed surplus and together with consideration received, Is recorded as share capital.

The Corporation's stock based compensation plans consist of the following:

Options

Under Uranium One's Stock Option Plan, options granted are non-assignable and may be granted for a term not
exceeding ten years. The plan is administered by the Board of Directors, which determines individual eligibility under
the plan, the number of shares reserved underlying the options granted to each individual (not exceeding 5% of issued
and outstanding shares to any insider and not exceeding 1% of the issued and outstanding shares to any non-
employee director on a non-diluted basis) and any vesting period which, pursuant to the stock option plan was
previously one-third on the grant date, one-third on the first anniversary of the grant date and the remainder on the
second anniversary of the grant date. On December 8, 2006 the Board of Directors decided to adopt an amended
vesting schedule such that any options granted on and after December 8, 2006, would vest as to one-third on the first
anniversary of the grant date, one-third on the second anniversary of the grant date and one-third on the third
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Uranium One Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at December 31, 2009 and 2008
(in United States dollars)

anniversary of the grant date. The maximum number of shares of Uranium One that are issuable pursuant to the plan
is limited to 7.2% of issued and outstanding shares.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Restricted shares

Under the Uranium One Restricted Share Plan, restricted share rights are granted to eligible employees, contractors
and directors. Each restricted share right is exercisable for one common share of Uranium One at the end of the
restricted period for no additional consideration. The vesting period for restricted shares that are currently issued is
either two-thirds on the first anniversary of the grant date and the remainder on the second anniversary of the grant
date, or total vesting on the third anniversary of the grant date. The aggregate maximum number of shares available
for issuance under the restricted share plan is capped at three million. The number of shares for issuance to non-
employee directors may not exceed 0.5% of the total number of common shares outstanding on a non-diluted basis.

2.11 Earnings I loss per share

Earnings I loss per share calculations are based on the weighted average number of common shares and common
share equivalents issued and outstanding during the year. The calculation of diluted earnings per share assumes that
outstanding options and warrants that are dilutive to earnings per share are exercised and the proceeds are used to
repurchase shares of Uranium One at the average market price of the shares for the period. The effect is to increase
the number of shares used to calculate diluted earnings per share. Dilution from convertible securities is calculated
based on the number of shares to be issued after taking into account the reduction of the related after tax interest
expense. The impact of outstanding share options, warrants and convertible debentures are excluded from the diluted
share calculation for loss per share amounts, because it is anti-dilutive.

2.12 Financial Instruments

The Corporation's financial instruments primarily consist of cash, short-term money market investments, marketable
securities, accounts receivable, accounts payable, loans to joint ventures, draw downs against credit facilities, long
term debt and convertible debentures. The fair value of the financial instruments approximates their carrying values,
due primarily to their immediate or short-term maturity, except for the fair values of marketable securities that have
been estimated by reference to quoted market prices for actual or similar instruments where available and disclosed
accordingly.

Comprehensive income comprises the Corporation's net income and other comprehensive income. Comprehensive
income represents changes in shareholders' equity during a period arising from non-owner sources and, for the
Corporation, other comprehensive income includes currency translation adjustments on its net investment in self-
sustaining foreign operations, and unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized on the balance sheet when the Corporation has become party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value, which
includes transaction costs, except for financial instruments classified as held for sale, where the transaction cost is
expensed through the statement of operations. Subsequent to initial recognition these instruments are measured as
set out below:

Investments

Purchases and sales of marketable investments are recognized on the trade date at fair value, which is the date that
the Corporation commits to purchase or sell the asset. After initial recognition, the investments are classified as
available for sale investments carried at fair value, with the fair value adjustments accounted for in other
comprehensive income. When available for sale investments are sold, the cumulative market rate adjustment
previously recorded in other comprehensive income is recognized in the statement of operations.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, bank balances, deposits held at call and certificates of deposits,
money market instruments, including cashable guaranteed investment certificates, bearer deposit notes and
commercial paper with a remaining maturity of three months or less at date of purchase, and are carried at fair value.

Financial assets

Financial assets that are classified as held for trading are recognized at fair value on the trade date, which is the date
that the Corporation commits to purchase or sell the asset. After initial recognition, the assets are carried at fair value,
with the fair value adjustments accounted for in the statement of operations.
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Uranium One Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at December 31, 2009 and 2008
(in United States dollars)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are carried at amortized cost unless a provision has been recorded for uncollectability of these
receivables. A provision for impairment of accounts receivable is established when there is objective evidence that
the Corporation will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables.

Impairment and uncollectabillty of financial assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets may be impaired. If such evidence exists, the estimated recoverable amount of the
asset is determined and an impairment loss is recognized for the difference between the recoverable amount and the
carrying amount as follows: the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its discounted estimated recoverable
amount, either directly or through the use of an allowance account and the resulting loss is recognized in the
consolidated statement of operations for the year.

For investments included under financial instruments, if there is an other than temporary decline in the value of the
investment, such reduction is included in the consolidated statement of operations.

Financial liabilities

After initial recognition, financial liabilities, other than held for trading liabilities, are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
transaction costs and any discount or premium on settlement.

Financial liabilities that are classified as held for trading are recognized at fair value on the trade date, which is the
date that the Corporation commits to the contract. After initial recognition, the liabilities are carried at fair market
value, with the fair value adjustments accounted for in the statement of operations.

Accounts payable

Liabilities for trade and other payables which are normally settled on 30 to 90 day terms are carried at amortized cost.

Loans payable

Loans payable are recognized initially at the proceeds received, net of transaction costs incurred. Loans payable are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between proceeds
(net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognized in the statement of operations over the period of the
loan.

Offset

Where a legally enforceable right of offset exists for recognized financial assets and financial liabilities, and there is an
intention to settle the liability and realize the asset simultaneously, or settle on a net basis, all related financial effects
are offset.

Compound Instruments

The component parts of compound instruments are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual agreement. At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments. This amount
is recorded as a liability on an amortized cost basis until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument's maturity
date. The equity component is determined by deducting the amount of the liability component from the face value of
the compound instrument as a whole. This is recognized and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not
subsequently remeasured.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives may be embedded in other financial instruments (the "host instrument"). Embedded derivatives are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic characteristics and risks are not clearly and closely related to
those of the host instrument, the terms of the embedded derivative are the same as those of a stand-alone derivative,
and the combined contract is not held for trading or designated at fair value. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with subsequent changes recognized in gains or losses on derivatives within interest and other
in the consolidated statement of operations.
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Uranium One Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at December 31, 2009 and 2008
(in United States dollars)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Equity Instruments

Equity instruments issued by Uranium One are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

2.14 Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian GAAP requires the Corporation's management to
make estimates and assumptions about future events that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements and related notes to the consolidated financial statements. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Significant estimates used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements include, but are not limited to,
the recoverability of accounts receivable and investments, the proven and probable reserves, resources and
exploration potential of mineral interests and the related depletion and depreciation, the estimated net realizable value
of inventories, impairment of mineral interests, plant and equipment, determination of fair values of financial
instruments, the fair value for stock-based compensation, the valuation of investments, the provision for income taxes
and composition of income tax assets and liabilities, the expected economic lives of and the estimated future
operating results and net cash flows from mining interests, the anticipated costs of reclamation and closure cost
obligations, and the fair value of assets and liabilities acquired in business combinations and asset acquisitions.

2.15 Non-controlling Interest

Non-controlling interests exist with respect to less than wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Corporation and represent
the outside interest's share of the carrying values of the subsidiaries' net assets. When the subsidiary company
issues its own shares to outside parties, a dilution gain or loss arises as a result of the difference between the
Corporation's share of the proceeds and the carrying value of the underlying equity.

2.16 Variable Interest entities

Variable interest entities ('VIE's") as defined by the Accounting Standards Board in Accounting Guideline ("AcG") 15,
"Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities" are entities in which equity investors do not have characteristics of a
"controlling financial interest" or there is not sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without
additional subordinated financial support. VIE's are subject to consolidation by the primary beneficiary who will absorb
the majority of the entity's expected losses and/or expected residual returns. The Corporation has determined that
none of its equity investments, contracts or other holdings qualify as VIE's.

2.17 Recent accounting pronouncements

Financial Instruments - recognition and measurement

In June 2009, the CICA amended Section 3855 to clarify the application of the effective interest rate method after a
debt instrument has been impaired and when an embedded prepayment option is separated from its host debt
instrument at initial recognition for accounting purposes. The amendments are applicable for the Corporation's interim
and annual financial statements for its fiscal year beginning January 1, 2011. Earlier adoption is permitted.

Business combinations

CICA Section 1582 - "Business Combinations", which replaces CICA Section 1581 - "Business Combinations",
establishes standards for the accounting for a business combination. It is the Canadian GAAP equivalent to
International Financial Reporting Standard ("IFRS") 3, "Business Combinations". This standard is effective for the
Corporation's business combinations with acquisition dates on or after January 1, 2011. Early adoption is permitted.
The Corporation will early adopt this standard effective January 1,2010. The standard applies prospectively and may
have a material impact on the accounting for business combinations concluded from 2010 onwards.

Consolidated financial statements and non-controlling Interests

CICA Section 1601 - "Consolidated Financial Statements" ("Section 1601") and Section 1602 - "Non-controlling
Interests" ("Section 1602") replaces CICA Handbook Section 1600 - "Consolidated Financial Statements". Sections
1601 and 1602 establish standards for preparation of consolidated financial statements and the accounting for non-
controlling interests in financial statements that are equivalent to the standards under IFRS. These standards are
effective for the Corporation for interim and annual financial statements beginning on January 1, 2011. Early adoption
is permitted. The Corporation will early adopt this standard effective January 1, 2010. The standard applies
prospectively and may have a material impact on the Corporation's financial statements from 2010 onwards.
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Uranium One Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at December 31, 2009 and 2008
(in United States dollars)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

In February 2008, the Canadian Accounting Standards Board confirmed that publicly accountable enterprises will be
required to adopt IFRS for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2011, with earlier adoption permitted.
Accordingly, the conversion to IFRS will be applicable to the Corporation's reporting no later than in the first quarter of
2011, with restatement of comparative information presented.

3 ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

3.1 Acquisition of the Karatau Uranium Mine

Uranium One announced on June 15, 2009 the signing of a definitive purchase agreement to acquire a 50% joint
venture interest in the Karatau Uranium Mine ("Karatau") in Kazakhstan from JSC Atomredmetzoloto ("ARMZ"), the
Russian state-owned uranium mining company. The other 50% joint venture interest in Karatau is held by JSC NAC
Kazatomprom, the Kazakh-state owned uranium mining company. The acquisition closed in escrow on December 14,
2009 and the consideration held in escrow was released on December 21, 2009, from which date the Corporation
consolidates its interest using the proportional consolidation method.

The purchase price was paid by way of the issuance of 117 million common shares of Uranium One and a promissory
note of $90 million. The promissory note was repaid on January 18, 2010. The purchase agreement also provides for
contingent payments to ARMZ of up to $60 million, payable in three equal tranches over the period between 2010 and
2012 subject to certain, post-closing tax related, adjustments. The first payment of $20 million was made during
January 2010. Due to uncertainty regarding the payment of the remaining $40 million, it was not recognized as a
liability on acquisition.

As a result of the transaction, ARMZ holds an indirect 19.92% interest in Uranium One. ARMZ has agreed to a
standstill covenant under which it may not (subject to certain exceptions), without Uranium One's prior consent, for a
period of at least five years from closing increase their ownership to more than 19.95% of Uranium One's outstanding
common shares. Subsequent to December 31, 2009, the Corporation agreed that ARMZ may temporarily exceed the
19.95% standstill covenant until January 29, 2011. This will allow ARMZ to settle certain option agreements that they
entered into with third parties based on the expectation that the transaction with Japan Uranium Management Inc.
(note 27), as originally structured, would have closed.

The value of the Uranium One shares issued was calculated using the weighted average share price of Uranium One
shares two days before, the day of, and two days after the date of the announcement of the arrangement.

The aggregate fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed were as follows on acquisition date:

$'ooo
Purchase price: [ 1
Promissory note 90000
Common shares 293,229
Contingent payment - 20,000
Acquisition costs 8,751-

411,980
Net assets acquired:
Cash and cash equivalents 523.
Inventory 26,761
Other current assets 3,102
Mineral interests, plant and equipment 511,032
Other non-current assets 2,218
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (28,889)
Other current liabilities (25,051)
Future income tax liabilities (74.850)
Other non-current liabilities- (2,866):

411,980:
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Uranium One Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at December 31, 2009 and 2008
(in United States dollars)

3 ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS (continued)

3.2 Acquisition of Christensen Ranch and Irigaray

The Corporation entered into a definitive agreement on August 7, 2009 to acquire 100% of the MALCO Joint Venture
("MALCO") from wholly-owned subsidiaries of AREVA and blectricit6 de France for $35 million in cash. The assets of
MALCO include the licensed and permitted Irigaray ISR central processing plant, the Christensen Ranch satellite ISR
facility and associated U30 8 resources located in the Powder River Basin of Wyoming.

Pursuant to the acquisition agreement, the Corporation placed a deposit of $8.8 million in escrow to be applied against
the purchase price. The acquisition closed on January 25, 2010.

3.3 Assets held for sale

Uranium One Africa
In May 2009, the Corporation committed to a plan to sell Uranium One Africa Limited, ("Uranium One Africa"), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Corporation. Uranium One Africa owns the Dominion Uranium Project, which the Corporation
has placed on care and maintenance during the third quarter of 2008.

The Corporation estimates it will receive cash proceeds of $38.5 million, net of costs related to the sale. The net
carrying value of the investment of $285.0 million was impaired to the estimated proceeds of $38.5 million, resulting in
an impairment of $246.5 million. The Corporation had an accumulated unrealized translation loss relating to Uranium
One Africa of $234.5 million, previously recorded within other comprehensive income, which has been released
through the statement of operations as a result of the reclassification of the Corporation's investment in Uranium One
Africa to assets held for sale.

December 31, 2009 Dominion
$'000

Total assets V 51;460
Total liabilities V (12,944)1
Net carrying value 38,516,

Net carrying value before impairment 1 50,508
Accumulated translation losses f 234,533 I
Carrying value before Impairment 285,0411
Impairment (246,525)
Estimated recoverable amount, net of
costs 38;5161
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Uranium One Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at December 31, 2009 and 2008
(in United States dollars)

3 ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS (continued)

3.4 Disposals

During December 2009, the Corporation disposed of its Texas assets to Uranium Energy Corp ("UEC") for 2.5 million
restricted common shares of UEC which had a market value of $8.5 million, net of closing costs of $0.2 million. In
addition the Corporation disposed of certain other non-core assets during the year.

Assets and liabilities sold:
Mineral interest, plant and equipment
Accounts receivables and other receivables
Other assets
Accounts payables and accrued liabilities
Other current liabilities
Asset retirement obligations
Other non-current liabilities

Carrying value of assets and liabilities sold

Proceeds on sales:
Carrying value
Impairment

Proceeds, net of closing costs

4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Dec 31, 2009 Dec 31, 2008
$'000 $'000

Cash v47"• 4•44362 1 134,444
Money market instruments, including cashable guaranteed investment [ 104,103 41,781
certificates, bearer deposit notes and commercial paper

148,465 6 176,225

Cash and cash equivalents do not include any asset backed commercial paper.

5 ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Dec 31, 2009 Dec 31, 2008
$'000 $.000

Trade receivables 25,825 26,194
Value added tax and general sales tax ,9004, 5,886
Prepayments and advances • 4,747 4,151
Other receivables 2,829 3,695

I ~, 42,405 1 39,926
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Uranium One Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at December 31, 2009 and 2008
(in United States dollars)

6 JOINT VENTURES

6.1 Proportionate Interests In joint ventures

The Corporation owns the following interests in joint ventures:

Betpak Dala 70%
Kyzylkum 30%
Karatau 50%
SKZ-U LLP 19%
Honeymoon 51%
Australia Exploration 51%

The Corporation acquired a 19% joint control interest in SKZ-U LLP ("SKZ-U") during 2009 to ensure long term
sulphuric acid supply to Kyzylkum and other projects in the region. The SKZ-U joint venture was established to
construct a sulphuric acid plant near Kharasan at Zhanakorgan.

The Corporation acquired a 50% joint control interest in Karatau during 2009 (note 3.1).

The Corporation's proportionate share of the assets and liabilities of the joint ventures are as follows:

As at December 31, Betpak Honeymoon

2009 Dala Kyzylkum Karatau SKZ-U & Australia Total
exploration

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Cash 3,0 61 6 12 871 1 412 5,163 93668
Other current assets 7~7,871 ?274 18,930, 5 1,388 98,46&'
Mineral interests, plant

658,509 205,293 510,494 3,537 78,039 1,455,872

Other assets 1,479 ' 389 1,924 7,018 - 10,810
Current liabilities (8,494) , (4,034) (27,020)i (38) , (2575) < (42,161)
Other liabilities (1)(2) (1,479) (48,781) (16,687) -.. 34)° K (66,981)
Future income tax 58 (12 , (74,637) (4, (67
liabilities 2237 7 -(0) 16 8
Asset retirement .. .. (3 (,4 - ( (13,078..
obligation (8,170) (
Net Assets [' '666,934 140,433,, 410,317•- 10,934 , 77,202 1,305,8201

(1)ln addition to the $35 million loan (note 6.2) from the Corporation, Kyzylkum negotiated unsecured bank loan facilities totaling $160 million in prior periods. One
facility, in the amount of $70 million, was obtained from the Japan Bank for International Cooperation ("JBIC") and the other facility, in the amount of $90
million, was obtained from Citibank. These facilities were fully drawn down as at December 31, 2009, and the Corporation's share of these facilities is $48
million.

(2)Karatau negotiated a secured short term bank loan totaling $10 million with Citibank and the Corporation's share of this loan is $5 million.

As at December 31, Betpak Honeymoon

2008 Dala Kyzylkum & Australia Total
exploration

$1000. $'000 $'000 $'000
Cash 725 92 - 817
Other current assets 8,641 656 16 9,313
Mineral interests, plant 700,006 193,018 38,619 931,643
and equipment
Other assets 703 4,005 - 4,708
Current liabilities (18,098) (3,084) (653) (21,835)
Other liabilities (1) (1,636) (36,009) (11) (37,656)
Future income tax
liabilities (270,411) (72,019) (3,271) (345,701)
Asset retirement
obligation (4,609) (117) (223) (4,949)
Net Assets 415,321 86,542 34,477 536,340

(1)ln addition to the $46.7 million loan (note 6.2) from the Corporation, Kyzylkum negotiated unsecured bank loan facilities totaling $100 million in 2007 and
another $60 million in 2008. One facility, in the amount of $70 million, was obtained from the Japan Bank for International Cooperation ("JBIC) and the
other facility, in the amount of $90 million, was obtained from Citibank. Total draw downs against these facilities amounted to $120 million as at December
31, 2008, of which the Corporation's share was $36 million.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at December 31, 2009 and 2008
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6 JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

6.1 Proportionate interests In joint ventures (continued)

The Corporation's proportionate share of revenue, expenses, net earnings / (loss) and cash flows for the years ended

December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2009

Betpak
Dala

Kyzylkum Karatau
Honeymoon

SKZ-U & Australia
exploration

$'000 $'000

Total

Revenue
Expenses and other
income
Foreign exchange gain I
(loss)
Earnings I (loss)
before Income taxes
Current income tax
expense
Future income tax
recovery / (expense)

Earnings / (loss)

Cash flows (used in) I
from operating activities
Cash flows used in
investing activities
Cash flows from
financing activities
Net Increase I
(decrease) In cash
1 I

Year ended December 31, 2008

Betpak
Dala Kyzylkum

Honeymoon
& Australia
exploration

Total

$1000 $1000 $'000 $'000
Revenue 149,776 - - 149,776
Expenses and other (50,680) 132 (56) (50,604)
income
Foreign exchange (loss) (18) 660 - 642
/ gain
Earnings / (loss) 99,078 792 (56) 99,814
before Income taxes
Current income tax (42,065) (42) - (42,107)
expense
Future income tax 7,122 186 - 7,308
recovery

Earnings I (loss) 64,135 936 (56) 65,015

Cash flows from / (used 64,344 (78) - 64,266
in) operating activities
Cash flows used in (53,347) (21,489) (74,836)
investing activities
Cash flows (used in) (11,915) 18,000 6,085
from financing activities

Net decrease In cash (918) (3,567) (4,485)
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6 JOINT VENTURES (continued)

6.2 Loans to Joint ventures
Dec 31, 2009

$'000
Dec 31, 2008

$'000

Current portion 1 19,158
Kyzylkum

Y19,158

Long term portionSKZ-U 3552

Kyzylkum 25 ,698 14,000
I -• 29,250 W 14,000

Total 1 29,250 j 33,158

Kyzylkum loan

The Corporation made loans to Kyzylkum pursuant to its obligation to provide project financing for construction and
commissioning of the Kharasan Project in the amount of $80 million. The loans bear interest at LIBOR plus 1.5% per
annum, with interest payable on a semi-annual basis, commencing within two years of initial funding.

Dec 31, 2009
$o000

Dec 31, 2008
$'000

Balance at January 1 46,666 73,333

Repaid during the year I (11,666)1 (26,667)
35,000 46,666

Interest accrued 1,711 - 702
Balance at December 31 36,711 47,368

Less: elimination of proportionate share - 30% (1013), (14,210)
25,698 33,158

Less: current portion -- (19,158)
Long term portion I' 25,698' 1 14,000

The loans to Kyzylkum are unsecured.

Kyzylkum has suspended scheduled payments of principal and interest to the Corporation pending receipt of
additional financing currently being arranged by the Corporation and its partners in the Kyzylkum joint venture. The
repayments of the $35 million due from Kyzylkum are likely to be deferred as part of the financing of Kyzylkum's
activities. The Corporation therefore classified the amount outstanding on the loan to Kyzylkum as non-current.
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7 INVENTORIES
Dec 31, 2009 Dec 31, 2008

$,000 $s000
Finished uranium concentrates I '>410 055 5,401
Solutions and concentrates in process I • 24,871 2,584
Product Inventory j 65,926 7,985
Materials and supplies . 5,708 9,405

71,634'] 17,390

All operating expenses and depreciation and depletion are processed to inventory and expensed when the product is sold.

Finished uranium concentrates includes a fair value adjustment of $8.9 million that was processed on acquisition of
Karatau, to increase the carrying value to fair market value. The fair value adjustment will be recognised as non-cash
depreciation and depletion with the subsequent sale of the inventory.

8 MINERAL INTERESTS, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

December 31, 2009 Accumulated Net carrying
Cost amortization Amount
$'000 $'000 $'000

Mineral interests 1,485,968 ,(82852) 403,1161
Plant and equipment 385,621 ' :7(40;453) ..345,168

1;,871,58,9 (123,305) 1.,7A.8,284 !

December 31, 2008 Accumulated Net carrying
Cost amortization amount

$o000 $o000 $o000
Mineral interests 1,035,043 (46,850) 988,193
Plant and equipment 312,360 (15,138) 297,222

1,347,403 (61,988) 1,285,415

A summary by property of the net book value is as follows:

December 31, 2009 Mineral interests
Non- Plant and

Depletable depletable Total equipment Total
Country $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Akdala Mine Kazakhstan 77,199 74,358' 151,557 28,49 179',706
South Inkai Mine Kazakhstan 194,753 181,068 375,821 102,598 478,419
Karatau Mine Kazakhstan 141,052 312,575 453,627 56867 510,494
Kharasan Project Kazakhstan - 140,078 140,078 68,752 208,830
United States Unite St 9 532 72
development projects United States 9653,
United States United States 114.905 114,905 4 1
exploration projects Unte4taes493i, 115398
United States
conventional mining United States 38,896 38896 1014 39910
projects
Honeymoon Project Australia 31830 31830 46209 78,039
Corporate and other 1749 1,749 14213 15962
Total 413,004 990,112 1,403,116 345,168 1,748,284
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8 MINERAL INTERESTS, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

December 31, 2008 Mineral Interests
Non- Plant and

Depletable depletable Total equipment Total
Country $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $1000

Akdala Mine Kazakhstan 92,739 74,358 167,097 28,622 195,719
South Inkai Project Kazakhstan - 396,963 396,963 107,017 503,980
Kharasan Project Kazakhstan 144,722 144,722 48,296 193,018
Dominion Project South Africa - - 44,586 44,586
United Statesdeeomtec United States 90,255 90,255 15,589 105,844development projects
United Statesexploates United States 122,586 122,586 - 122,586exploration projects

Hobson Facility and United States 22,026 22,026
La Palangana Project
United States
conventional mining United States - 39,215 39,215 1,497 40,712
projects
Honeymoon Project Australia - 25,652 25,652 12,967 38,619
Corporate and other - 1,703 1,703 16,622 18,325
Total 92,739 895,454 988,193 297,222 1,2856,415

8.1 Impairment of mineral Interests, plant and equipment

Impairment and Future Income Net Impairment
December 31, 2009 closure costs tax adjustment

$,000 $1000 $,000
United States exploration projects . .. 789 268, 521
Corporate and other I .136 .136 1
Mineral Interests, plant and equipment 925 268 i657

Dominion Project (note 3.3) 246,525 - 246,525
Assets held for sale 246,525 246,525 t

Texas assets (note 3.4) 14,767 (5,422) 20,189

Other assets (note 3.4) 3,239 1,070 2, 2169,
Disposals during the year 18,006 (4,352) -22,358

Total 265,456 (4,084) 269,540

Impairment and Future income Net Impairment
December 31, 2008 closure costs tax adjustment

$'000 $s000 $'000

Dominion Project 1,805,452 474,735 1,330,717
United States development projects 204,289 68,679 135,610
United States exploration projects 936,556 331,619 604,937
Hobson Facility and La Palangana Project 83,409 19,024 64,385
United States conventional mining projects 65,310 4,070 61,240
Honeymoon Project 195,358 59,196 136,162
Corporate and other assets 31,848 5,701 26,147

3,322,222 963,024 2,359,198
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9 OTHER ASSETS

Current
Purchased uranium concentrates
Borrowed uranium concentrates
Future income tax assets
Deposit for acquisition of Christensen Ranch and Irigaray (note 3.2)
Deferred business development expenditure
Other

009 Dec 31, 2008
000 $'000

- 9,743
900 -
070 1,206
750 -

578 1,094
472 1 12,043

500 19,939
- 10,054
-8,621

- 5,959
487 3,938
347 2,489
244 

-287. 593
- 503

29,024
272• 1,856
'1371 1 62,976

Non-current
Asset retirement fund
Advances for future services
Borrowed uranium concentrates
Advances for investment in sulphuric acid plant
Advances for plant and equipment
Long term deposits and guarantees
Long term inventory
Available for sale securities
Deferred business development expenditure
Discontinued operations
Other

Uranium concentrates loans
The Corporation entered into a uranium concentrates borrowing agreement to mitigate the risk of delivery delays, enabling
the Corporation to meet its contractual obligations in terms of current uranium sales contracts. The asset represents the
borrowed uranium concentrates, which are held at a conversion facility in the Corporation's account. The asset is recorded
at its fair value. The corresponding financial liability of $8.9 million, which was classified as held for trading, is also carried
at fair value and is included in uranium concentrates loans in current liabilities (note 15).

Discontinued operations

The Corporation disposed of its remaining shareholding in Gold One during the year ended December 31, 2009, realizing a
gain of $2.0 million from the sale of 186.8 million shares for proceeds of $24.3 million, of which $3.1 million was received in
2008.

Available for sale securities

During the year the Corporation received 2.5 million UEC shares for the sale of the Texas properties. The fair value of the
UEC shares were $8.7 million as at December 31, 2009 (note 3.4). The Corporation holds further available for sale
securities with a fair value of $0.6 million.
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10 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Dec 31, 2009
$'000

Dec 31, 2008
$'000

Trade payables , 22,325 18,222
Accruals 18,661 19,874
Advances received 19,938 1 o
Commodity and other taxes payable 4,378 4,148
Deposit received for sale of Gold One shares 3,100
Other 7 606 2,079

I._, .-_ _ 65,908 I 47,423

11 LONG TERM DEBT

Dec 31, 2009 Dec 31, 2008
$,000 $'000

Opening balance 61,275. -
Drawn down during the year 65,000
Financing fees (3,876)
Amortized financing fees 2371
Interest paid (,210) (386)
Interest accrued -1,143 537
Closing balance I 63;579 J 61,275

Current portion .
Long term portion . . 61,275

I . 63,579 1 61,275

On June 27, 2008, the Corporation established a $100 million bank debt senior secured revolving credit facility (the
"facility"). Under the terms of the facility, the Corporation had the ability to borrow up to $100 million from the lead lenders,
Bank of Montreal and The Bank of Nova Scotia (the "Banks"). The facility has a two year term, and may be extended for a
further year with lender consent.

Draw downs under the facility can be made at interest rates based on either the US dollar LIBOR rate or the Bank of
Montreal base rate for US dollar denominated loans. Undrawn amounts are subject to a commitment fee currently at
0.50% per annum. Letters of credit can be issued under the facility at a fee of between 1.25% and 2.00% per annum.

The Corporation has made a drawdown of $65 million under the credit facility on October 20, 2008. The loan currently
bears interest at 2.2% per year. Letters of credit in the amount of $9.1 million were issued under the credit facility as at
December 31, 2009.

The debt is payable with no notice, anytime before June 27, 2010.

The margins over the base interest rates, the commitment fee and the letter of credit fee, are dependent on the ratio of the
Corporation's net debt (consisting of total debt less certain cash balances) to its earnings before interest, taxes, stock
based compensation, depreciation and depletion and other non-cash items.

Draw downs under the facility may be used for general corporate purposes, including working capital requirements and
funding capital expenditures and acquisitions.

Financing fees relate to upfront costs and other costs incurred associated with establishing the credit facility, and are
expensed over the term of the facility.
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12 CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES

The Corporation has outstanding convertible unsecured subordinated debentures maturing December 31, 2011 (the
"debentures") with a face value of Cdn $155.3 million ($147.9 million). The debentures were originally issued at
Cdn $1,000 per debenture and bear interest at an annual rate of 4.25%, payable semi-annually in arrears on June 30 and
December 31 of each year. The conversion price is Cdn $20 per share, which is equivalent to 50 common shares for each
Cdn $1,000 principal amount of debentures.

The table below indicates the breakdown of the liability:
Dec 31, 2009

$'000
Dec 31, 2008

$'000
Opening balance
Interest incurred
Coupon payment
Foreian exchanae movement

>118,042ý
.8,730'
(6,049)
20, 130

136,548
15,075
(5,989)

(27,592)
Liability as at the end of the year , 140,862 118,042

13 ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

Dec 31, 2009 Dec 31, 2008
$'000 $,000

Opening balance 13,927
Revision of estimates (68)
Accretion expense 1 1,407
Settled i,(
Incurred 6
Sale of 49% interest in Honeymoon (307)
Karatau business combination 2,841 -

Reallocated to assets held for sale (7,211) -

Other - (727)
Foreign exchange movement 584. (1,233)
Closing balance 6.i> .• ,i100j j 12,999

Dec 31, 2009 Dec 31, 2008

Undiscounted and uninflated amount of estimated cash flows ($'000) 23,801 I 24,864
Payable in years 8-44 7-45
Inflation rate 2.69% - 7.,00% 2.69% - 8.50%
Discount rate 8.40%1°•-i52% 8.50%- 15.90%

Security of $13.5 million (2008: $19.9 million) for reclamation obligations has been provided in the form required by the
relevant country's authorities (note 9).
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14 INCOME TAXES

Current income tax expense
Future income tax recovery

Dec 31, 2009 Dec 31, 2008
$'000

44,191
(1,013,634)

(969,443)

Reconciliation between the average effective tax rate and the applicable statutory tax rate.

Loss before income taxes
Canadian federal and provincial income tax rates
Expected income tax recovery
Permanent differences, including share based compensation and foreign
exchange
Effect of tax rate changes
Change in valuation allowance
Differences in tax rates in foreign jurisdictions
Other

Dec 31, 2008
$'000

(3,303,030)
31.00%

(1,023,939)

6,075

1,150
143,661

(101,439)
5,049

(969,443)

Future Income tax

The significant components of the Corporation's future income tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

Dec 31, 2009
$,000

Dec 31, 2008
$'ooo

Future income tax assets i
Mineral interests, plant & equipment 137,003 151,815Other 85642 112,105

Non-capital losses 90,o09 69,080
Future income tax assets before valuation allowance 312,735 233,000
Valuation allowance (256,403) (163,827)
Future Income tax assets, net of valuation allowance 56,332 1 69,173

Future income tax liabilities •?:.D j;: 2599 3 ,9
Mineral interests, plant & equipment 235,949 435,096

Other 8,164
Future Income tax liabilities 235,949 443,260

Net current portion of future income tax assets [< . 1,070 1,206
Net long term portion of future income tax liabilities 1 (180,687) (375,293)
Net future Income tax liability (1170617)] (374,087)
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14 INCOME TAXES (continued)

Tax loss carry-forwards

Canada and provincial tax jurisdictions
At December 31, 2009, the Corporation had Canadian federal and provincial net operating loss carry-forwards totaling
$94.5 million with a tax value of $24.6 million that expire from 2010 through 2030. A valuation allowance of $24.6 million
has been applied against the future tax asset representing these losses.

United States federal and state tax jurisdictions
At December 31, 2009, the Corporation had United States federal and state net operating loss carry-forwards totaling
$65.3 million with a tax value of $23.6 million that expire from 2020 through 2030. A valuation allowance of $nil million has
been applied against the future tax asset representing these losses.

South Africa tax jurisdictions
At December 31, 2009, the Corporation had South Africa net operating loss carry-forwards totaling $95.1 million with a tax
value of $33.3 million with no expiry. A valuation allowance of $33.3 million has been applied against future tax asset
representing these losses.

Kazakhstan tax jurisdictions
At December 31, 2009, the Corporation had Kazakhstan net operating loss carry-forwards totaling $21.2 million with a tax
value of $3.2 million that expire from 2010 through 2012. A valuation allowance of $3.2 million has been applied against
the future tax asset representing these losses.

Australia tax jurisdictions
At December 31, 2009, the Corporation had Australian net operating loss carry-forwards totaling $18.3 million with a tax
value of $5.5 million with no expiry. A valuation allowance of $nil has been applied against the future tax asset
representing these losses.

15 OTHER LIABILITIES

Dec 31, 2009 Dec 31, 2008
S $'000 $000

Current
Promissory note (note 3.1) 90,211
Contingent payment (note 3.1) -20,000
Unfavorable contracts 11,65'5
Uranium concentrates loan .. 8,900
Short term loan (note 3.1) 5,000
Other 1,277 -

__________________________________________________ . . . 137,043J-

Non-current I
Uranium concentrates loan . I 10,692
Kyzylkum external loan facility (note 6) [47,574 i 35,453
Due to the Republic of Kazakhstan 1,696 I 2,138
Other 181 641

49,4511 ] 48,924

Uranium concentrates loan

On September 22, 2008, the Corporation entered into a loan agreement to borrow 200,000 pounds of U3 08 to be repaid on
September 30, 2010. Under the loan agreement, loan fees of 3.5% per annum are payable based on the value of the
borrowed U308. The Corporation recognized the borrowed uranium as an Other asset (note 9). The loan which was
classified as a financial liability held for trading, and the other asset are carried at fair value.

Unfavourable contract

The Corporation acquired an unfavorable contract as part of the Karatau acquisition which is carried at fair value (note 3.1).
The fair value will be realized as part of revenue when the finished uranium concentrates are delivered into the contract.

Promissory note
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The Corporation issued a $90 million promissory note as part of the consideration for the purchase of Karatau (note 3.1).
The promissory note was due not later than 12 months from closing and was repaid on January 18, 2010.

16 SHARE CAPITAL.

Number of
sharesIssued and outstanding common shares

Value of
shares

$'000
Common shares on January 1, 2008 467,173,423 3,496,884
Exercise of warrants 1,190,000 15,791
Exercise of stock options 1,043,016 7,358
Exercise of restricted shares 206,517 2,791
Common shares on December 31, 2008 469,612,956 , <3,522,824
Exercise of warrants
Exercise of stock options 6 257
Exercise of restricted shares 44,83e 257
Contingent shares issued 16,0 165 600 i
Karatau acquisition share issued 117,000,000 293,229c

Issued and outstanding common shares at December 31, 2009 587,423,576 ..... 3,823,297<

17 CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS

The following table details the movement of contributed surplus during the year:

Restricted
Warrants shares Options Total

$,000 $,000 $'000 $,000
As at January 1, 2008 25,372 3,119 105,896 134,387
Stock options issued and vested - - 14,145 14,145
Stock options exercised - (3,957) (3,957)
Restricted shares vested 1,278 1,278
Restricted shares exercised (2,791) (2,791)
Warrants exercised (11,460) (11,460)
As at December 31, 2008 13,912 1,6066 1, 131,62
Stock options issued and vested , 7,027 7,027
Stock options exercised - (5 369) : (5369ý)!
Restricted shares issued and vested
Restricted shares exercised . (257) . .....

As at December 31, 2009 13,912 1,824 > 117,74.2 133,478

Assumptions
The fair value of stock options and restricted shares used to calculate the compensation expense was estimated using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions:

Risk free interest rate
Expected dividend yield
Expected volatility of the Uranium One's share price
Expected life

December 31, 2008
2.52% - 3.60%

0%
66%-120%

5 years

Warrants
The Corporation has no outstanding warrants at December 31, 2009 (2008: nil).
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17 CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS (continued)

Stock options

The following is a summary of options granted under the stock-based compensation plan:

Weighted
Number of average

options exercise price
Cdn $

Outstanding options as at January 1, 2008 20,824,788 8.55
Granted options 2,559,948 3.56
Exercised options (1,043,016) 3.74
Forfeitures of stock options (6,483,203) 9.12
Outstanding options as at December 31, 2008 15A858,517'ziy , 7.82
Granted options 6,292,3510 223
Exercised options (600,184) 225
Forfeitures of stock options ,, (2,986,524)* ; 689
Outstanding options as at December 31, 2009 ,•18,564,1t60 .. . 6 .. 6.26

The stock option compensation expense for the year ended Decemb'er 31, 2009 was $7.0 million and for the year ended
December 31, 2008 it was $14.1 million. As at December 31, 2009, the aggregate unexpensed fair value of unvested stock
options granted amounted to $5.0 million. The fair value of options granted during the year amounts to $8.2 million ($1.31
per option) (2008: $5.5 million, $2.15 per option).

The following table summarizes stock options outstanding at December 31, 2009:

Options outstanding Options exercisable
Number Number

outstanding exercisable
as at Weighted Weighted as at Weighted

Range of December average average December average Weighted
exercise 31, remaining exercise 31, remaining average
prices 2009 life price 2009 life exercise price
Cdn $ (years) Cdn $ (years) Cdn $
:0;78 to 2.74 6068700 3.98 2.18: V 254ý814 1.30 1.49
2.75 to4.76 3,821:199 3.002 3.86 ' 2,70~1,192 ~ 2.98 39
4.77 to7.79 2,161,319 ~ 2.44 6.96 ;2,097,715 2.17.02
9910 to 1293 186595 5.63 ~ 8.44 3,047,0362 5.584
9.91to 12990 30659,15026 121 1,78,1 2,601.1
,12.94to05 613,900 %2. 1 .7 13.90 555,780 2.. 4•4 13194

215.64 to 16.59 1,005,917 2.18 16.52 )707,927; ) 2.19 16.48
1 8i564,160 3.58 -6.26 11,1511,974 ~ 3.41 8.30
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17 CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS (continued)

Restricted share rights

The following is a summary of Uranium One's restricted shares issued under the Restricted Share Plan:

Number of
restricted shares

Balance at January 1, 2008 295,532
Granted 609,000
Exercised during the year (206,517)
Expired (74,520)
Balance at December 31, 2008 623495•:
Exercised during the year (. 144,8,6)
Expired (127,500)1
Balance at December 31, 2009 451,159 1

The following is a summary of the outstanding restricted share rights:

Number of restricted shares
Dec 31, 2009 Dec 31, 2008

Grant date
June 7, 2006 72,083
December 8, 2006 4,576 9,245
July 1, 2007 . 6,667
April 7, 2008 374,500 510,500
April 28, 2008 - 25,000
Balance at the end of the year , 451i159 1 623,495

Restricted share rights will not expire while the rights holder is an employee of the Corporation.

The restricted share rights expense for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $0.5 million and for the year ended
December 31, 2008 was $1.3 million. As at December 31, 2009 the aggregate unexpensed fair value of unvested
restricted share rights granted amounted to $0.6 million (2008: $1.6 million). No restricted shares were granted during the
year. The fair value of the restricted shares granted during 2008 was $2.4 million.

Contingently Issuable shares
Under the terms of the acquisition agreement for the Kyzylkum JV interest, Uranium One is obligated to issue 6,964,200
common shares of Uranium One upon commencement of commercial production from Kyzylkum.

The Corporation assumed all of the obligations of Uranium One Americas, Inc. (previously Energy Metals Corporation Inc.)
and its subsidiaries arising under certain option and joint venture agreements with third parties. At December 31, 2009
Uranium One has reserved a total of 57,500 common shares for issuance pursuant to the assumed obligations under
contingent share rights agreements. 165,600 contingent shares were issued during the year due to the performance
conditions being met. 184,000 contingent share rights have lapsed during the year.

ANNUAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30



Uranium One Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at December 31, 2009 and 2008
(in United States dollars)

18 INTEREST AND OTHER

Yearended
Dec 31, 2009 Dec 31, 2008

$o000 $'000
Interest income 4,885 10,315
Interest paid (1,i155) (505)
Convertible debenture interest (note 12) (8;739) (15,075)
Credit facility charges (3,720) (1,677)
Interest and costs incurred on uranium concentrates loan (351) (224)
Costs incurred in relation to letters of credit (65) (210)

((7,376)

19 FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSS

A summary of the foreign exchange loss by item is as follows:

Year ended
Dec 31, 2009 Dec 31, 2008

$'000 $'000
Unrealized foreign exchange gain on future income tax liabilities 63,771 1,340
Unrealized foreign exchange loss on other items (7'821) (2,679)
Realized foreign exchange gain I (loss) on other items 3,0771 (10,370)

027 (11,709)

The National bank of Kazakhstan announced on February 4, 2009 that it has ceased to maintain the Kazakhstan tenge ('tenge")
within the previous range of 117-123 tenge to the US dollar and suggested the rate be set within a range of 145-155 tenge to the
US dollar. The tenge closed at 148.36 tenge to the US dollar on December 31, 2009. The resulting devaluation affected the
translated values of monetary assets and liabilities, resulting in a $63.8 million gain on future income tax liabilities.

20 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Year ended
Dec 31, 2009 Dec 31, 2008

$'000 $'000
Changes In non-cash working capital excluding business
combinations:

Decrease accounts and other receivables

Decrease in prepaid expenses and other

Increase in inventories

Decrease in accounts payable and accrued liabilities

(Decrease) / increase in income taxes payable

6,613 28,818

10,379 2,651

(9,486) (910)

(7,949) (6,279)

(9,21 8,450

(9,658)] 32,730

Supplemental cash flow information

Cash interest paid
Cash tax paid . :30,31i0 7,288

35,740
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21 BASIC AND DILUTED WEIGHTED-AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES OUTSTANDING

Year ended

Dec 31, 2009 Dec 31, 2008

Basic weighted-average number of shares outstanding ('000) 475,583 468,424
Effect of dilutive securities:
-stock options
-warrants -

Diluted weighted-average number of shares outstanding 475,583 468,424

For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, convertible debentures, stock options, warrants and restricted shares
were not included in the dilutive weighted average number of shares outstanding as they were anti-dilutive.

22 CAPITAL DISCLOSURES

The Corporation's objectives when managing capital are to:

(i) Maintain a flexible capital structure which optimizes the cost of capital at acceptable risk;
(ii) Continue the development and exploration of its mineral properties; and
(iii) Support any expansion plans.

In the management of capital, the Corporation includes shareholders' equity, long term debt, cash, convertible debentures
and the current portion of loans to joint ventures.

The Corporation manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it when the economic and risk conditions of the
underlying assets require change. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Corporation may issue new
shares, issue new debt, and/or issue new debt to replace existing debt with different characteristics. The Corporation has
in place a planning and budgeting process to help determine the funds required to ensure the Corporation has the
appropriate liquidity to meet its operating and growth objectives.

The Corporation monitors the following ratios in this respect: total debt to total capitalization and net debt to total
capitalization.

The Corporation must maintain an interest coverage ratio of greater than 2.5 to meet the credit facility's debt covenants.
The interest coverage ratio is calculated as the ratio of the Corporation's earnings before interest, taxes, share based
compensation, depreciation and depletion and other non-cash items ("EBITDA") to interest paid.

For years ended
Dec 31, 2009 Dec 31, 2008

$1000 $'000
Total liabilities (excluding future income tax liabilities) 40,7 8520 301,302
Net liabilities (total liabilities less cash, receivables, and current portion of loans 8 ,... 3
to joint ventures) 296,650 65,993
Total capitalization (total shareholders' equity) 1,480,900 950,538

Total liabilities as a percentage of shareholders' equity 33% 32%
Net liabilities as a percentage of shareholders' equity 20% 7%

Credit facility:
EBITDA (rolling 4 quarters) 49,550 .69,755
Interest coverage ratio 7.1 10.5
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Convertible debentures

Liability component
Eauitv comoonent

Dec 31, 2009 Dec 31, 2008
$.000 $'000

140,862 j 118,042
S 46:480 46,480
1 • 87,342 I 164,522

1L i31,668 1 86,222Fair value of convertible debentures

The Corporation's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of changes in debt and prices of
equity instruments held, foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, and commodity prices.

The Corporation continuously monitors its exposure to risk. The risk management carried out by the Corporation is
approved by the Board of Directors. The following section describes the type of significant risks that the Corporation is
exposed to and its objectives and policies for managing those risk exposures.

(i) Designation and valuation of financial Instruments

The following table summarizes the designation and fair value hierarchy under which the Corporation's financial
instruments are valued, other than trade and other receivables and payables.

*Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy includes unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

*Level 2 of the hierarchy includes inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
-Level 3 includes inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data. The Corporation does

not have any financial instruments included in Level 3.

As at December 31, 2009
Available for

Loans and sale
receivables securities Total

Designation of financial assets Notes $'000 $'000 $'000
Cash and cash equivalents 4 __ 148A465 - 148,465I
Shares - available for sale 9 -• K 4HK 9,287•, - 9,2 87•

Total 148;465 .9P287 1,57,7521

As at December 31, 2009
Held at fair Financial

value through liabilities at
profit and amortized

loss cost Total
Designation of financial liabilities Notes $'000 $'000 $'000
Long term debt 11 - C35 63,579
Kyzylkum external loan facility 15 47,574 47,574
Convertible debenture 12 140,862 140,862
Uranium concentrates loan 15 8,900 - 8,900Promissory note 15 . .... : • ,i,90,211 90•,:21

Contingent payment 15 20,000 20,000
Unfavorable contracts 15 11,655 11,655
Short term loan 15 .. 5,000 .5,000
Due to the Republic of Kazakhstan 15 ,i6 9 6  1,696
Other 15 - 1,458 ~ 1,458
Total 1 8,900 ~ 382,0356 390;935

As at December 31, 2009
.Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
liabilities measured at fair value $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Available for sale securities - UEC shares 8,740 7• - ; 8,740 -

Available for sale securities - other 547 547 -

Uranium concentrates loan (8,900) -, (8,900)
Total 387k 547 (1,60) -
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23FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(11) Foreign exchange risk

The Foreign exchange risk relates to the risk that the value of financial commitments, recognized assets or liabilities
will fluctuate due to changes in foreign currency rates.

The Corporation is primarily exposed to foreign currency risk through the following assets and liabilities denominated
in currencies other than US dollars:

Non-financial assets
Financial assets and iiabiiities and liabiiities

Mineral
December 31, Accounts Interests
2009 Cash and payabie and plant and Future

cash Accounts accrued Convertible equipment Income tax
equivalents receivable iiabiiities debentures (1 iiabiiities

$1000 $1000 $1000 $1000 $1000 $1000
Canadian dollar 170< <2,539 6,186w '140,862 - -
Australian dollar 22,071 <' 1,571 4,369 - 78,039 4,074
Kazakhstan 3,496 28,981 37,76i 142,704
tenge
Euro 41 ~ - 9 - -

South African 674 - --

Rand
~t26,452 33,091 48,325 140,862 '78;039 ~146,778.

Non-financial assets and
Financial assets and iiabiiities liabilities

December 31, Mineral
2008 Accounts Interest

Cash and payable and piant and Future
.cash Accounts accrued Convertible equipment income tax

equivaients receivabie liabilities debentures (1 liabilities
$1000 $1000 $1000 $000 $-000 S'000

Canadian dollar 438 2,436 3,477 -118,042 - -

Australian dollar, 44,597 1,212 7,558 - 38,619 3,271

tegeafricsan 1,251 5,978 11,515 -- 342,430
South Arcn5,227 4,821 17,506 - 44,586 -
rand

51,513 14,447 40,056 1118,042 83,205 345,701

SOnly includes mineral interests, plant and equipment of self-sustaining operations.

The following table shows the effect on earnings and other comprehensive income after tax as at December 31, 2009
of a 10% appreciation or depreciation in the foreign currencies against the US dollar on the above-mentioned financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities of the Corporation.

Other
comprehensive Net

Income Earnings
A 10% appreciation in all foreign currencies against the US dollar, with (3,295 18,057
all other variables held constant.(325 8,7

A 10% depreciation in exchange rates would have the exact opposite effect on other comprehensive income and net
earnings.

(111) Credit risk

Credit risk is primarily associated with trade receivables, and to a lesser extent, cash equivalents.

The Corporation closely monitors its financial assets and does not have any significant concentration of credit risk.
The Corporation sells its products exclusively to organizations with strong credit ratings. Cash and cash equivalents
are held through large international financial institutions. Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of financial
instruments issued by Canadian banks and companies with high investment-grade ratings. These investments
mature at various dates.-I
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Corporation's maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is as follows:

Dec 31, 2009
$'000

Dec 31, 2008
s'000

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 148,465ý 176,225

Accounts receivable 42,405 39,926

Available for sale securities I9,, 9,287:1 593
200,157 I 218,7"

(iv) Liquidity risk

The Corporation has a cash forecast and budgeting process in place to assist with the determination of funds required
to support the Corporation's operating requirements on an ongoing basis and its expansion plans. The Corporation
manages liquidity risk through the management of its capital structure and financial leverage as outlined in note 22.

The Corporation has established a credit facility (note 11) as part of its liquidity risk management process. The
Corporation has made its first draw down against the facility in the amount of $65 million on October 20, 2008. The
following table summarizes the contractual maturities of the Corporation's significant, financial liabilities and capital
commitments, including contractual obligations:

Lessthan
1 year

I to 3
years

4 to 5
years

After 5
years Total

Lease obligations ,•793 906 .4WW1 i 804 1,V571 • 4,074
Kyzylkum long term debt 6,720 30,720 10,560 48,000

Capital commitments 15,538 1,548 221 - 17,307
Asset retirement 508 6 3,038 14,562 18,114
obligations
Accounts payable and 6 - - 61ý 908
accrued liabilities 5 ,908 - ....5.90
Credit facility repayments • 65,000. -, 65, 0

Short term loan 55000 5,000
Uranium concentrates5 8,900 - '8.,900
loan (note 15)
Convertible debentures - 147,894 - - 147,894,

Other 305. ... 596 596 1,065 2,562

I 168,672 181,70 15,219 1.7,198 382,759

The convertible debenture is redeemable in cash or shares, and may not result in a cash outflow. The uranium
concentrates loan requires settlement with uranium concentrates, and may not result in a cash outflow.

The Corporation has interests in joint ventures, and is responsible for partial funding of these joint ventures pursuant
to the terms of the joint venture agreements. The Corporation does not bear direct liquidity risk for liquidity of these
joint ventures, except for the risk relating to the repayment to loans made to the joint ventures. The Corporation can
only utilize cash generated by the joint ventures when the joint ventures pay dividends.

On January 19, 2009, in connection with the construction of a sulphuric acid plant by SKZ-U, in which the Corporation
subsequently acquired a 19% joint venture interest, the Corporation provided a guarantee to a third party in respect of
19% of the construction cost of the plant, limited to a maximum amount of $7.6 million (Euro 5.5 million).

The Corporation is exposed to liquidity risk from fluctuating commodity prices when the 200,000 pounds of uranium
concentrates received as part of a uranium loan transaction are utilized against contracts. As the market value of the
liability to deliver the uranium concentrates fluctuates based on commodity prices, so will the market value of the
uranium concentrates held by the Corporation. The effect that market fluctuations in the uranium price have on the
asset and liability will offset, except in circumstances where the borrowed uranium has been utilized to make a
delivery into a contract. In these circumstances, the Corporation will recognize a net fair market value adjustment.
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

A 10% change in commodity prices, should the Corporation be exposed, would impact the Corporation's liquidity risk
due to the uranium concentrates loan (note 15), as follows:

Dec 31, 2009 Dec 31, 2008
$'000 $,000

A 10% appreciation in commodity prices, with all other variables held
constant:
-current 198
- maximum exposure : 890 1,060

A 10% depreciation in the commodity price would have the exact opposite effect on net earnings.

(v) Interest rate risk

The Corporation is exposed to interest rate risk on its outstanding borrowings and short-term investments. The only
outstanding interest-bearing borrowings as at December 31, 2009 are the loan facility obtained by Kyzylkum (note 6.1)
which bears interest at floating rates, the drawn-down amount on the credit facility which bears interest at floating
rates (note 11), and the convertible debentures, with a fixed interest rate.

A 100 basis point change in the interest rate would impact the Corporation's net earnings as follows:

Dec 31, 2009 Dec 31, 2008
$'000 $o000

A 100 basis point appreciation in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant ..... j,6...811

A 100 basis point depreciation in the interest rate would have the exact opposite effect on net earnings.

(vi) Commodity price risk

The Corporation is exposed to price risk with respect to commodity prices. The Corporation does not hedge its
exposure to price risk, other than having market related pricing structures in the long-term sales contracts, which the
Corporation has entered into. Increases in uranium prices would have a positive impact on profitability given that the
majority of the Corporation's sales contracts are priced based on market values for uranium.

The Corporation is exposed to price risk from fluctuating commodity prices with respect to outstanding uranium
concentrates loans if the borrowed uranium has been utilized to make a delivery. As the market value of the liability to
deliver the uranium concentrates fluctuates, based on commodity prices, so will the market value of the uranium
concentrates borrowed by the Corporation. The effect that market fluctuations in the uranium price have on the
borrowed uranium asset and uranium concentrates liability will offset, except in circumstances where the borrowed
uranium has been utilized to make a delivery into a contract. In these circumstances, the Corporation will recognize a
net fair market value adjustment in the statement of operations.
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24 SEGMENTED INFORMATION

The Corporation's reportable operating segments are summarized in the table below:

For the year ended December 31, 2009: (in $'000)

Country Revenues

Depreciation
Operating and Exploration
expenses depletion expense

$'000 $'000 $'000

Net earnings/
(loss) from
continuing Capital
operations expenditure

S'O00 S'000$'000
Akdala Mine Kazakhstan
South Inkai Mine Kazakhstan
Karatau Mine Kazakhstan
Kharasan Project Kazakhstan
United States
development projects
United States
exploration projects
United States
conventional mining United States
projects
Honeymoon Project Australia

Corporate and other

Total

For the year ended December 31, 2008: (in $'000)

Country Revenues
$o000

Operating
expenses

$o000

Depreciation
and

depletion
$'000

Exploration
expense

$o000

Net
earnings/

(loss) from
continuing
operations

$'000

Capital
expenditure

$o000
Akdala Mine Kazakhstan 149,776 (30,490) (22,566) 61,902 10,651

South Inkai Project Kazakhstan - 26 43,139

Kharasan Project Kazakhstan 875 19,466

Dominion Project South Africa (1,412) (1,325,938) 94,211
United States United States - - (135,666) 11,455
development projects
.United States United Siates (6,979) (536,905) 1,013
exploration projects
Hobson Facility and La United States - - (690) (65,077) 17,056
Palangana Project
United States
conventional mining United States - - (1,189) (85,104) 3,854
projects
Honeymoon Project Australia - - (2,339) (139,236) 13,525
Corporate and other - (2,272) (108,464) 2,387

Total 149,776 (30,490) (22,566) (14,881) (2,333,587) 216,757
I
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24 SEGMENTED INFORMATION (continued)

As at December 31, 2009: (in $'000)

Mineral Interest Future
plant and Total income tax Total

Country equipment assets liabilities liabilities
$,000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Akdala Mine Kazakhstan 179,7063 214,121».i 18,231 24,004

South Inkai Mine Kazakhstan • 478,419 522,574 37,613 , 49,017O
Karatau Mine KazaKhstan 510,494' 531,508 74,637<! 141192,

Kharasan Project Kazakhstan 208,830 217,800 12,223 66,433
United States development projects United States 121,526 122,040 - 154

United States exploration projects United States 115,398 116,148 28,711 28,742
United States conventional mining U' 3
projectsUnited States 7,324. 5,198 8,226

Honeymoon Project Australia 78,039 :,85,380 4,074 7,389
Corporate and other 15,962 240,752 - 330,106

Total (1) 1,748,284 2,97,647 180,687 655,26311

() Excludes assets held for sale

As at December 31, 2008: (in $'000)

Mineral Interest Future
plant and Total income tax Total

Country equipment assets liabilities liabilities
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Akdala Mine Kazakhstan 195,719 200,497 66,156 81,385

South Inkai Project Kazakhstan 503,980 506,648 204,255 212,082
Kharasan Project Kazakhstan 193,018 197,561 72,019 111,230

Dominion Project South Africa 44,586 69,253 - 28,629
United States development projects United States 105,844 107,538 - 724

United States exploration projects United States 122,586 123,532 24,182 24,418
Hobson Facility and La Palangana United States 22,026 24,064 - 1,506
Project
United States conventional mining United States 40,712 55,098 5,410 8,282
projects
Honeymoon Project Australia 38,619 38,858 3,271 4,158

Corporate and other 18,325 295,060 - 204,181

Total (1) 1,285,415 1,618,109 375,293 676,595

(1) Excludes assets held for sale and discontinued operations
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25 CONTINGENT SALE OF AN INTEREST IN THE DOMINION PROJECT

On June 7, 2005, Uranium One Africa and Micawber 397 (Proprietary) Limited ("Micawber 397"), a company owned by
historically disadvantaged South Africans, entered into a definitive purchase and sale agreement, a management and
skills transfer agreement and a joint venture agreement.

Pursuant to these agreements, Uranium One Africa agreed to sell to Micawber 397 an undivided 26% interest in the
Dominion Project for cash consideration equal to 26% of the net present value of the Dominion assets at the date when
Micawber elects to pay at least 20% of the purchase price. This election must occur within three years after receipt of
Micawber 397 of their first profit distribution from the joint venture. After the first payment, Micawber is obliged to pay at
least 20% of the purchase price during each subsequent three-year period, so that the purchase price is paid in full within
twelve years of the date of the first payment.

The parties agreed to contribute their interests in the assets, to a joint venture, to be managed by Uranium One Africa,
and to fund the development and operation of those assets in accordance with their respective joint venture interests.
Uranium One agreed to lend to Micawber 397 the funds required to contribute their share under the joint venture
agreement. The aggregate amount of that loan, plus accrued interest, is repayable from Micawber 397's share of joint
venture profits.

Uranium One Africa's shareholders approved the Micawber transaction in September 2005, following which the South
African Department of Minerals and Energy granted a "new order" mining right to the Corporation for the Dominion Project
in October 2006. The Micawber 397 transaction will be accounted for in Uranium One's consolidated financial statements
when the risks and rewards of the transaction are deemed to have passed to Micawber 397. Management has
determined that this event will occur on the day that Micawber 397 elects to pay at least 20% of the purchase price,
prompting the determination of the purchase price. As at December 31, 2009, Micawber 397 has not paid any part of the
purchase price.

26 CONTINGENCIES

Due to the size, complexity and nature of the Corporation's operations, various legal and tax matters arise in the ordinary
course of business. The Corporation accrues for such items when a liability is both probable and the amount can be
reasonably estimated. In the opinion of management, these matters will not have a material effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Corporation.

Betpak Dala acquisition

As part of the original acquisition of the interest in Betpak Dala on November 7, 2005, it was agreed that the Corporation is
liable for a bonus payment payable in cash based on uranium reserves discovered on the South Inkai property in excess
of 66,000 tonnes. The payment is based on the Corporation's share of U30 8 in excess of 66,000 tonnes times the
average spot price of U30 8 times 6.25%. This payment is to be calculated at the end of 2011 and each year thereafter,
and paid 60 days after the end of the year in which a payment is due. No payment was due at December 31, 2009
(December 31, 2008 - $Nil).

As security for the bonus payment, the Corporation has pledged its participatory interest in Betpak Dala (including the
shares of a subsidiary) and its share of uranium products produced by Betpak Dala.

Kyzylkum acquisition

As part of the original acquisition of the interest in Kyzylkum on November 7, 2005, it was agreed that the Corporation is
liable for a bonus payment, which is due upon commencement of commercial production. The seller initially had an
option, exercisable until October 31, 2006, to elect to receive this bonus payment as a cash payment of $24 million or
receive 15,476,000 shares of UrAsia Energy. The seller elected under the terms of the arrangement, to receive
15,476,000 shares of UrAsia Energy upon commencement of commercial production. The 15,476,000-bonus payment
shares of UrAsia Energy have been converted to 6,964,200 Uranium One shares as part of the UrAsia Energy acquisition.
The fair value of the contingently issuable shares was not been included as part of the purchase price for Kyzylkum as
commencement of commercial production could not be reasonably determined.

An additional bonus payment of 30% of 12.5% (being an effective 3.75%) of the weighted average spot price of U30 8 will
be paid on incremental reserves in excess of 55,000 tonnes of U30 8 discovered during each fiscal year with payment
beginning within 60 days of the end of the 2008 calendar year. No payment was due at December 31, 2009 (December
31, 2008 - $Nil).

Karatau acquisition

Contingencies relating to the Karatau acquisition are described in note 3.1.
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26 CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Uranium One Americas, Inc. (previously Energy Metals Corporation) acquisition

Contingencies relates to the Uranium One Americas, Inc (previously Energy Metals Corporation) are described in note 17.

27 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Issuance of convertible debenture to Japanese Consortium

On February 9, 2009, Uranium One entered into a subscription agreement with Japan Uranium Management Inc.
("JUMI"), a corporation formed by The Tokyo Electric Power Company Incorporated, Toshiba Corporation, and The Japan
Bank of International Cooperation (collectively the "Consortium") providing for the private placement of an aggregate of
117,000,000 common shares of Uranium One, for gross proceeds of approximately C$270 million.

On December 29, 2009 the Corporation and JUMI have executed documentation revising the February 9, 2009 private
placement to a debenture financing.

Under the revised terms, on January 14, 2010, the Corporation issued to JUMI C$269,100,000 aggregate principal
amount of 3% unsecured convertible debentures maturing ten years from the date of issue. The debentures will
automatically convert into 117,000,000 Uranium One common shares on receipt of required Kazakh regulatory approval,
which is expected during 2010. If such approval is not received, the holder may, on 12 months' notice, cause the
debentures to be redeemed at par plus accrued and unpaid interest. Such redemption may not occur before the second
anniversary of the closing in January 2012.

Upon conversion of the debenture (and after giving effect to the shares to be issued to ARMZ in connection with the
Karatau Uranium Mine transaction), JUMI will have a 16.6% equity stake in Uranium One. The agreement also contains a
standstill provision under which the Consortium has agreed, subject to certain exceptions, not to acquire without Uranium
One's prior approval more than 19.95% of Uranium One's issued common shares.

C$250 million bought deal financing of convertible unsecured subordinated debentures

The Corporation announced on February 18, 2010 that it has entered into an agreement for a bought deal financing with a
syndicate of underwriters for C$250,000,000 aggregate principal amount of convertible unsecured subordinated
debentures (the "2010 Debentures") together with an over-allotment option of up to C$37,500,000 exercisable at any time
up to the closing.

The 2010 Debentures have a March 13, 2015 maturity date, with interest payable at a rate of 5.0% per annum, payable
semi-annually from the date of receipt of all necessary Kazakh approvals for the conversion of the 2010 Debentures, or at
a rate of 7.5% per annum, payable semi-annually before the receipt of the necessary Kazakh approvals. The 2010
Debentures will be convertible into common shares of the Corporation after receipt of all necessary Kazakh approvals, at
a rate of 250 common shares per C$1,000 principle and will have a conversion price of C$4.00 per common share,
representing a premium of approximately 25.8% based on a reference price of C$3.18, being the closing price on
February 17, 2010.

The offering is scheduled to close on or about March 12, 2010, and is subject to the satisfaction of customary closing
conditions, including approval of the Toronto Stock Exchange and the Securities regulatory authorities.

Other

Other material transactions occurring subsequent to December 31, 2009 are also described in notes 3.1 and 3.2.
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